
 

 

Democratic Services ◦ Chief Executive’s Department ◦ Leicestershire County Council ◦ County Hall  

Glenfield ◦ Leicestershire ◦ LE3 8RA ◦ Tel: 0116 232 3232 ◦ Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk 
 

 

www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy    www.facebook.com/leicsdemocracy  

  
www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy  

 

 

 

 
  

 

Meeting: Local Pension Committee  
 
 

 

Date/Time: Friday, 6 September 2019 at 9.30 am 

Location: Guthlaxton Committee Room, County Hall 

Contact: Miss C Tuohy (0116 305 5483). 

Email: cat.tuohy@leics.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 
 
Item  Report By  Marked 

 
1.  

  
Minutes of the meeting held on 5 July 2019.  
 

 
 

(Pages 5 - 12) 

2.  
  

Question Time.  
 

 
 

 

3.  
  

Questions asked by members under Standing 
Order 7(3) and 7(5).  
 

 
 

 

4.  
  

To advise of any other items which the 
Chairman has decided to take as urgent 
elsewhere on the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

5.  
  

Declarations of interest in respect of items on 
the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

6.  
  

Club Vita.  
 

 
 

(Pages 13 - 14) 

 There will be a presentation from Club Vita for this item. 
 

 

7.  
  

Summary Valuation of Pension Fund 
Investments and Performance of Individual 
Managers.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 15 - 62) 

8.  
  

Pension Fund Administration - Current 
Developments. 
 
  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 63 - 110) 

mailto:democracy@leics.gov.uk
http://www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy
http://www.facebook.com/LeicsDemocracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy


 

 

9.  
  

Risk Management and Internal Controls.  
 

Director of 
Corporate 
Resources 
 

(Pages 111 - 
126) 

10.  
  

Dates of Future Meetings.  
 

 
 

 

 Future meetings of Local Pension Committee will be held at 9.30am on the 
following dates:- 
 
8 November 2019 
24 January 2020 

28 February 2020 
19 June 2020 
11 September 2020 
27 November 2020 
 
 

 

11.  
  

Any other items which the Chairman has 
decided to take as urgent.  
 

 
 

 

12.  
  

Exclusion of the Press and Public.  
 

 
 

 

 The public are likely to be excluded during consideration of the remaining 
items in accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972 (Exempt Information). 
 

 

13.  
  

Presentation by LGPS Central  
 

 
 

 

 There will be a presentation from LGPS Central for this item. 
 

 

14.  
  

LGPS Central - Leicestershire Property 
Portfolio  
 

LGPS Central 
 

(Pages 127 - 
138) 

15.  
  

LGPS Central - Targeted Return Portfolio  
 

LGPS Central 
 

(Pages 139 - 
142) 

16.  
  

LGPS Central - Emerging Market Debt  
 

LGPS Central 
 

(Pages 143 - 
148) 

17.  
  

Ashmore Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

18.  
  

Aspect Capital Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

19.  
  

IFM Investors Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

20.  
  

Kames Capital Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

21.  
  

JP Morgan Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

22.  
  

KKR Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

23.  
  

LaSalle Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

24.  
  

Macquarie Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

25.  
  

Millennium Global Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 



 

 

26.  
  

Pictet Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

27.  
  

Legal and General Investment Manager 
Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

28.  
  

Stafford Timberland Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

29.  
  

Ruffer Quarterly Report  
 

Fund Manager 
 

 

TO: 
   

Leicestershire County Council 
 

 

Mr. P. C. Osborne CC (Chairman) 
Mr. T. Barkley CC 
Mr. P. Bedford CC 
 
 
Leicester City Council 
 

Dr. S. Hill CC 
Mr. Max Hunt CC 
 

Cllr Deepak Bajaj and Cllr. Ratilal Govind 
 

 

District Council Representatives 
 
Cllr Chris Frost and Cllr. Malise Graham MBE 
 
University Representative   
  
Dr Pete Cross 
 

 

 

Staff Representatives  
  
Mr. R. Bone 
Mr. N. Booth 
 

Ms. J. Dean 
 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Local Pension Committee held at County Hall, 
Glenfield on Friday, 5 July 2019.  
   

PRESENT: 
Leicestershire County Council 
 

 

Mr. P. C. Osborne CC 
Mr. T. Barkley CC 
Dr. S. Hill CC 

 

Mr. Max Hunt CC 
 

Leicester City Council 
 

 

 Cllr Deepak Bajaj  
 Cllr. Ratilal Govind  
  
District Council Representative 
 
Cllr. Malise Graham MBE 
 
Staff Representatives  
  
Mr. R. Bone 
Ms. J. Dean 

Mr. N. Booth 
 
 

  
 

1. Appointment of Chairman.  
 
  
That Mr. P. C. Osborne CC be elected Chairman of the Local Pension Committee for the 
period ending with the date of the Annual Council meeting in May 2020. 
  

Mr. P. C. Osborne in the Chair  
 

2. Election of Vice-Chairman  
 
That Mr. T. Barkley CC be elected Deputy Chairman of the Local Pension Committee for 
the period ending with the date of the Annual Council meeting in May 2020. 
  
 

3. Minutes of the previous meeting.  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 15 February were taken as read, confirmed and 
signed.  
 

4. Question Time.  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order 
35. 
 

5 Agenda Item 1



 

 

5. Questions asked by members.  
 
The Chief Executive reported that no questions had been received under Standing Order 
7(3) and 7(5). 
 

6. Urgent Items.  
 
There were no urgent items for consideration. 
 

7. Declarations of interest.  
 
The Chairman invited members who wished to do so to declare any interest in respect of 
items on the agenda for the meeting. No declarations were made. 
 

8. Summary Valuation of Pension Fund Investments and Performance of Individual 
Managers.  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources the purpose 
of which was to present a summary valuation of the Fund’s investments at 31 March 
2019. A copy of the report is filed with these minutes, marked ‘8’. The Committee also 
considered a presentation from Portfolio Evaluation Limited as part of this item, a copy of 
which is filed with these minutes. 
 
The Committee welcomed the strong performance of many of the Fund’s assets which 
had outperformed the three year benchmark set. It was noted that when setting 
benchmarks for each investment, it was important that they were representative and 
achievable.  
 
In response to questions from members, the Director confirmed that the Fund would 
retain its diversification through pooling with LGPS Central. The Global Equities fund, for 
example, had three managers that ensured the Fund’s investments remained diverse.  
LGPS Central had no current plan to develop an ‘opportunity fund’ so Leicestershire 
would retain its own until such time that one became available. All investments would be 
made in line with the overall strategy of the Fund. 
 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

9. LGPS Central Update - Pension Fund Pooling  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources which 
provided an update to members concerning the progress made towards the pooling of 
Fund assets into LGPS Central. A copy of the report marked ‘9’ is filed with these 
minutes.  
 
It was noted that Leicestershire and four other funds had committed to the LGPS Central 
Emerging Market Fund and that it was expected to launch at the end of July.  
 
In order to efficiently manage investment portfolios, LGPS Central intended to establish  
Investment Advisory Committees which would be represented by officers from each of 
the investing funds. The Committees would be asked to consider operational matters 

6



 

 

arising, such as conflicts of interest, and proposed changes to the investment approach. 
The responsibility for the actual investing remains with LGPS Central. 
 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the update be noted. 
 

10. LGPS Central Update - Company Matters  
 
The Committee considered a report from the Director of Corporate Resources which 
provided an update to members concerning LGPS Central Company Matters. A copy of 
the report marked ‘10’ is filed with these minutes.   
 
The Director of Corporate Resources highlighted LGPS Central’s work on responsible 
investment and its adopted stewardship themes of, cybersecurity and data protection, 
diversity and climate change.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the update be noted. 
 

11. Risk Management and Internal Controls.  
 
The Director of Corporate Resources presented a report, the purpose of which was to 
detail any concerns relating to the risk management and internal controls of the Fund. A 
copy of the report is filed with these minutes, marked ‘11’. 
 
Members noted that work was ongoing to develop an assurance framework for LGPS 
Central in conjunction with the other partner authorities. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

a) That the revised risk register of the Pension Fund be approved. 
 

b) That the development of an assurance framework for LGPS Central be noted. 
 
 

12. Investment Subcommittee Membership  
 
The Committee considered a report from the Director of Corporate Resources concerning 
the membership of the Investment Subcommittee for the period ending with the date of 
the annual Council meeting in May 2020. A copy of the report marked ‘12’ is filed with 
these minutes. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

13. Pension Fund Valuation  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Corporate Resources which sought 
approval for the assumptions and stabilisation approach for scheme employers with tax 

7



 

 

raising powers, in preparation for the Leicestershire Local Government Pension Scheme 
valuation. A copy of the report marked ‘13’ is filed with these minutes. 
 
 
The Actuary was in the process of setting the individual contribution rates that would be 
presented to all employers within the Fund. Consultation for the contribution rates and the 
Funding Strategy Statement would begin formally following the AGM to be held on 18 
November 2019, before approval would be sought by the Committee in January 2020. 
 
Members were assured that any moves from Government to discontinue the Retail Prices 
Index (RPI) measure of inflation would not fundamentally affect the Fund. 
 
Members noted that there were procedures in place for organisations that wished to 
leave the Fund, and the exit payment they would be expected to pay would depend on 
factors such as the number of their active and deferred members on a full-buy out basis. 
 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Committee approve:- 
 

a) the actuarial assumptions for the 2019 valuation of the fund as follows:- 
i) discount rate assumption of Gilts + 1.8% 
ii) salary growth assumption of CPI + 0.5% 

 
b) the contribution rate increase of 1.0% per year for stabilised employers from 1st 

April 2020. 
 
 
 

14. Consultation - Local Valuation Cycle and Management of Employer Risk  
 
The Committee received a report by the Director of Corporate Resources the purpose of 
which was to update members on the potential implications of the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government’s consultation on “LGPS: Changes to the local 
valuation cycle and the management of employer risk policy” and the Fund’s response. A 
copy of the report marked ‘14’ is filed with these minutes. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report and consultation response be noted. 
 

15. Pension Fund Training Policy  
 
The Committee received a joint report of the Director of Corporate Resources and the 
Fund’s Independent Investment Consultant on the draft Pension Fund Training Policy. A 
copy of the report marked ‘15’ is filed with these minutes. 
 
Members supported the development of a Training policy for Committee and Local 
Pension Board members which would help ensure good governance of the Fund was 
maintained.   
 
RESOLVED: 
 

8



 

 

That the report be noted. 
 
 
 
 

16. Exclusion of the press and public  
 
RESOLVED: 
  
That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972 the public be excluded 
from the meeting for the remaining items of business on the grounds that they involved 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 3 and 10 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12(A) of the Act. 
 

17. LGPS Central Limited - Global Equity Active Multi Manager Fund Monthly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by LGPS Central Limited on the Global 
Equity Active Multi Manager Fund, a copy of which marked '17' is filed with these 
minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 3 and 10 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

18. Ashmore Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Ashmore Fund Management, a copy of 
which marked '18' is filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue 
of paragraphs 3 and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
  
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

19. Aspect Capital Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Aspect Capital, a copy of which marked 
'19' is filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 
3 and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
  
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

20. IFM Investors Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by IFM Investors, a copy of which marked 
'20' is filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 
3 and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
  
RESOLVED: 
 

9



 

 

That the report be noted. 
 

21. Kames Capital Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Kames Capital a copy of which marked 
'21' is filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 
3 and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

22. KKR Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by KKR, a copy of which marked '22' is filed 
with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 3 and 10 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
  
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

23. LaSalle Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by LaSalle, a copy of which marked '23' is 
filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 3 and 
10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
  
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

24. JP Morgan Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by JP Morgan, a copy of which marked '24' 
is filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 3 
and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
  
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

25. Legal and General Investment Manager Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Legal and General, a copy of which 
marked '25' is filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of 
paragraphs 3 and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
RESOLVED: 
  
That the report be noted. 
 

26. Delaware Investments Quarterly Report  

10



 

 

 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Delaware Investments, a copy of which 
marked '26' is filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of 
paragraphs 3 and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
  
 

27. Millennium Global Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Millennium Global, a copy of which 
marked '27' is filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of 
paragraphs 3 and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
  
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

28. Legal and General Investment Manager Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Pictet, a copy of which marked '28' is 
filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 3 and 
10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
  
 

29. Ruffer Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Ruffer, a copy of which marked '29' is 
filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of paragraphs 3 and 
10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
  
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

30. Stafford Timberland Quarterly Report  
 
The Committee considered an exempt report by Stafford Timberland, a copy of which 
marked '30' is filed with these minutes. The report was not for publication by virtue of 
paragraphs 3 and 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

 CHAIRMAN 
05 July 2019 

11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  
LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE - 6 SEPTEMBER 2019 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
CLUB VITA 

 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to provide the Committee with background 
information to a presentation by Club Vita regarding how it is used in the 
Leicestershire Pension Fund’s (the Fund)  triennial valuation (the Valuation). 

 
 Background 
  
2. One of the key assumptions used in the Valuation is the  longevity of the 

Fund’s pensioners, as this has a direct link with the Funds liabilities. For many 
years longevity has been rising which in turn increased the value of pensions 
that the Fund expected to pay, hence increasing liabilities. 

 
 To calculate the assumption the fund has been working with Club Vita for 

several years to assess future longevity. 
 

Club Vita was launched by Hymans Robertson in 2008 and provides data to 
over 250 diverse pension funds with over 2.9 million pensioners. This vast set 
of data is critical to the statistical credibility and analysis of its longevity 
calculations. 

 
 Leicestershire provides certain details for each pensioner including; 
 

 Postcode 

 Pensioners pre-retirement salary 

 Pension values 

 Reason for retirement 
 

By using these key factors Club Vita can assess the longevity of the Fund’s 
pensioners and in turn determine if this increases or reduces the Funds 
liabilities. 
 
Club Vita representatives are attending the Committee meeting to provide 
further information to Members.  

 

  
Recommendation 

 
It is recommended that the Pension Committee note the report. 

13 Agenda Item 6



 

 
  Equality and Human Rights Implications 

 
None specific 
 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Ian Howe – Pensions Manager - telephone (0116) 305 6945 
Ian.Howe@leics.gov.uk 
 
 
Declan Keegan – Assistant Director of Strategic Finance and Property - 
telephone (0116) 305 6199 
Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk  
      

14

mailto:Ian.Howe@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk


 
 

LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE – 6th SEPTEMBER 2019 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
SUMMARY VALUATION OF PENSION FUND INVESTMENTS AND 

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE OF INDIVIDUAL MANAGERS 
 
 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
1.   The purpose of this report is to present to the Committee, an update on the 

investment markets and how individual asset classes are performing, a summary 
valuation of the Fund's investments at 30th June 2019 (attached as  Appendix B to 
this report), together with figures showing the performance of individual managers 
and a funding position from the fund’s actuary.   

 
Market Outlook and Performance  
 
2.   An update on asset classes and market performance is provided by LGPS Central 

in their Tactical Asset Allocation report, in Appendix A. Key indicators for a 
recession have worsened over the last quarter.  Despite this the six months to 
June 30th have seen Global equity markets rise 16.8% in sterling terms in the 
strongest six months market move for 21 years. The best equity factors were 
growth and quality. The likelihood of a recession over the next 12 months is 
medium. The report also provides a view how the market outlook impacts strategic 
asset allocations.  

 
Overall Investment Performance 
 
3. A comprehensive performance analysis over the quarter, year and 3-year period to 

30th June 2019 is provided in Appendix B.  This report is produced by Portfolio 
Evaluation Limited (PE).  PE collate information directly from managers and 
calculate performance, which will provide an independent check of valuations and 
allow greater reporting flexibility. Introduction of this reporting will enhance the 
control and assurance for the Fund. Current performance reporting is limited to 
three years, but work is ongoing to provide a longer-term history. 

 
4. It is important to note that the valuations produced can be different to those 

provided by managers or included in the Statement of Accounts. For example, 
timing differences or use of different accounting methodologies.  The differences 
are not expected to be material in the context of the messages being conveyed by 
the report. 

 
5. For the period ending 30th June 2019 the Fund delivered an investment return of 

3.2% for the quarter, 5.4% over the year and 9.2% over a 3-year period. 
 

15 Agenda Item 7



6. The Fund’s asset allocation compared to the investment strategy is shown in the 
table below: 

  

  Weighting Benchmark Difference 

Equities 50.2% 48.0% 2.2% 

Real Income Fund 24.7% 26.5% -1.8% 

Alternatives 25.1% 25.5% -1.1% 

Cash 0.7% 0.0% 0.7% 

  100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 

 
The Fund’s actual allocation varies over time due to differential market movements. 
However, the allocation remains broadly in-line with the strategy. The marginal 
overweight positions in equities (+2.2%) are expected to continue for some time, 
due to the time required to make investments in the underweight positions that are 
predominately the harder to access private market investments, where managers 
must source opportunities rather than being able to buy from liquid markets. The 
main underweight positions are made up of property, infrastructure private debt and 
the opportunities pool. At the end of June, the Fund had approximately £80m of 
commitments with managers that are waiting to be called. Further commitments will 
ideally be made when Central launches relevant products, although the Fund’s 
existing providers will need to be considered if the time to launch is too long. A 
detailed breakdown of the asset allocation is available in Appendix B. 

 
7. The following table provides the performance of the Fund and the asset classes 

over short and longer-term periods, compared to their respective benchmarks.  
 
 

  3 Months % 1 Year %p.a. 3 Years %p.a. 
  

Fund Benchmark Fund Benchmark Fund Benchmark 

Equities 4.4 4.7 6.3 6.6 12.6 12.6 
Income Assets 1.5 1.2 7.1 5.5 8.1 6.0 
Alternative 3.4 1.7 3.5 5.6 4.7 4.7 
TOTAL FUND 3.2 3.1 5.4 6.4 9.2 8.7 

 

8. The investment performance of the individual managers for the quarter to 30th 
June 2019 is set out in Appendix B. Further information on managers 
performance can be obtained from the manager reports included in the private 
part of the agenda. Included for the first time are three reports from LGPS 
Central providing an update on the performance of the managers under the 
advisory mandates, namely targeted return, emerging market debt and 
property.  It is worth noting the following performance of certain managers: 

 Adams Street – Private Equity, 4.8% negative return compared to the 
benchmark. The benchmark of listed markets can be misleading, in the short-
term, due to the less frequent valuations of private equity assets. As a riskier 
asset class, they have greater potential volatility.  The 3-year return is more 
representative and trails the benchmark by 1.4%. In absolute terms this is still 
a good performance (12.6% annual return) but is measured against a very 
strong period for global equities. 

 

16



 IFM - global infrastructure, 10%+ return over benchmark over 1 year. Similarly, to 
private equity a long-term view needs to be taken, potentially incorporating the initial 
investment period.  

 Christofferson Robb & Company –Other Opportunities – 9.3% excess return over 
benchmark. The other opportunities allocation targets a higher return, at a higher 
level of risk. The investments in the opportunities area should be looked at as a 
collective, as not all will perform to target.  

 Colliers pooled Property fund – 8% excess return over a year.  However due to 
the nature of property performance should be viewed over a longer time frame such 
as 3 years where it is 0.8% below benchmark.  The fund only accounts for 0.7% of 
the total value of the pension fund so any change has a relatively small impact. 

 
9. Following comments made at the last committee meeting regarding investment in 

emerging markets the following table has been produced showing equity allocations 
across different regions: 

  

  Allocation 
FTSE 

All-World Variance 

  % % % 

Emerging 14.7 10.4 4.3 

Developed Asia Pacific ex Japan 6.4 5.6 0.9 

North America 38.1 56.9 (18.8) 

Japan 6.3 7.7 (1.4) 

Europe xUK 16.8 14.1 2.7 

United Kingdom 17.5 5.3 12.3 

Other 0.2 0.1 0.1 

Total 100.0 100.0 0.0 

 
The comparison against the FTSE All-World Index shows the worldwide market 
capitalisation of various indices. The Fund’s allocation is broadly in line with this 
index although the proportion of the fund invested in emerging markets is 4% higher 
and the United Kingdom 12% higher, at the expense of North America. The above 
table represents our passive equity investments and actively managed investments 
in Global and Emerging Market equities.  There will be further equity allocations 
through the Targeted Return managers, but these managers have freedom to move 
between asset classes depending upon their outlook. 

 
10. Allocating a higher proportion of the fund to emerging markets also brings with it 

risks inherent in these markets such as geo-political risk and currency fluctuations. 
The stock markets in these countries have also historically had higher levels of 
volatility when compared to developed markets. 

 
11. It is important to note that although emerging market economies are growing, 

particularly the growing wealth of the middle-class population in those economies, 
much of the stock market growth associated with this will come from the major 
equity markets such as the US, UK and Europe.  This is due to global nature of 
many of the companies that reside there meaning that they are likely to be best 
placed to benefit from this growth. 
 

Currency 
 
12. The movement of currency markets has been prominent in the financial news due to 

a range of domestic (e.g. Brexit) and global (e.g. trade wars) factors. The Fund 

17



employs Kames to implement a currency hedge to reduce the currency risk. The 
Fund has set the neutral position of hedging 50% of the currency exposure and 
Kames have the freedom to vary the exposure depending upon their view of future 
currency movements.  
 

13. The fund will lose money whenever sterling weakens, as not all of the increase in 
foreign asset values will be received. Kames have produced a briefing paper on 
how the currency hedge is utilised and also what may happen in various Brexit 
scenarios. This is attached as Appendix C. 

 
 
Recommendation 

14. The Local Pension Committee is asked to note the report. 
 

 
 

Appendices 
 
Appendix A - Report of LGPS Central Limited Tactical Asset Allocation (Market outlook 
and Performance).  
 
Appendix B – Portfolio Evaluation Limited – Quarterly Risk and Return Analysis (Summary 
Valuation of Funds performance)  
 
Appendix C – Kames Capital: Currency Hedging Programme 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
None. 
 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
Tel: 0116 305 6199 Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk  
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director Strategic Finance and Property 
Tel: 0116 305 7668 Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk  
 
 

18



16 
 

 

 

LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION 

ISSUE 6        June 2019 

FOR PROFESSIONAL 
CLIENTS ONLY 

Cover photo https://pixabay.com/photos/wallet-credit-card-cash-investment-2292428/ 

19

ctuohy
Typewritten Text
Appendix A



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 6 
 

  2 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

Introduction 

Welcome to the 6th Edition of our LGPS Central Limited (“LGPSC”) Tactical Asset Allocation Report. 

We see this being used for short to medium term overlays over your strategic asset allocation to take advantage of current market conditions 
by refining your asset weights within your long-term allocation bands.  

The last 3 months has seen LGPSC busy developing 3 funds:  GEMs, Climate Change Factor Based and Corporate Bonds funds up to FCA 
approval. These are all expected to invest in the next 4 months with ~£3.5bn of potential commitments from Partner Funds. This will bring our 
sub-funds launched to 7.  We have also been working with you to develop the Product Development Protocol (the detailed process and time-
line for developing funds) which shows a further 8 funds being prepared across all asset classes. At the last IWG PAF we introduced the initial 
plans regarding Multi Asset Credit (MAC), Emerging Market Debt (EMD) and Property to add to the Infrastructure and Target Return funds 
that are in early stages of development. The Private Equity fund 2018/19 Vintage has invested more than 50% of the money committed in 
January of this year in Funds and co-investments and will be looking at a new vintage later in the year.  

All of these are pooled vehicles available to all Partner Funds.  

LGPSC is managing 15 mandates/portfolios for individual Partner Funds across all asset classes. Work continues with individual Partner Funds 
on various segregated mandates and portfolios including sustainable equities, G10 Bonds and other advisory services. 

We are also reviewing the legal agreements within these discretionary, advisory and advisory and execution mandates which we plan to share 
with those Partner Funds invested in late July. This work is being carried out by our legal counsel working with external counsel.  

 On Responsible Investment and Engagement, we held a summit with you all on the 9th July in Birmingham. We are looking to offer a Climate 
Risk Monitoring Platform service to Partner Funds that have expressed an interest using a variety of external service providers.  

In the past three months we have shared monthly reports from the Active Equities team and the FOF report and the Conflicts report. All of 
these reports can be found on Cilla available on the LGPSC website. (https://www.lgpscentral.co.uk/client-login/) 

In this edition of the report we have added a report from Gordon Ross (Director of Fixed Income) on the outlook for Sterling in these turbulent 
times for the UK.  

We have expanded the investment team in the last 3 months to 24 people and have 5 investment staff joining in the next 3 months and 11 
roles in the recruitment pipeline including our investment professional graduate trainee programme.   

LGPSC is also looking to add to the Risk & Compliance, Legal, Operations, Programme Management and Finance teams who have been critical 
to the delivery of these Funds and services for you and the investment team.  

As always, we welcome any feedback on this report. 

Summary of Strategy thoughts 

The last 6 months have seen global equity markets rise 16.8% in sterling terms in the strongest H1 market move for 21 years. The best 
performing markets were Greece, China, US and Germany and the best equity factors were Growth and Quality.  

After such a strong move in Growth Assets it will be a surprise that we are increasing our weighting to Growth assets as we feel the probability 
of outperformance has improved. This is justified in our view, given economic growth expectations have already been cut significantly, and 
some leading indicators are suggesting some parts of the world are already in recession. We also note that in sentiment surveys (Bank of 
America Fund Manager Survey for June 2019) investors are extremely bearish on equities and extremely bullish on cash investments which 
historically has seen good returns from Equity markets.  

Stabilising Assets have done well with the mature government bond market returning 5% over that same 6-month period with nearly all of 
that return coming from declining yields. Germany, France, Holland, Japan and Switzerland are all seeing negative yields on their 10-year 
bonds. This opens up the interesting conundrum where we could see borrowers being paid for taking out a mortgage (Makes a very interesting 
conversation with your Bank Manager).  LGPSC remains very cautious on the outlook for Stabilising Assets.  We clearly prefer exposure to 
Income Assets as an alternative where yields and expected returns will combine with a low correlation to those riskier Growth Assets.  

LGPSC continues to see the balance of probabilities favouring stronger Sterling in the medium term. Hedging foreign currency assets back to 
Sterling is something LGPSC continues to support in the current market environment.  

Please read on for a more detailed analysis of our views. 

Jason Fletcher, Chief Investment Officer 

CIO SUMMARY  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 6 
 

  3 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED’S VIEW ON WEIGHTINGS  
 
The following table gives a summary of our view on the 6-18 months tactical positioning horizon. 
 
Table1: Weightings 

 Significant Underweight Underweight Neutral Overweight Significant Overweight 

Estimated Probability 80-70% 70-65% 55-45% 70-65% 70-80% 

BROAD ASSET CLASS  Stabilising  
Income, 
 Growth  

GROWTH ASSET CLASS 
 

   Private Equity, 
GEM Equities  

 
US Equities 

UK Equities, 
Asia Pac Equities Commodities Japan Equities, 

EU Equities 

INCOME ASSETS  Credit, 
Insurance-Linked Property Infrastructure, 

EM Debt  

STABILISING ASSETS JP Bonds, 
 EU Bonds 

UK Bonds, 
Index-Linked, 

 

IG Bonds, 
US Bonds Gold  

INVESTMENT STYLES Size Quality/ESG Growth 
Momentum, 

 Low Volatility Value  

CURRENCIES 
 

 US Dollar 
Euro, 
 Yen  GBP   

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

LGPSC’s view on “Weightings”: 
 LGPS Central Limited (“LGPSC”) remains “Underweight” in Stabilising Assets and “Overweight” in Income Assets.  Growth Assets have been upgraded from 

“Neutral” to  “Overweight”. Cheap valued Growth Assets with good economic outlook and valuation remain attractive, carried by positive sentiment. 
 Equities are the most favoured of the Growth Assets but have seen some changes in terms of regional preferences. Our favoured equities include Europe and 

Japan. 
 GEMs Equities change from strong “Overweight” to “Underweight”, mainly due to sentiment change and worsening economic outlook. 
 UK Bonds were upgraded but remain moderately underweight and Credit is downgraded to a moderate overweight after the narrowing credit spreads. 

      Upgraded,      Downgraded compared to previous quarter 

21



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 6 
 

  4 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

Source: Bloomberg Note: listed proxies have been used for Infrastructure, Property and Private Equity 

Source: Bloomberg (NB: assumes dividends were reinvested),  Note: listed proxies have been used for Infrastructure, Property and Private Equity. 

BROAD ASSET CLASSES 
Table 2: Growth/Income/Stabilising Assets  

 
Model Score1 View Investment Notes 

GROWTH 2 Overweight 
Neutral valuations remain from previous quarter but significant 

positive sentiment increase 

INCOME 1 Overweight Safe Income in economic downturn , neutral valuation and 
downside protection 

STABILISING -3 Underweight 
Low/Negative expected return, recession priced in, significant 

negative sentiment impact 
 
Table 3: Historical Annualised Returns (* except for the 3 months, where total return is used) 

 
3 months* One year Three years Five years Ten years 

Twenty 
years Bloomberg Ticker 

GLOBAL EQUITIES  13.4% 1.1% 11.7% 6.3% 10.5% 4.8% FTAW01 Index 

PRIVATE EQUITY 25.2% 11.6% 19.3% 13.9% 15.6% n/a IPRV LN Index 

PROPERTY 21.5% 18.9% 8.2% 9.6% 16.2% 10.8% REIT INDEX 

INFRASTRUCTURE 18.0% 12.2% 9.1% 4.7% 9.4% n/a SPGTIND Index 

HIGH YIELD 6.8% 4.3% 6.6% 5.6% 13.6% 9.8% HL00 Index 

UK GILTS 5.4% 6.0% 3.2% 6.0% 5.7% 5.5% G0L0 Index 

UK INDEX-LINKED 9.4% 10.0% 8.4% 9.6% 8.8% 6.9% G0LI Index 

GOLD 0.2% 0.3% 5.8% 7.3% 6.5% 9.9% XAUGBP Index 
 
 
Table 4: Correlation Matrix (5 year historical correlation) 

 FTSE All 
World AW 

TR GBP 

iShares 
Listed 

Private 
DJ REIT 

S&P 
Global 
Infra 

Sterling 
High-Yield 

UK Gilt UK Inf-Link 
Gilt 

XAUGBP 
Index 

GLOBAL EQUITIES 1 0.654 0.550 0.774 0.494 -0.248 -0.140 -0.265 

PRIVATE EQUITY   1 0.363 0.489 0.408 -0.178 -0.103 0.008 

PROPERTY   0.815 1 0.670 0.224 0.236 0.197 0.060 

INFRASTRUCTURE   0.033 0.029 1 0.419 0.030 0.072 -0.015 

HIGH YIELD 0.778 0.058 0.082 0.418 1 -0.013 -0.002 -0.189 

UK GILTS 0.617 -0.16 -0.09 0.353 0.455 1 0.827 0.443 

UK INDEX-LINKED 0.525 0.267 0.203 0.218 0.657 0.31 1 0.388 

GOLD -0.231 0.407 0.349 -0.11 0.004 0.05 0.085 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

                                                             
1 Refers to LGPSC model as described on page 6  

LGPSC’s view on “Broad Asset Classes”: 
 LGPSC favours Growth Assets due to significant positive sentiment for Growth Assets, high cash levels 

available and the lack of alternative investment opportunities. 
 Equity markets have rallied strongly. Most asset classes have seen good returns above inflation over the last 

three, five, ten and twenty years.  
 Commodities and Gold provide good diversification against equity markets and could be added as a 

diversifier to the portfolio.  
 Fixed Income can be allocated to the portfolio for the same reason, but we remain underweight, given its 

poor valuation, low expected returns and the unsupportive economic environment. 
 

22



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 6 
 

  5 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

GROWTH ASSET VIEW 
Table 5: Growth Assets 

 
Model Score1 View Investment Notes 

UK Equities 0 Neutral 
Positive sentiment and neutral valuation, but economic and political 

risks leave an environment of uncertainty 

NORTH AMERICA 
Equities -2 Underweight 

Expensive valuations are back, and economic risk is higher 
compared to other geographies. Sentiment now negative 

EUROPE Equities  4 Overweight 
Good dividend yields, attractive valuations, and positive sentiment, 

but economic outlook remains unstable 

JAPAN Equities 4 Overweight 
Attractive valuation and economics have turned positive, but trade 

war consequences remain, sentiment is neutral 

ASIA PAC Equities 0 Neutral 
Economic growth potential, valuations have become more 

expensive and fears of trade war may overshadow the potential 

GEMs Equities -3 Underweight 
Mixed picture, new negative sentiment and economic growth 

concerns, expensive valuation 

PRIVATE EQUITY -4 Underweight 
High investment cost, sentiment negative, long-term economic 

outlook uncertain, we recommend selective positioning in quality 
and stable companies 

COMMODITIES 1 Overweight 
Neutral sentiment and exposure to weakening dollar but provides 

no yield 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
INCOME ASSET VIEW 
Table 6: Income Assets 

 
Model Score1 View Investment Notes 

CREDIT -1 Underweight 
Economic play, valuations more expensive in this quarter 

and sentiment turning negative 

EMERGING MARKET 
DEBT 1 Overweight Economic play has strengthened and valuation remains 

good, but sentiment is negative 

PROPERTY 0 Neutral Relative value, inflation protection, sentiment remains 
negative and high investment costs 

INFRASTRUCTURE 1 Overweight 
Relative value, inflation protection, positive sentiment but 
high investment costs, renewables & sustainable exposure 

INSURANCE-LINKED -1 Underweight 
Two bad years and positive sentiment but high investment 

costs and structural concerns 

 

 

 

 

 

LGPSC’s view on “Growth Assets”: 
 General recession concerns could have an impact on Growth Assets, with Private Equity suffering the most 

due to more expensive valuations. But sentiment is positive, and with high cash levels available and possible 
reversing interest rate environment alternatives are few for that cash burning in investors pockets. 

 GEMs remain “Underweight” due to valuations looking less attractive and change in sentiment to negative. 
 Japan and Europe are the most attractive regions in terms of cheap valuations, but earnings have reached a 

high reducing the general potential for growth assets. 
 UK changes from “Overweight” to “Neutral” due to lower positive sentiment though political uncertainty 

could represent a great buying opportunity. 

LGPSC’s view on “Income Assets”: 
 LGPSC retains its favourable view on Income Assets. Emerging market debt “Overweight” view remains 

mainly based on economic outlook, but Credit has been downgraded due to negative sentiment.  
 Property is downgraded by one notch to “Neutral” based on recession outlook, and Infrastructure remains 

“Overweight”. 
 Please note that negative sentiment in our model means that the asset is liked/overweight by investors. 

 

23



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 6 
 

  6 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

STABILISING ASSET VIEW 
Table 7: Stabilising Assets 

 
Model Score1 View Investment Notes 

UK BONDS -1 Underweight 
UK bonds improve due to more attractive valuations and 

neutral sentiment but remain Underweight 

INDEX-LINKED -2 Underweight 
Negative expected return and concern about long 

duration/interest rates 

US BONDS 0 Neutral 
Fair value but increasing deficit and monetary easing, 

inflation risk and economic growth slowing 

JP BONDS -5 Underweight 
Poor valuation and Central Bank policy supportive market, 

in addition to currency risk 

EU BONDS -4 Underweight 
Negative expected return, economic growth vulnerable due 

to political uncertainty and EU bank debt issue 

IG CORPORATE BONDS 0 Neutral 
Corp spreads neutral and anchored to government bond 

yields, but general good credit outlook 

GOLD 2 Overweight Favoured Stabilising Asset, when we do not like other 
Stabilising Assets 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
INVESTMENT FACTORS (EQUITIES) 
Factor based investing provides a way of potentially adding outperformance relative to a market-cap-based 
approach at a much lower cost than active investing. It recognises that the market-cap-based index does not provide 
the best risk-adjusted return for a portfolio given its natural overweight to momentum, large cap and expensive 
stocks. In the following factor model, we have taken the seven factors of value, growth, income growth, size (small 
cap), ESG, low volatility and momentum and then applied the same criteria we use to consider other asset classes in 
our model assessing each factor for valuation, sentiment, economic suitability, risk suitability, investment cost and 
currency. Investment cost in factor-based investing is low relative to the other asset classes, though momentum 
factors (given their higher turnover) and ESG factors (given their higher index costs) are both scored neutral. Given 
all strategies are global, the currency scores are all neutral. Note that ESG and quality share similar characteristics. 
Climate change as a factor is little correlated to specific economic cycles given its long-term investment impact 
horizon of 10-20 years. The graph below summarises the preferred overweight factor(s) depending on the various 
stages of the economic cycle. 
Economic Cycle and Investment Factors: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LGPSC’s view on “Stabilising Assets”: 
 LGPSC remains “Underweight” for most Stabilising Assets mainly based on the low/negative yields but 

recognises that they should represent a proportion of the portfolio given the downside protection they can 
offer. 

 “Underweight” view remains for most geographies, in particular for Japan. Only US bonds are “Neutral” due 
to improved valuations and the US economic outlook. US Feds decision to move to easing indicate 
significant change to this. 

 Gold offers good diversification and a safe haven in turbulent markets and protects against political and 
economic risks.  

Boom Slowdown Recession Recovery 

Positive 
economic 
growth 

Negative 
economic 
growth 

Growth 
Value 
Momentum 
Low Size 

Quality/ESG 
Low Volatility 

Growth 
Value 
Momentum 
Low Size 

Quality/ESG 
Low Volatility 

 
Now 

24



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 6 
 

  7 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

Table 8: Investment Factors 

FACTOR ASSET VIEW 
Table 7: Investment Factors 

 
Model Score1 View Investment Notes 

Value 3 Overweight 
Very attractive valuations, unloved and most favourite 

factor 

Growth 0 Neutral Poor sentiment and increased risks 

Size -3 Underweight 
Concern with slowing economy, negative sentiment and 

market risk 

Momentum 2 Overweight 
Overweight based on current attractive valuation and 

sentiment 

Low Volatility 1 Overweight 
Poor long-term performance but has become more 
attractive due to possible change in economic cycle  

Quality/ESG -1 Underweight 
Positioning in light of potential economic slowdown and 

protection against market declines, with increased negative 
sentiment 

 

 
ABOUT LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED’S SCORING MODEL 
LGPSC’s model scores each asset class against its valuation, sentiment, economic outlook, market risk, currency and 
investment cost (scored between -2 and +2). Positive scores suggest (strong) overweight and negative scores, 
(strong) underweight positions. Where a zero is assigned, our view is neutral. The scores for the different assessment 
areas, e.g. valuation, sentiment etc. are then added to derive the final score for that asset class. We are constantly 
developing this scoring to include other variables such as ESG measures and technical factors.  
 
RECESSION WATCH 
Key indicators for a recession have worsened over the last quarter with 1) a inverted yield curve, 2) a stabilising 
employment and 3) the changing monetary environment in the US. The amount of corporate debt is a worry in 
certain markets alongside EU banks’ non-performing loans. Chinese domestic corporate leverage is of concern and 
some areas of the high yield market could pose problems especially if rates were to rise more sharply than expected. 
Auto finance is also showing some signs of 
stress. The US growth cycle has been rather 
long and increased asset volatility may 
indicate the first signs of a recession in the 
medium term.   
 
LPGS Central Limited View –We see the 
likelihood of a recession as medium over the next 
12 months. 2020 could mark the start of the next 
recession. 
 
 
 
 

LGPSC’s view on “Investment Factors”: 
 LGPSC’s view on Investment Factors remains broadly the same in light of increased recession concerns, only 

Low Volatility has changed to “Overweight” and Quality/ESG to “Underweight”. 
 In light of the current economic cycle, market risk and sentiment, the favoured factor is “Value”. 

 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Ja
n-

15
M

ar
-1

5
M

ay
-1

5
Ju

l-1
5

Se
p-

15
N

ov
-1

5
Ja

n-
16

M
ar

-1
6

M
ay

-1
6

Ju
l-1

6
Se

p-
16

N
ov

-1
6

Ja
n-

17
M

ar
-1

7
M

ay
-1

7
Ju

l-1
7

Se
p-

17
O

ct
-1

7
D

ec
-1

7
Fe

b-
18

A
pr

-1
8

Ju
n-

18
A

ug
-1

8
O

ct
-1

8
D

ec
-1

8
Fe

b-
19

A
pr

-1
9

Ju
n-

19

1 year US recession risk

25



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 6 
 

  8 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

Q1 LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED MARKET UPDATE2  
The second quarter of 2019 again showed a positive picture across the globe in equities, pushing certain markets to 
all-time highs. The S&P 500 rose by 3.8%, closely followed by a performance of 3.64% by the Eurostoxx 50 (all in local 
currencies). The FTSE 100 also enjoyed good performance during the quarter returning 2.01%. Japan and Asia Pacific 
both lost -1.75%/ and -0.26% respectively.  

* 
The US Michigan Consumer Sentiment is still above its long-term average indicating that positive momentum 
continues. After the negative equity performance in Q4 2018, the US Michigan Consumer Sentiment fell, but has 
since recovered. Jobless claims and a small business survey (the Small Business Optimism Index), remain positive 
suggesting a good economic mood, although overshadowed by a rising risk of recession which is now increasingly 
highlighted by macroeconomic research. The VIX has remained at lower levels in Q2 2019 and is showing a 
downward trend, indicating that the market is less uncertain and worried. 

* 
In Q2 2019, the UK carried on being dominated by politics and Brexit, with the UK economy feeling the strain of a 
slowdown. The Bank of England cut its forecast for economic growth in the second quarter to zero. The UK and the 
EU agreed a second delay to Brexit, it is due to happen on 31 October 2019. Cross-party talks between the 
Government and Labour to try to find a compromise ended without an agreement. 

* 
The Oil price closed -2.7% down compared to Q1 2019 after it had rallied in the first quarter by 27.12%, reversing Q4 
2018 losses. OPEC is aiming to further boost oil prices buy extending production cuts until March 2020. Gold prices 
increased by 9.1% over the course of the Q2 period. Sterling has strengthened by 2.6% against the USD over Q2 but 
the direction of travel remains uncertain with Brexit.  

* 
The US Federal Reserve Board is expected to cut interest rates now, with looming recession risks. Benchmark US 
yields fell by 49bps amid concern over the economic outlook. In the UK 10-year yields have dropped from 1.0% to 
0.83% driven by the ongoing Brexit uncertainty, recession risks and stronger equity markets.   

* 
In Q3 we expect news to be dominated by Brexit, slowing Chinese growth and more talks about recession risks. Trade 
war tensions seemed to have eased after the recent G20 meeting but it would take little to have picked up in tension 
again, and inflation pressure is ceasing but uncertainty about the economic outlook is high. 
 
LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED Q1 RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT UPDATE  
We have previously reported on growing regulatory risk in the mega-cap technology companies, including the 
FAANG stocks, whose size and growth has made them important parts of institutional portfolios. Over $130bn in 
market value was lost in Apple, Amazon, Alphabet and Facebook in June when reports emerged that two US 
authorities (the Department of Justice and the Federal Trade Commission) had agreed on a division of investigatory 
jurisdictions. These developments compound the regulatory climate in the EU, which has levied fines for anti-
competitive behaviour. The companies are also under pressure for content management, data security, and data 
privacy, with Facebook’s Sir Nick Clegg attempting to get on the front foot by stating that regulatory intervention 
would be welcomed. Those in the running to be the Democrat Party candidate at the 2020 US presidential election 
have promised tough action, including breaking up the technology majors. Campaign trail rhetoric, especially in 
modern politics, can be taken with a pinch of salt, but we do see an increasing threat level for a sector that has long 
been in favour with investors.  

* 

The UK Treasury Select Committee has established an inquiry that asks, “What steps have UK banks, asset 
managers, and pension funds taken to ‘green’ their business models, investments strategies and balance sheets, 
taking in to account climate and transition risks?”3 A similar inquiry into the largest UK pension funds was conducted 

                                                             
2 Performance for the quarter measured over period of 31/03/2019 to 30/06/2019 
3 https://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/treasury-committee/inquiries1/parliament-2017/decarbonisation-of-uk-economy-and-green-finance-17-19/ 

 

26



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 6 
 

  9 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

by the Environmental Audit Committee last year. The outgoing Theresa May has promised to put into legislation a 
2050 zero net carbon pledge for the UK. Green advocates have criticised the plan as taking action too late on, and 
for failing to include the GHG emissions associated with imports. On the other side, some have criticised the plan as 
too drastic, or as too expensive (for which the current UK Chancellor of the Exchequer received a rapid rebuke). The 
index provider FTSE Russell has made a subtle change to its index classification by re-naming ‘oil and gas’ to ‘non-
renewable energy’, in a move reflecting the increasing vilification of the sector. Also, this quarter, the EU has 
published its proposed ‘green taxonomy’: a list of the sectors and products required for a transition to a low carbon 
economy. As we report in our Quarterly Stewardship Report, the taxonomy is not without its critics, but the 
developments should have a facilitating effect (by establishing a common language and a common set of standards 
that define ‘sustainable’) and a stimulating effect (through a kind of Say’s Law where the supply of sustainable 
finance products will likely lead to increased demand for them). No other region in the world has a comparable 
regime for sustainable finance. 

* 

Iron ore prices have breached $100 per tonne and hit a five-year high in the first week of July. Prices have climbed 
following a supply shock at Brazilian miner Vale earlier in the year, where the tragic collapse of a tailings dam claimed 
over 200 lives and led to the closure of several operational sites. The Brazilian authorities have recommended by 
2021 the banning of ‘upstream’ tailings dams in response to the tragedy. Upstream dams, which collect tailings waste 
in waterlogged pits that are successively built upon to contain ever-greater levels of tailings waste, number almost 
100 in Brazil alone. They are already banned in neighbouring countries including Peru and Chile. Vale’s competitors 
have benefitted from the rising iron ore price, which was further boosted by Australian supply cuts caused by 
extreme weather events in March. Staying with risks associated with tailings, LGPSC is continuing to support calls 
for greater disclosure of safety risks and backed letters to 655 companies with requests for data. Some respondents 
have disclosed tailings dams that pose ‘extreme risks’ to employees and downstream population. Investor trust in 
the mining sector may not be taken as a guarantee. In an unrelated incident, 43 persons are reported to have lost 
their lives at a mining concession owned (via subsidiaries) by Glencore Plc. The mine is located in Kolwesi, DRC, and 
deals with thousands of illegal artisanal miners trespassing on the concession daily, the intention of whom is to mine 
commodities without supervision or appropriate safety equipment and sell the product to unregulated middlemen. 
Glencore stated that there has been no impact to its production as a result of the tragedy.  

RISK ANALYSIS 
Table 8: Risk in order of probability 

RISK LGPSCL 
Possibility 

LGPSCL 
Impact Change Comment LGPSC favoured assets to protect 

against the risk 

EQUITY 
DOWNTURN 

Moderate Moderate 
 

Exaggerated growth expectations, profit 
taking in the equity market, increased 

recession risk and limited monetary policy 
stimulus available could see equity markets 

fall. 

Safe haven assets such as 
government bonds and gold, 
increased demand for equity 
downside protection makes 

volatility rise, buy volatility early, 
as short-term measure protect 

through selling futures 

BREXIT High High 
 

 Brexit could still hit the UK economy due 
to lost trade revenue from the EU and 

continue having a weakening impact on 
Sterling which could cause rising exports 

outside the EU in the medium term. 
Increasing uncertainty, the EU’s 

unwillingness to re-negotiate a deal and the 
UK parliament not achieving decision-

making progress still make a hard Brexit an 
option. 

A hard Brexit would have a 
negative impact, but there is also 

the possibility of no Brexit too 
which is why LGPS has a balanced 

view on UK equities 

GLOBAL RECESSION  Moderate Moderate  

Recession watch factors are pointing 
towards a possible global recession in 2020 
fuelled by US growth stagnating, Chinese 

debt leverage and elevated interest rates in 
the US. 

Factors such as Quality/ESG and 
low volatility perform relatively 

well in a recession.  
Stabilising and income assets will 

outperform if economy enters 
recession 

MONETARY POLICY 
SURPRISES  

Moderate Moderate 
 

The inflation outlook is mixed, with some 
forecasters believing that it will rise and 
require higher interest rates, and some 

believing that slowing economic growth 
will keep it contained. The possibility of a 

Underweight Fixed Income, 
Overweight Infrastructure, 

Overweight Growth Assets and 
high-quality credit 

 

27



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 6 
 

  10 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

RISK LGPSCL 
Possibility 

LGPSCL 
Impact Change Comment LGPSC favoured assets to protect 

against the risk 

global recession adds further doubt into the 
mix.  Low levels of interest rates in most 

countries mean that there is limited 
monetary policy action available in the 

event of low inflation levels. Markets could 
be surprised by monetary policy in either 

direction. 

POLITICAL RISKS Moderate Moderate 
 

Euro break up risks are reduced due to 
negative Brexit example (the UK). 

However, there is a considerable amount of 
other political risks arounds the globe, such 

as North Korea, tensions in India and 
domestic US political risks. 

Overweight protective assets such 
as Gold, non-Euro assets, buy 

Sterling, buy US Dollar 

FAANG RISK Medium Medium  

Technology companies could be impacted 
by new taxes or other pressures as a result 
of increased regulatory focus. Recent fines 

issued over technology companies could hit 
further companies. In addition, technology 
companies are exposed to increased Cyber 

Risk as well as the technology market 
reaching a saturation point. 

Underweight technology 

ISOLATION & 
PROTECTION/CHINA High High 

 

General trade war concerns from 2018 carry 
on their trend in 2019 with increased 

negative sentiment and worries about the 
consequences. Negative consequence for 
China could be expected from potential 
boondoggle projects designed to target 

employment levels alongside the general 
overleveraged China concerns. 

Slowdown of economic growth 
and de-stabilising effect, 

overweight Gold and insurance 
linked, overweight US equities, 

underweight GEMs 

CREDIT RISK/DEBT 
ISSUES 

Medium Moderate  
UK political risks are increasing, EU banks 

have not taken enough non-performing 
loan action, China and Automotive debt are 

concerns at present. 

Underweight EU and China, 
underweight selective credit, such 
as Automotive. Incorporating ESG 

reduces Credit Risk. 

CLIMATE-RELATED 
TRANSITION RISK  Medium  Moderate  

 
- Generic Carbon price at 10-year high 
- UNPRI is highlighting risk 
- Investment gap in transitioning the 
energy system equal to 2.4% of GDP 

Underweight Energy & GEMs, 
overweight Renewables and 

sustainable investment themes 
such as Infrastructure  

CLIMATE-RELATED 
PHYSICAL RISK  Medium  Moderate  

 

- US Billon Dollar Disaster Event Frequency: 
Average based on last 5 years, modestly 
above average based on last 38 years.  
- Catastrophic Economic losses for EMEA 
for 2018 well under 10-year average. 
- Catastrophic Economic losses for US for 
2018 at record low compared to 10-year 
average. 

Hold a well-diversified portfolio  

 

 

 

 

 

LGPSC’s view on “Scenario Risks”:  
 LGPSC’s view is that with a well-diversified portfolio, the majority of key risks from these scenarios should 

balance out any strong negative impacts. Alternatively, short term asset adjustments can be made to the 
portfolio to seek protection or a derivative overlay can hedge out undesired negative impacts and provide 
protection. 

 It is our view that the next 12 months should produce a positive return for Income Assets and will probably 
see low to negative returns for Stabilising Assets. Our opinion is that fixed income does not offer good risk 
adjusted returns for pension fund money at this time and should remain underweight. Growth Assets have 
become more attractive due to a change in sentiment and the lack of other investments offering return 
alternatives. As a result, we have reduced the equity downturn risk.  

 Tensions between US and China resurfaced stronger and hence trade war risk between China and the US 
has been increased. 

 Please note that this table and comments will be updated by the Investment Team for the next quarter.  
 

28



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 6 
 

  11 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

Gordon Ross 
Deputy CIO, 
ID Fixed Income 
Gordon.Ross@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 167 
 
 

SPECIAL FEATURE 1: CURRENCY RISK 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LGPSC Thoughts on GBP valuation 

We continue to believe that GBP is fundamentally and technically cheap at current 
levels on both a valuation and technical basis. 

Obvious catalysts to the current valuation levels have been (and will continue to be) 
some or all the following:  

Brexit uncertainty (Deal. No deal, ‘Soft’, ‘Hard’, Before October 31st deadline or a further lengthy 
postponement, whether it happens at all?);  

Conservative leadership ‘battle’; 

Potential General Election; Possible Labour Government  

Sizeable current account deficit (UK) 

Sterling versus US Dollar (Cable) 5-year chart – low @ 1.1841 7th Oct 2016   Post Brexit vote on election 
fear of Labour Govt. 

Source: Bloomberg 

The recent lows of 2016 (1.1841) reflected some of the fears above and puts a potential ‘floor’ in the 
value of GBP, having been hit after the Brexit vote and following the last election when the markets 
were beginning to discount the possibility of a Labour government. 

Currency markets like ‘big’ numbers and 1.25 and 1.20 would certainly fit this description. There is likely 
to be a good initial support level that will hold firm at least for a period as all the option hedgers try to 
protect positions. Such levels typically get tested three times before they break, but many times are 
seen to be good support (or resistance) levels, from which a market will bounce (fall). 

GBP Trade Weighted 29-year chart – further evidence of just how weak GBP is currently (almost a 
‘Lehman Low’) 

Source: Bloomberg 

29



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 6 
 

  12 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 Source: Bloomberg 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

On a broader measure, the long-term Sterling trade-weighted index is also approaching good support 
levels going back to 1990. This gives further comfort to the possibility that current levels have a lot of 
negatives already priced in. Interestingly the number of ‘Cable’ shorts has reduced over the last month 
to more ‘normal’ levels having been one of the biggest positions placed over Q1 and ahead of the original 
end March Brexit deadline, although they (the short positions) have been increased following PM Teresa 
May’s announcement that she would stand down in June. 

Model forecast of Distribution of Analysts Estimates for Dec 2019     1.3500  (shows 1 STD Dev) 

 

 

The profile shows the forecasts of external commentators on the future value of ‘Cable’ for the end of 
2019. This is a ‘live’ survey that changes daily, but currently shows a mean forecast around 1.34.  

Market action since the beginning of the year has seen Cable trading in a relatively tight range between 
1.27 to 1.32 with the January and May declines directly linked to political events (The ‘No ‘ vote in 
parliament for May’s exit plan and the recent ‘when will she go’ uncertainty) 

Sterling versus US Dollar (Cable) Year to date candle stick chart chart – as at 4 July 2019  

 

A large amount of bad news has been priced into GBP at current levels. We believe that the bigger risks 
would be on the upside (for GBP to rally). The longer and messier that the Conservative leadership 
contest becomes, the more likely that the GBP short positions will be re-established. Any favourable 
news will lead these to be covered quickly and participants to join any bullish momentum that ensues. 
Support levels around 1.25 and 1.20 could hold (?).  

Recently, the US markets have discounted the possibility of the FED providing 75 basis points of rate 
cuts over the remainder of 2019 which has the potential to put downward pressure on USD on carry 
terms? In addition, President Trump has turned his focus from complaining about the FED’s maintaining 
rates too high to implying that he may instruct the Treasury Department to sell USD to counter currency 
manipulation that he believes is being pursued by China and Europe. Were this to happen (and the US 
has not intervened in the currency markets since 2011), this could begin a weaker USD trend and may 
benefit GBP? 

 

Source: Bloomberg 

Source: Bloomberg 

30



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 6 
 

  13 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The above re-iterates the view expressed in the Q2 2019 LGPS Central Limited (LGPSC) Quarterly Tactical 
Asset Allocation report (attached): LGPSC’s view is that there is higher likelihood for GBP appreciating 
than depreciating against the USD, (USD to depreciate and Yen & Euro neutral). This is supported by the 
downside volatility currently being relatively high compared to the last 10 years cost of downside 
protection     

Option volatility (by delta) showing comparative cost of protection - higher cost of downside protection 

 

 

For example in relation to USD/GBP, trading near its historical lows, there could be an incentive to have 
an equity currency hedge ratio >50% given that movements in one direction are more likely than in the 
other, while maintaining or reducing the 50% hedge ratio for Euro and Yen. 

Nearer to home, the GBP/EUR continues to trade in a relatively tight trading range and has done since 
Q3 2017.  

Euro versus Sterling 5-year chart – low @ 0.6945 17th July 2017    

 

As explained above, GBP has been on a generally weakening tend, but Euro has had problems of its own 
over the period. Concerns about Italian political pressures and the weakening growth in Germany and 
other core European economies has led the European Central Bank (ECB) initially to delay any prospect 
of tighter monetary policy and in the last few months, to openly talk of the possibility of lower rates 
combined with the announcement of the September beginning of Targeted Long Term Refinancing 
Operations 3 (TLTRO 3). ECB rates are already negative with many core market (Germany, France, 
Netherlands) showing benchmark bond markets even beyond 10 years with negative yield and German 
10 year yields now yielding below the ECB deposit rate of minus 0.40 basis points. All these factors have 
kept the Euro relatively weak against the globally strong USD, and rangebound against GBP. 

 Source: Bloomberg 

Source: Bloomberg 

31



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 6 
 

  14 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

With the prospect of lower ECB rates and despite the uncertainties of Brexit and its possible effects on 
GBP, forecasters have estimates of the cross little changed into the end of 2019.  

In conclusion, the balance points to the risks that GBP is at the lower end of its current trading range 
and from technical and a positioning background, the risk trade is for a GBP rally, a direction that we 
believe is most likely. 

Source: Bloomberg 

32



15 
 

US Sovereign yield curve shows signs of inversion mainly due to US 
growth concerns and the US-China trade war provoking a more 
dovish policy stance. 

….. with initial jobless claims providing a similar positive 
picture b below long-term average and showing a falling 
trend. 

Consumer confidence remains well above average, with recent 
positive confidence pushing the average from 83 to 85 … 

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

US EU UK JP

CPI and forecast

2018 2019 2020 2021
0.75

0.85

0.95

1.05

1.15

1.25

1.35

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Sc
al

ed
 to

 1
00

%

FX - Trade weighted Indices

TWI USD TWI EUR

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

19
70

19
71

19
73

19
75

19
77

19
78

19
80

19
82

19
84

19
85

19
87

19
89

19
91

19
92

19
94

19
96

19
98

19
99

20
01

20
03

20
05

20
06

20
08

20
10

20
12

20
13

20
15

20
17

20
19

Initial Jobless Claims

45

70

95

120

2000 2002 2004 2006 2008 2010 2012 2014 2016 2018

Sentiment and Optimism

Michigan Consumer Sentiment Small Business Optimisim

-0.5

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3M 6M 1Y 2Y 3Y 5Y 7Y 10Y

Sovereign Yield Curves

US UK EU JPY

APPENDIX 1: ECONOMIC OUTLOOK  

  

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

US EU UK JP

Real GDP Growth and Forcast

2018 2019 2020 2021

Since last quarter the World Economy forecasts have been 
corrected downward for the EU and UK, whereas the US and 
Japan have remained stable. 

The trade-weighted strength of the Dollar has increase slightly 
after a period of stabilising. 

Source: Bloomberg, OECD, data as of 17/06/2019 

Inflation forecasts have not moved much since the last 
quarterly update and broadly remain the same across the 
globe.  

Average: 361 

Please read important information at the end of the report For professional clients only 

Average: 85 

33



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 6 
 

  16 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

The US has significantly outperformed the rest of the world since 
2009, since YTD markets have been relative stable across the 
Globe.  

The current S&P P/E is 18.9 slightly higher the previous quarter 
with 18.1 and remains below its long-term average. 

Implied volatility remains low and close to historical volatility 
indicating a confident equity market. 

Dividend yields show a slight upwards trend, with the UK 
showing a strong dividend yield over the last couple of years.  

M&A activity paints a similar picture to IPO deals and has seen 
an increase in deal activity compared to Q4 2018, in particular 
in the UK. 

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

3,500,000

4,000,000

4,500,000

5,000,000

5,500,000

De
al

 C
ou

nt

Vo
lu

m
e 

$m

Gobal M & A Activity

Deal Count Volume

0.3

0.8

1.3

1.8

2.3

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

Equity makret performance

S&P 500 Eurostoxx FTSE 100 Nikkei

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

20
02

20
03

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

Historical Dividend Yield

S&P 500 Eurostoxx 50 FTSE 100 Hang Seng

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

5

10

15

20

25

30

S&P 500 P/E against S&P Performance

Series1 Series2 0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

VIX Volatilty

Real Vol VIX

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

Performance of asset classes - Annualised 
returns %

Three years Five Years Ten Years Twenty Years

APPENDIX 2: MARKET OUTLOOK 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Average: 19.5 

Source: Bloomberg, OECD, data as of 17/06/2019 

Recent positive equity market performance has brought 1 
year performance in positive territory, over the long-term 
good returns can be observed across asset classes. 

For professional clients only Please read important information at the end of the report 
16 

P/E ratio S&P 500 

34



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 6 
 

  17 
Please read important information at the end of the report                                         For professional clients only 

Jason Fletcher 
CIO 
 
Jason.Fletcher@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 170 
 
 

Colin Pratt 
ID Manager of 
Managers 
 
Colin.Pratt@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 209 
 

 

David Evans 
ID Passive Equities 
 
David.Evans@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 199 

 
 

Michael Marshall 
Director of Responsible 
Investing & Engagement 
 
Michael.Marshall@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 193 
 

Omar Ghafur 
ID Private Equity 
 
 
Omar.Ghafur@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 177 

 
 

David Searle 
Communications Officer 
 
 
david.searle@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 201 

 
 

 0.75% nominal yield on UK 10yr Gilt is not a sufficient return to meet future 
liabilities which are inflation-linked 

 Rising inflation is bad for Gilt returns 
 Yields to turn upwards as multi-year lows are reversed 

 Expensive historically but good value versus bonds 
 Opportunities may arise from some global investors paring back interest in UK 
 Maturing pension schemes and better funding levels should support demand 
 Fears of nationalisation of infrastructure assets under a future Labour government 

could impact investment returns especially in light of political instability emanating 
from Brexit deal rejection 

 

 Heightened sensitivity to Brexit deterring some investors and slowing investment 
activity 

 Continued pressure on Retail valuations likely to accelerate as valuation 
departments assert their independence 

 Retail will present value at some point, just not yet 
 Occupational demand a mixed bag but slowing even in strongest sectors 
 Yield still attractive versus other asset classes 

 Fund raising environment remains robust, with substantial “dry powder” for 
investments; 

 Possibility of PE Managers overpaying for assets due to increased competition; 
 Favour PE downside protection (e.g. private debt) and high quality/low risk 
 Direct investment in defensive companies/sectors and/or upper quartile managers 
 Sell unattractive and legacy assets 

Mike Hardwick 
ID Property &  
Infrastructure 
 

Mike.Hardwick@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 552 089 
 

Vania Clayton 
Senior Portfolio Manager 
(Equity, Fixed Income, Derivatives) 
 
Vania.clayton@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 206 
 
 

Callum Campbell 
Head of Client Services & 
Stakeholder Relations 
 
Callum.Campbell@lgpccentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 204 
 
 

Gordon Ross 
Deputy CIO, 
ID Fixed Income 
Gordon.Ross@lgpscentral.co.uk 

Phone: 01902 916 167 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Sentiment for equities at extreme lows and positive sentiment to cash of extreme highs 
 Economic growth expectations set a low level with increased recession expectations 
 Valuations moderately expensive but attractive Dividend Yield of 2.9% in low interest rate environment 

APPENDIX 3: INVESTMENT IDEAS – MEET THE TEAM  

 

 
  

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please contact Callum Campbell, Head of Client Services and Stakeholder Relations, if you would like to discuss the 
views outlined in this report with LGPS Central’s Investment Directors  

Selective Overweight Private Equity (O. Ghafur) 1

Neutral property – Negative Outlook (M. Hardwick) Overweight infrastructure (M. Hardwick) 3 4
. 

Underweight Fixed Income (G. Ross) 2
. 

For professional clients only Please read important information at the end of the report 

17 

5 Overweight Equities (M. Hardwick) 

35



LGPS CENTRAL LIMITED TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION: ISSUE 6 
 

18 
 

GLOSSARY: 

GEMs   Global Emerging Markets 

ESG   Environmental, social and governance 

LTM   Last twelve months 

IG   Investment Grade 

VIX   S&P Implied Volatility Index 

IPO   Initial Public Offering 

OPEC   Organisation of Petroleum Exporting Countries 

FAANG   Facebook, Apple, Amazon, Netflix & Google 

UNPRI   Principles for Responsible Investment 

YTD   Year to date 

PE    Private Equity 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For professional clients only 
Please read important information at the end of the report 

36



15 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This document has been produced by LGPS Central Limited and is intended solely for information purposes. 
Any opinions, forecasts or estimates herein constitute a judgement, as at the date of this report, that is subject 
to change without notice. It does not constitute an offer or an invitation by or on behalf of LGPS Central 
Limited to any person to buy or sell any security. Any reference to past performance is not a guide to the 
future. The information and analysis contained in this 
publication have been compiled or arrived at from sources believed to be reliable, but LGPS Central Limited 
does not make any representation as to their accuracy or completeness and does not accept any liability from 
loss arising from the use thereof. The opinions and conclusions expressed in this document are solely those of 
the author. This document may not be produced, either in whole or part, without the written permission of 
LGPS Central Limited. 
 
All information is prepared as of 18.06.2019, if not stated otherwise. 
 
This document is intended for PROFESSIONAL CLIENTS only. 
 
LGPS Central Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 
Registered in England Registered No: 10425159. 
Registered Office: Mander House, Mander Centre, Wolverhampton, WV1 3NB 

For professional clients only 

37



This page is intentionally left blank



Quarterly Risk and Return Analysis  

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund  Period ending 30th June 2019

Specialists in Investment Risk and Return Evaluation 

39

ctuohy_1
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



 

 

 

 
                                                                                     

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                Specialists in Investment Risk and Return Evaluation  
 

 

Portfolio Evaluation Ltd Market Commentary Q2 2019 (Sterling) 

 
After a positive first quarter and year most markets continued with positive returns, albeit at a more subdued level, in the quarter ended June 2019. The markets 
continue upwards, even after a small equity correction in May that was followed by a sharp recovery in June despite lower economic growth and lower corporate 
earnings growth. Some of this could be due to continued global economic growth (albeit slower) supported by dovish central bank policy, continuing low inflation and 
positive consumer demand (it should be noted that there is in the developed world a lower supply of available workers).  The positive global outlook this quarter saw 
growth stocks continue to outperform value but the difference between the two was less than in periods last year. 
 
It would appear that markets are set to remain in a late market cycle phase for a while given the economic growth and it is not uncommon for markets to produce 
positive returns in this phase of the market; however this can be more volatile. Looking forwards market commentators continue to expect lower global economic 
growth and corporate earnings growth with the Eurozone looking particularly vulnerable. Many investors seem to expect growth to continue into 2020 and potentially 
to 2021 as the outlook for a recession gets moved back due partly positive central bank actions and benign inflation. However despite the last 6 months many market 
commentators are discussing more defensive strategies going forwards, and many are also viewing emerging markets positively. Commentators are also investing more 
in bonds to secure income and as a defensive move. 
 

 

1

40



 

 

 

 
                                                                                     

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                Specialists in Investment Risk and Return Evaluation  
 

 

 
Within the UK the obsession and lack of resolution with Brexit has continued through yet another quarter. This continues to lower the economic growth outlook and 
reduce the willingness of both companies and investment managers to invest in the UK. The ‘high street’ sector continues to struggle with high costs and lower revenues 
whilst business is still reviewing how to proceed in the future. Despite posting significant equity market gains the concerns about the future outlook helps to explain the 
relatively lack lustre performance of UK stockmarkets when compared to many others.  
 

 
 
 
Market volatility has continued to increase as a result of the outlook and in particular the risk levels between asset classes has also increased as diversification benefits 
reduce. Many commentators expect this to continue throughout 2019. 
 
For further information 
If you would like further information about the topics contained in this newsletter or would like to discuss your investment performance requirements please contact Nick Kent or 
Deborah Barlow    Tel: +44 (0)1937 841434 (e-mail: nick.kent@portfolioevaluation.net) or visit our website at www.portfolioevaluation.net.   Please note that all numbers, comments and ideas 

contained in this document are for information purposes only and as such are not investment advice in any form. Please remember that past performance is not a guide to future performance. 

2

41

mailto:nick.kent@portfolioevaluation.net
http://www.portfolioevaluation.net/


Client: Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

Manager: Multi-manager

Mandate: Total Fund

Asset Class: Combined Assets

Benchmark: LCC - Total Fund Index

Inception: 31-Mar-2016

Mkt Val: £4.5bn

Total Fund Overview

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

Report Period: Quarter Ending June 2019

0.8

5 Yr Since Mar 16 (p.a.)YTD 1 Yr 3 Yr 10Yr

3.1 3.1 6.4 8.7

Excess Return Analysis (%)

9.8

QTR

10.6

-1.0 0.5

1 Yr 3 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr Mar 16

Portfolio Return 3.2 3.2 5.4 9.2

Benchmark Return

Excess Return 0.1 0.1

Active Risk 1.0 1.5 1.6

Portfolio Risk 6.4 5.0 5.7

Benchmark Risk 6.1 5.0 5.3

All returns for periods in excess of 1 year are annualised. The portfolio return is net.  

-1.2

-1.0

-0.8

-0.6

-0.4

-0.2

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

% % 

%%
Aggressive

Active Plus

Active

Core

Indexed

Active Risk

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

Ex-Post Active Risk Analysis (%)

Expected Active 
Risk Ranges

Ex-Post Active Risk measures the volatility of the actual excess returns achieved by the Portfolio/Fund.
Excess Return Consistency Analysis measures the frequency of the Portfolio/Fund’s outperformance (Blue) and underperformance (Red) versus its benchmark, calcula ted using monthly (or quarterly if indicated) returns since inception.

2.6%

5.1%

18.0%

12.8%

41.0%

5.1% 5.1%

10.3%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

40.0%

45.0%

50.0%

< -0.75 -0.75 to -0.51 -0.50 to -0.26 -0.25 to -0.01 0.00 to 0.25 0.26 to 0.50 0.51 to 0.75 > 0.75

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 %

Range of Excess Returns - Since inception

Excess Return Consistency Analysis

3

42



Market Value: 4.5bn

#

Attribution to Total Fund Excess Return Analysis

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Quarter Ended 30th June 2019

100.0

100.0

0.3

0.0

0.3

Total Fund ex 

Hedge 

(Gross)

0.3

3.6

3.3

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.0

0.1

0.0

0.00.1

0.0

4.1

Cash

0.0

0.2

0.2

0.7

0.0

0.7

4.1

0.0

Total 

Alternatives

3.4

1.7

1.7

8.6

Millennium 

Currency

-0.2

-0.2

0.0

12.3

0.1

3.4

Total Other 

Opportunities

4.0

8.9

Total 

Targeted 

Return

3.5

1.2

3.0

2.4

2.4

12.4

0.5

0.0

25.5

0.3

24.7

24.4

0.3

0.1

0.0

25.5

0.0

10.0

10.0

0.4

0.0

11.4

0.4

16.5

16.5

4.7

9.2

26.5

24.7 15.54.6

4.0

0.1

98.9

0.1

44.1

44.0

45.6

44.0

0.0

-0.1

0.0

99.3 99.3

5.4

Asset Allocation 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess Return 

(%)

0.0

44.0

Excess Return

44.0 10.0

0.1

-0.2

44.8100.0

98.9

-0.1

4.0

45.1

4.7

Excess Return

100.0

3.2 4.43.3

3.1

Total Fund 

(Net)
Total Equity

-0.3

Benchmark Return 3.3

0.1

Total Fund ex 

Hedge (Net)

0.2

Total Fund 

(Gross)

Total Real 

Income

0.2 -0.2

1.2

100.0 24.8

0.2

-0.1

0.3

5.2

0.0

Portfolio Return

Benchmark Start

Benchmark End 100.0

Portfolio Start

100.0Portfolio End

3.1

100.0

-0.2

0.4

0.6

9.3

0.0

0.0

10.0

26.5

0.0 0.0

0.6

2.1

1.5

15.6

1.4

6.2

-4.8

1.5

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

100.0

100.0 11.4

Stock Selection

100.0

100.0

3.5

0.2

0.0

-0.2 -0.2

Total Credit 

and EMM 

Debt

0.2

0.0

Total Private 

Equity

Total 

Property

0.0

0.0 0.0

Total Equity 

ex Hedge

Total Inflation 

Linked

0.0

0.0

1.5

2.5

3.4

0.0

0.0

-0.3

0.0

0.3

0.6

-0.3

0.0

0.3

0.6

-5.0

-2.5

0.0

2.5

5.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

Net Exposure Start

The Returns Summary details the Portfolio, Benchmark and Excess Returns. The Excess Returns are plotted. The Asset Allocation Summary details the weights held by the portfolio and benchmark in each asset class/manager. The green plots are the over/underweight exposures of the Fund (v Fund benchmark) at the beginning and end of the period.  The Attribution to Excess Return, identifies how each asset 
class/manager has contributed to the overall excess return of the Total Fund.  It is broken down into Asset Allocation (how successful the decision to over/underweight each asset class was) and then into Stock Selection (how well each manager/s decisions have performed).  The Asset Allocation plus the Stock Selection excess returns are all additive and equal the Total Excess Return of the Fund.

Net Exposure End

-0.3

0.0

0.3

0.6

4

43



Market Value: 4.5bn

5.2

5.4

44.1

-0.1

12.4

12.7

-0.1

13.0

5.3

2.7

0.0

-0.1

5.0

5.0

0.0

Attribution to Total Equity Fund Excess Return Analysis

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Quarter Ended 30th June 2019

L&G - North 

American 

Equity

0.0

6.5

6.4

-0.1

0.0

-0.1

0.0

0.0 -0.2-0.1

2.5

0.0

13.0

0.0

4.04.0

0.0 0.0

4.2

5.6

4.0

2.6

0.0

32.1

32.0

3.1

2.9

2.9

2.5

44.0

44.044.0

3.35.5

7.232.6

7.0

32.0

7.3

0.2

3.3

3.1

0.0

7.0

Benchmark Start

Benchmark Return

5.4

44.0

44.8

Asset Allocation 0.0

Stock Selection 0.2

0.0

Excess Return

100.0

Benchmark End 100.0

0.2

100.0

Portfolio Start

Portfolio End

Excess Return

100.0

Portfolio Return

4.7

4.0

4.1

3.13.1

1.9

0.7

3.6

-4.8

1.4

6.2

4.6

0.0

Total Fund 

(Gross)

L&G - UK 

Equity

L&G - 

Total 

Passive 

Equity

-0.20.0

Total 

Equity ex 

Hedge

-0.2

-0.10.0

0.0 0.0

0.00.0

0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

Total 

Private 

Equity

L&G - 

European 

Equity

-0.1

7.9

8.0

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

2.6

2.5

L&G - 

Japanese 

Equity

4.4

4.7

45.1

0.0

L&G Pacific 

ex Japan 

Equity

0.0

5.8

5.9

L&G - EMM 

Equity

0.5

0.0

2.5

2.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.7

24.7

Total Real 

Income

0.3

1.5

1.2

24.8

3.4

24.71.9

2.0

2.0

0.4

26.5

26.5

0.1

0.0

0.1-0.2

Millennium 

Currency

-0.2

-0.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

Total 

Equity

45.6

-0.3

-0.2

Cash 

0.0

0.2

0.2

0.7

24.4 0.7

Total 

Alternative

s

1.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00.0

25.5

25.5

0.4

8.1

Kames 

Currency 

Hedge

-29.4

-29.2

0.2

1.1

Delaware 

EMM

1.3

-1.8

8.0

8.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

LGPSC - 

Global

-0.1

6.1

6.2

7.8

-5.0

-2.5

0.0

2.5

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

-0.3

0.0

0.3

0.6

-0.3

0.0

0.3

0.6

-0.3

0.0

0.3

0.6

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

5

44



Market Value: 4.5bn

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

Cash 

0.0

0.2

0.2

0.7

0.7

5.0

0.0

Millenniu

m 

Currency

-0.2

-0.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

-0.2

0.0

0.4-0.2

44.0

24.7

26.5

26.5

0.1

0.0

1.1

25.5

25.5

0.4-0.1

Total 

Alternativ

es

1.7

3.4

1.7

24.7

Total 

Equity

-0.3

4.4

Total 

Private 

Equity

-4.8

24.44.6

4.7

3.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

1.4

6.2

4.7

4.0

4.044.0

0.0 0.0

1.5

1.5

0.0

-0.2

0.0

16.5

0.0

3.0

0.00.0

5.0

0.0

45.1

45.6

1.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

Total Real 

Income

0.3

1.5

0.0

0.8

0.00.0

1.2

24.8

0.1

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

1.0

0.6

0.8

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

9.2

10.0

0.3

0.9

0.7

0.8

Colliers 

Direct 

Property

1.6

1.9

-0.2

7.4

7.4

Kames 

Capital 

0.6

Colliers 

Indirect 

Pooled 

Property

0.0

0.6

-0.6

0.7

Kames 

Capital IL

-0.6

2.3

Aviva

0.5

10.0

Total 

Fund 

(Gross)

Portfolio Return

0.2

100.0

Portfolio Start

Portfolio End

Benchmark Return

Benchmark Start

0.2

Total 

Property

0.4

0.6

-0.2

9.3

0.0

100.0

3.3

3.1

Excess Return 0.2

100.0

Benchmark End 100.0

Asset Allocation 0.0

Stock Selection

Excess Return

0.0

2.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

2.7

0.0

0.6

0.0

1.5

0.0

0.0

0.00.1 0.10.0

16.50.5

0.1

Total 

Inflation 

Linked

7.5

15.5

1.5

2.2 0.6

0.6

0.0

0.9

0.0

0.6

15.6

1.2

7.5

4.9

1.7

2.1

1.5

0.1

1.8

3.7

1.2

2.5

1.1

1.1

6.1

0.6

-0.1

4.8

4.6

0.0

Attribution to Total Real Income Fund Excess Return Analysis

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Quarter Ended 30th June 2019

3.1

3.0

3.0

0.0

0.6

1.2

0.0

3.2

JPM Infra

2.4

Stafford 

Timberlan

d

0.0

2.1

IFM Infra

1.2

-1.21.3

2.2

Kames 

Capital II

0.4

KKR Infra

-5.0

-2.5

0.0

2.5

5.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

-0.3

0.0

0.3

0.6

-0.3

0.0

0.3

0.6

-0.3

0.0

0.3

0.6

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

6

45



Market Value: 4.5bn

25.5

0.4

0.0

0.4

26.5

0.1

0.0

0.1

4.0

-0.1

Total 

Alternativ

es

1.7

3.4

1.7

24.7

24.4

0.0

-0.2

Total Real 

Income

0.3

1.5

1.2

24.8

24.7

44.0

-0.2

0.0

-0.2

Total 

Private 

Equity

-4.8

1.4

6.2

4.7

4.6

Total 

Equity

-0.3

4.4

4.7

45.1

45.6 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

Cash 

0.0

0.2

0.2

0.7

Millenniu

m 

Currency

-0.2

-0.2

0.0

0.0

M&G DOF

2.3

3.4

1.2

1.7

1.7

0.0

2.1

2.1

0.0

0.0

0.00.1

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

Total 

Other 

Opportuni

ties

0.0

Ashmore 

EMM Debt

6.9

6.3

0.6

2.6

0.7

0.0

2.5

4.0

1.5

3.4

4.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

2.5

2.5

0.0

0.0

0.5

0.5

7.0

2.78.6

10.0

10.0

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

Total 

Credit 

and EMM 

Debt

3.0

2.4

0.5

8.9

EnTrust 

Permal

1.4

1.2

0.2

0.0

0.03.4

4.0

4.0

0.1

0.0

1.1

5.9

0.1

4.0

4.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.3 0.2

Pictet

3.0

1.2

1.9

3.4

Ruffer

2.3

1.2

Excess Return 0.2

100.0

Portfolio Start

5.8

0.3 0.2

0.0 0.0

0.2

Asset Allocation 0.0

Portfolio End

Stock Selection

Total Fund 

(Gross)

Portfolio Return

Benchmark Return

Benchmark Start 44.0 4.0 26.5

Excess Return 0.2

100.0

Benchmark End 100.0 11.4 3.4

3.3

3.1

100.0

6.6

2.4 5.4

12.3

25.5

Aspect 

Capital 

Partners

3.5

1.2

Total 

Targeted 

Return

1.2

3.4

12.4 3.0

3.1

11.4

0.0

1.0

1.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.5

0.5

Christoffer

son Robb 

& 

Company

5.1

1.8

3.3

1.1

1.2

0.0

Aberdeen 

Standard

6.1

1.8

Infracapital

1.6

1.8

-0.2

1.2

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.0

0.0

3.4

4.1

4.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

JPM 

Global 

Credit

1.2

2.4

1.2

0.6

0.6

Partners 

Group 

Private 

Debt

0.0

Attribution to Total Alternative Fund Excess Return Analysis

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Quarter Ended 30th June 2019

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.2

5.7

5.3

7.0

0.0

-6.0

-3.0

0.0

3.0

6.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

-0.3

0.0

0.3

0.6

-0.3

0.0

0.3

0.6

-0.3

0.0

0.3

0.6

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

7

46



Market Value: 4.5bn

#

Attribution to Total Fund Excess Return Analysis

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Year Ended 30th June 2019

100.0

100.0

-0.7

-0.1

-0.5

Total Fund 

ex Hedge 

(Gross)

-0.7

5.8

6.5

99.2

99.3

0.4 0.0 0.00.0 0.4 -0.5 -0.5 -0.1 0.1

0.1 0.0 -0.1

Stock Selection 0.0 -0.4 -0.2 -0.3

0.4

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00.0

-0.5

10.0

0.0 -0.1

Asset Allocation 0.0 -0.2 -0.2 -0.1

0.4 0.0 -0.6

0.0

-0.1

4.1

0.2

11.4 10.0

-0.1

0.0 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess Return 

(%)

Excess Return -1.0 -0.7 -0.4 -0.4 0.0

26.5

10.0 2.5 0.014.5

Benchmark End 100.0 100.0 44.0 44.0 4.0 16.5 25.5

0.0

0.7

Benchmark Start 100.0 100.0 46.0 46.0 4.0 24.5 10.0

15.5 24.4 12.34.6 24.7 9.2

25.5 13.0

8.6 3.4 0.0

0.0 1.3

Portfolio End 100.0 100.0 45.6 44.8

9.0 15.1 23.5 12.3 8.1 3.2

0.0 0.7

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Portfolio Start 100.0 100.0 47.0 46.2 4.2 24.1

3.9 6.4 5.6 4.7 6.9 6.06.4 6.4 6.6 7.2 10.1 5.5

3.5 0.7 5.9 8.4 -1.4 1.0

0.3

Portfolio Return 5.4 5.8 6.3 6.4 9.7 7.1 3.8 9.1

2.6 -2.1 -4.1 -1.0 2.4 -1.4

Total Credit 

and EMM 

Debt

Total Other 

Opportunitie

s

Millennium 

Currency
Cash

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Excess Return -1.0 -0.7 -0.4 -0.8

Total 

Inflation 

Linked

Total Private 

Equity

Total Real 

Income

Total 

Property

Total 

Alternatives

Total 

Targeted 

Return

-1.1

99.3

-0.4 1.5

Total Fund 

(Net)

Total Fund 

(Gross)
Total Equity

Total Equity 

ex Hedge

Benchmark Return

-0.1

0.0

0.0

Total Fund 

ex Hedge 

(Net)

-1.1

5.4

6.5

99.2

100.0

100.0

-1.2

-0.6

0.0

0.6

-1.2

-0.6

0.0

0.6

-5.0

-2.5

0.0

2.5

5.0

%%

-3.0

-1.5

0.0

1.5

3.0

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

-1.2

-0.6

0.0

0.6

%%%% %%

8

47



Market Value: 4.5bn

0.4 -0.5 0.0 0.0-0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.2

0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.1

Stock Selection -0.4 -0.2 -0.3 0.1

0.0 0.0 -0.1 0.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00.0

0.4 -0.5 0.0 -0.1-0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

Asset Allocation -0.2 -0.2 -0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.1-0.3

25.5 0.0 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

Excess Return -0.7 -0.4 -0.4 0.0 0.0

4.0 0.0 4.0 26.52.5 5.0 2.5 2.0 0.0 0.08.0

25.5 0.0 0.0

Benchmark End 100.0 44.0 44.0 32.0 7.0 13.0

4.1 0.0 4.0 24.52.8 5.7 2.8 1.9 4.6 3.40.0

24.4 0.0 0.7

Benchmark Start 100.0 46.0 46.0 33.9 7.5 13.2

4.1 0.7 4.6 24.72.6 5.6 2.7 1.9 0.0 0.08.1

23.5 0.0 1.33.40.0

Portfolio End 100.0 45.6 44.8 32.6 7.2 12.7

4.2 0.8 4.2 24.12.7 5.5 2.7 1.9 4.7

0.0 0.7

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Portfolio Start 100.0 47.0 46.2 34.0 7.5 13.7

0.7 10.1 5.5 5.66.3 6.4 5.4 2.3 2.3 5.47.6

-1.4 1.0

Benchmark Return 6.4 6.6 7.2 6.6 0.6 12.0 -1.2

-0.9 9.7 7.1 3.56.3 6.2 8.0 0.5 1.4 5.24.3

-1.4 0.3

Portfolio Return 5.8 6.3 6.4 6.9 0.8

-1.7 -0.4 1.5 -2.10.0 -0.2 2.6 -1.80.2 0.2 0.1 0.0

12.1 -1.2

Total 

Alternativ

es

-0.9 -0.2-3.3

Cash 

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Excess Return -0.7 -0.4 -0.8

Millenniu

m 

Currency

L&G 

Pacific ex 

Japan 

Equity

L&G - 

EMM 

Equity

Kleinwort 

Benson - 

Global

Kempen - 

Global

Delaware 

EMM

Kames 

Currency 

Hedge

LGPSC - 

Global

Total 

Private 

Equity

Total 

Real 

Income

Attribution to Total Equity Fund Excess Return Analysis

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Year Ended 30th June 2019

Total 

Fund 

(Gross)

Total 

Equity

Total 

Equity ex 

Hedge

Total 

Passive 

Equity - 

L&G

L&G - UK 

Equity

L&G - 

North 

American 

Equity

L&G - 

Japanese 

Equity

L&G - 

European 

Equity

-3.0

-1.5

0.0

1.5

3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

-0.8

-0.4

0.0

0.4

-0.8

-0.4

0.0

0.4

-0.8

-0.4

0.0

0.4

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

9

48



Market Value: 4.5bn

0.00.0 0.1 -0.2 0.0 -0.5 0.00.0 0.0 0.4 0.0 0.2 0.1

0.0 -0.10.0 0.00.0 0.0

Stock Selection -0.4 0.4 0.0 0.1 -0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.20.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 -0.1

Asset Allocation -0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.0 0.1 -0.4 0.0 -0.50.0 0.0 0.0 0.4 -0.1 0.2

25.5 0.0 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

Excess Return -0.7 0.4 0.0 0.1 -0.1

1.5 1.5 3.0 3.0 44.0 4.02.7 5.0 0.5 1.0 16.5 7.5

46.0 4.0 25.5 0.0 0.0

Benchmark End 100.0 26.5 10.0 0.8

14.5 7.5 1.5 1.3 2.2 2.0

0.7

Benchmark Start 100.0 24.5 10.0 0.7 2.6 5.3 0.7 0.6

2.1 3.1 45.6 4.6 24.4 0.00.6 1.1 15.5 7.4 1.8 1.1

23.5 0.0 1.3

Portfolio End 100.0 24.7 9.2 0.7 2.2 4.6

1.6 1.4 2.3 2.9 47.0 4.22.4 4.7 0.6 0.6 15.1 7.0

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Portfolio Start 100.0 24.1 9.0 0.6

4.7 6.6 10.1 5.6 0.0 0.73.9 6.4 8.6 4.7 4.7 4.7

-1.4 1.0

Benchmark Return 6.4 5.5 3.9 3.9 3.9 3.9 3.9

12.4 4.8 6.5 6.3 9.7 3.53.9 5.8 5.6 9.1 8.3 19.9Portfolio Return 5.8 7.1 3.8 11.9 0.4

1.8 -0.4 -0.4 -2.1 -1.4 0.31.7 2.6 -0.3 15.2 7.7 0.1

Total 

Equity

Total 

Private 

Equity

Excess Return -0.7 1.5 -0.1 8.0 -3.5 0.0 1.8

JPM Infra

Stafford 

Timberlan

d

Cash 

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Total 

Inflation 

Linked

Kames 

Capital IL
IFM Infra KKR Infra

Colliers 

Direct 

Property

Aviva

Attribution to Total Real Income Fund Excess Return Analysis

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Year Ended 30th June 2019

Total 

Fund 

(Gross)

Total Real 

Income

Total 

Property

Colliers 

Indirect 

Pooled 

Property

Total 

Alternativ

es

Millenniu

m 

Currency

Kames 

Capital 

Kames 

Capital II

-8.0

0.0

8.0

16.0

-3.0

-1.5

0.0

1.5

3.0

-0.8

-0.4

0.0

0.4

-0.8

-0.4

0.0

0.4

-0.8

-0.4

0.0

0.4

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

10

49



Market Value: 4.5bn

-0.2 0.0 0.4 0.0 0.0-0.2 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0-0.3 -0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.1 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.1

Stock Selection -0.4 -0.5 -0.5 -0.1

0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.20.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.4 0.0 -0.1

Asset Allocation -0.2 0.0 -0.1 0.0 -0.2

0.2 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 -0.4-0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.1 0.0 -0.1

26.5 0.0 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

Excess Return -0.7 -0.5 -0.6 -0.1 -0.5

2.1 1.0 0.5 0.5 44.0 4.00.0 10.0 2.5 0.5 7.0 4.1

24.5 0.0 0.0

Benchmark End 100.0 25.5 11.4 3.4 4.0 4.0

1.5 0.8 0.2 0.1 46.0 4.00.0 10.0 2.5 0.9 6.6 2.5

24.7 0.0 0.7

Benchmark Start 100.0 25.5 13.0 3.4 6.5 3.0

1.7 1.2 0.4 0.2 45.6 4.60.0 8.6 2.7 0.6 5.3 3.4

24.1 0.0 1.3

Portfolio End 100.0 24.4 12.3 3.1 5.8 3.4

1.8 1.1 0.2 0.1 47.0 4.20.0 8.1 2.4 0.6 5.0 3.2

0.0 0.7

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Portfolio Start 100.0 23.5 12.3 3.2 6.2 2.9

7.5 7.5 7.5 6.6 10.1 5.56.9 13.3 4.7 4.7 6.0 4.7

-1.4 1.0

Benchmark Return 6.4 5.6 4.7 4.7 4.7 4.7 4.7

16.8 13.0 11.7 6.3 9.7 7.15.9 15.5 4.5 1.9 8.4 2.9

-1.4 0.3

Portfolio Return 5.8 3.5 0.7 2.7 -0.2 0.3 -9.9

9.3 5.5 4.2 -0.4 -0.4 1.5-1.0 2.1 -0.2 -2.9 2.4 -1.8

Cash 

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Excess Return -0.7 -2.1 -4.1 -2.0 -4.9 -4.4 -14.6

Infracapital
Aberdeen 

Standard

Total 

Equity

Total 

Private 

Equity

Total Real 

Income

Millenniu

m 

Currency

Ashmore 

EMM Debt

JPM 

Global 

Credit

Partners 

Group 

Private 

Debt

Total 

Other 

Opportuni

ties

M&G DOF

Christoffer

son Robb 

& 

Company

Attribution to Total Alternative Fund Excess Return Analysis

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Year Ended 30th June 2019

Total Fund 

(Gross)

Total 

Alternativ

es

Total 

Targeted 

Return

Aspect 

Capital 

Partners

Ruffer Pictet
EnTrust 

Permal

Total 

Credit 

and EMM 

Debt

-15.0

-10.0

-5.0

0.0

5.0

10.0

-3.0

-1.5

0.0

1.5

3.0

-0.8

-0.4

0.0

0.4

-0.8

-0.4

0.0

0.4

-0.8

-0.4

0.0

0.4

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

11

50



Market Value: 4.5bn

#

100.0

100.0

2.3

0.3

2.0

Attribution to Total Fund Excess Return Analysis - Unannualised

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for 3 Year Ended 30th June 2019

Total Fund 

ex Hedge 

(Gross)

2.3

31.9

29.6

98.9

99.3

1.8 0.0 0.00.6 1.2 0.3 -0.8 0.2 0.8

0.1 0.0 -0.7

Stock Selection 0.0 3.2 1.2 0.1

1.6

-0.1

0.4 0.0 0.4 0.40.0

0.7

10.0

0.0 -0.7

Asset Allocation 0.0 0.0 -0.2 0.1

2.2 0.6 -0.9

0.4

0.6

4.1

0.9

11.4 10.0

-0.1

0.0 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess Return 

(%)

Excess Return 1.7 3.2 1.1 0.2 -0.1

26.5

10.0 2.5 0.014.5

Benchmark End 100.0 100.0 44.0 44.0 4.0 16.5 25.5

0.0

0.7

Benchmark Start 100.0 100.0 46.0 46.0 4.0 24.5 10.0

15.5 24.4 12.34.6 24.7 9.2

25.5 13.0

8.6 3.4 0.0

0.0 0.3

Portfolio End 100.0 100.0 45.6 44.8

9.4 12.3 23.8 13.5 6.6 3.7

0.0 1.5

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Portfolio Start 100.0 100.0 50.1 49.0 3.9 21.7

21.1 17.1 14.9 14.1 16.0 16.228.4 28.4 42.7 43.2 48.1 19.0

14.8 8.0 18.6 39.1 -1.2 1.4

-0.1

Portfolio Return 30.1 31.6 42.7 42.3 42.8 26.3 26.6 25.5

8.4 -0.1 -6.1 2.5 22.9 -1.2

Total Credit 

and EMM 

Debt

Total Other 

Opportuniti

es

Millennium 

Currency
Cash

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Excess Return 1.7 3.2 0.0 -0.9

Total 

Inflation 

Linked

Total Private 

Equity

Total Real 

Income

Total 

Property

Total 

Alternatives

Total 

Targeted 

Return

0.7

99.3

-5.3 7.3

Total Fund 

Net

Total Fund 

Gross
Total Equity

Total Equity 

ex Hedge

Benchmark Return

5.5

0.0

0.0

Total Fund 

ex Hedge 

(Net)

0.7

30.3

29.6

98.9

100.0

100.0

-1.7

0.0

1.7

3.4

-1.7

0.0

1.7

3.4

-12.0

0.0

12.0

24.0

%%

-5.0

-2.5

0.0

2.5

5.0

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

-1.7

0.0

1.7

3.4

%%%% %%

12

51



Market Value: 4.5bn

1.8 0.3 0.0 0.0-0.3 0.0 0.4 1.2 -0.10.0 0.1 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 -0.3

0.4 0.4 0.0 -0.7

Stock Selection 3.2 1.2 0.1 0.3

0.0 0.0 -0.3 0.00.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00.0

2.2 0.7 0.0 -0.70.0 0.3 0.9 -0.1

Asset Allocation 0.0 -0.2 0.1 0.2 0.0

0.2 0.0 0.3 0.0 -0.1 -0.3-0.3

25.5 0.0 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

Excess Return 3.2 1.1 0.2 0.5 0.1

4.0 0.0 4.0 26.52.5 5.0 2.5 2.0 0.0 0.08.0

25.5 0.0 0.0

Benchmark End 100.0 44.0 44.0 32.0 7.0 13.0

3.7 0.0 4.0 24.52.8 5.7 2.8 2.3 4.6 3.40.0

24.4 0.0 0.7

Benchmark Start 100.0 46.0 46.0 34.3 7.5 13.2

4.1 0.7 4.6 24.72.6 5.6 2.7 1.9 0.0 0.08.1

23.8 0.0 0.33.40.0

Portfolio End 100.0 45.6 44.8 32.6 7.2 12.7

3.6 1.1 3.9 21.73.1 6.1 3.1 2.3 4.6

0.0 1.5

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Portfolio Start 100.0 50.1 49.0 37.5 8.2 14.7

1.5 48.1 19.0 14.940.0 44.1 43.9 37.6 37.6 43.97.6

-1.2 1.4

Benchmark Return 28.4 42.7 43.2 41.8 29.5 49.5 33.9

-58.4 42.8 26.3 14.842.9 43.6 41.3 29.7 37.8 53.44.3

-1.2 -0.1

Portfolio Return 31.6 42.7 42.3 42.2 29.5

-59.8 -5.3 7.3 -0.12.9 -0.4 -2.6 -8.00.4 -0.1 0.3 -0.1

49.7 33.8

Total 

Alternativ

es

0.2 9.5-3.3

Cash 

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Excess Return 3.2 0.0 -0.9

Millenniu

m 

Currency

L&G 

Pacific ex 

Japan 

Equity

L&G - 

EMM 

Equity

Kleinwort 

Benson - 

Global

Kempen - 

Global

Delaware 

EMM

Kames 

Currency 

Hedge

LGPSC - 

Global

Total 

Private 

Equity

Total Real 

Income

Attribution to Total Equity Fund Excess Return Analysis - Unannualised

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for 3 Year Ended 30th June 2019

Total 

Fund 

(Gross)

Total 

Equity

Total 

Equity ex 

Hedge

Total 

Passive 

Equity - 

L&G

L&G - UK 

Equity

L&G - 

North 

American 

Equity

L&G - 

Japanese 

Equity

L&G - 

European 

Equity

-10.0

-5.0

0.0

5.0

10.0

-5.0

-2.5

0.0

2.5

5.0

-1.7

0.0

1.7

3.4

-1.7

0.0

1.7

3.4

-1.7

0.0

1.7

3.4

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

13

52



Market Value: 4.5bn

0.00.0 0.0 1.2 -0.1 0.3 0.00.0 0.0 1.2 0.0 0.7 0.5

0.0 -0.70.0 0.40.2 0.0

Stock Selection 3.2 1.8 0.6 0.0 0.1 0.5

0.1 0.1 0.0 -0.20.0 0.0 0.0 0.4

0.0 -0.7

Asset Allocation 0.0 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.6 0.1 0.0 1.1 -0.1 0.70.5 0.0 0.0 1.6 0.2 0.7

25.5 0.0 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

Excess Return 3.2 2.2 0.6 0.0 0.1

1.5 1.5 3.0 3.0 44.0 4.02.7 5.0 0.5 1.0 16.5 7.5

46.0 4.0 25.5 0.0 0.0

Benchmark End 100.0 26.5 10.0 0.8

14.5 7.5 2.5 2.5 0.0 2.0

0.7

Benchmark Start 100.0 24.5 10.0 0.8 3.0 5.4 0.8 0.0

2.1 3.1 45.6 4.6 24.4 0.00.6 1.1 15.5 7.4 1.8 1.1

23.8 0.0 0.3

Portfolio End 100.0 24.7 9.2 0.7 2.2 4.6

1.4 1.4 0.0 2.2 50.1 3.92.9 5.1 0.8 0.0 12.3 7.3

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Portfolio Start 100.0 21.7 9.4 0.7

14.1 42.7 48.1 14.9 0.0 1.522.3 17.1 19.7 14.1 14.1 14.1

-1.2 1.4

Benchmark Return 28.4 19.0 21.1 21.1 21.1 21.1 21.1

49.0 15.2 10.3 42.7 42.8 14.830.4 24.4 20.3 25.5 20.6 58.6Portfolio Return 31.6 26.3 26.6 18.3 23.0

-3.8 0.0 -5.3 -0.1 -1.2 -0.1-2.0 8.4 0.9 44.5 34.9 1.1

Total 

Equity

Total 

Private 

Equity

Excess Return 3.2 7.3 5.5 -2.8 1.9 9.2 3.3

JPM Infra

Stafford 

Timberlan

d

Cash 

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Total 

Inflation 

Linked

Kames 

Capital IL
IFM Infra KKR Infra

Colliers 

Direct 

Property

Aviva

Attribution to Total Real Income Fund Excess Return Analysis - Unannualised

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for 3 Year Ended 30th June 2019

Total 

Fund 

(Gross)

Total Real 

Income

Total 

Property

Colliers 

Indirect 

Pooled 

Property

Total 

Alternativ

es

Millenniu

m 

Currency

Kames 

Capital 

Kames 

Capital II

-6.0

0.0

6.0

12.0

-5.0

-2.5

0.0

2.5

5.0

-1.7

0.0

1.7

3.4

-1.7

0.0

1.7

3.4

-1.7

0.0

1.7

3.4

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

14

53



Market Value: 4.5bn

1.2 -0.1 1.8 0.0 0.00.0 0.8 0.5 0.2 0.0 0.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.3 0.0

0.0 0.4 0.0 -0.7

Stock Selection 3.2 0.3 -0.8 -0.8

0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.20.1 0.0 0.4 0.0 0.1 0.4

-0.1 2.2 0.0 -0.7

Asset Allocation 0.0 0.4 -0.1 0.0 -0.2

0.9 0.6 0.2 0.0 0.0 1.10.1 0.0 0.6 0.2 0.1 0.4

26.5 0.0 0.0

Attribution to 

Excess 

Return (%)

Excess Return 3.2 0.7 -0.9 -0.7 -0.2

2.1 1.0 0.5 0.5 44.0 4.00.0 10.0 2.5 0.5 7.0 4.1

24.5 0.0 0.0

Benchmark End 100.0 25.5 11.4 3.4 4.0 4.0

2.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 46.0 4.00.0 10.0 2.5 1.5 6.0 2.5

24.7 0.0 0.7

Benchmark Start 100.0 25.5 13.0 3.9 6.5 2.5

1.7 1.2 0.4 0.2 45.6 4.60.0 8.6 2.7 0.6 5.3 3.4

21.7 0.0 0.3

Portfolio End 100.0 24.4 12.3 3.1 5.8 3.4

3.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 50.1 3.90.0 6.6 2.8 0.8 3.1 3.7

0.0 1.5

Asset 

Allocation 

Summary 

(%)

Portfolio Start 100.0 23.8 13.5 4.1 6.8 2.6

12.1 11.5 11.5 42.7 48.1 19.016.0 21.1 14.1 14.1 16.2 14.1

-1.2 1.4

Benchmark Return 28.4 14.9 14.1 14.1 14.1 14.1 14.1

27.3 22.4 15.2 42.7 42.8 26.318.6 28.2 11.8 13.3 39.1 28.3

-1.2 -0.1

Portfolio Return 31.6 14.8 8.0 -4.8 12.1 14.3 -36.5

15.2 11.0 3.7 0.0 -5.3 7.32.5 7.2 -2.3 -0.7 22.9 14.2

Cash 

Returns 

Summary 

(%)

Excess Return 3.2 -0.1 -6.1 -18.9 -2.0 0.3 -50.6

Infracapital
Aberdeen 

Standard

Total 

Equity

Total 

Private 

Equity

Total Real 

Income

Millenniu

m 

Currency

Ashmore 

EMM Debt

JPM 

Global 

Credit

Partners 

Group 

Private 

Debt

Total 

Other 

Opportuni

ties

M&G DOF

Christoffer

son Robb 

& 

Company

Attribution to Total Alternative Fund Excess Return Analysis - Unannualised

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for 3 Year Ended 30th June 2019

Total Fund 

(Gross)

Total 

Alternativ

es

Total 

Targeted 

Return

Aspect 

Capital 

Partners

Ruffer Pictet
EnTrust 

Permal

Total 

Credit 

and EMM 

Debt

-24.0

-12.0

0.0

12.0

24.0

-5.0

-2.5

0.0

2.5

5.0

-1.7

0.0

1.7

3.4

-1.7

0.0

1.7

3.4

-1.7

0.0

1.7

3.4

Net Exposure Start

Net Exposure End

15

54



Market Value: 4.5bn

2,029.6

1,997.6

1,452.2

320.8

566.9

113.9

247.4

119.6

83.7

360.7

184.6

32.0

206.2

1,100.2

409.4

30.2

99.8

205.4

26.2

47.9

690.8

328.9

78.5

49.9

95.2

138.3

1,085.5

549.6

137.6

259.5

152.1

0.4

383.2

118.5

28.0

236.7

152.7

77.4

51.4

15.7

8.3

0.2

32.6

4,422.3

4,454.3

4,422.3

4,454.3

CLIENT SPECIFIC:

7.00% FTSE All Share

6.50% FTSE AW North America 70% GBP Hedged 

6.50% FTSE RAFI AW 3000 North America 70% GBP Hedged

2.50% FTSE Developed Europe Ex UK 70% GBP Hedged

2.50% FTSE RAFI 3000 Developed Europe Ex UK 70% GBP Hedged

2.50% FTSE AW Japan 70% GBP Hedged

2.50% FTSE Developed Asia Pacific Ex Japan 50% GBP Hedged

Net & Gross - Currently we have not received all the necessary manager data to complete this, therefore please use with caution. If you require additional information 

please contact us.

Adams Street: Data is on a 4 month lag therefore we have used the Q1 2019 data.

Catapult: Data is on a quarterly lag therefore we have used the Q1 2019 data.

Q1 2019: Kleinwort Benson Global Equity Fund & Kempen Global Equity Fund transferred to the LGPS Global Active Equity Fund as at 15th February 2019.

Notes:  

L&G may measure their funds versus different benchmarks     .  

10.1 1.10.6

3.2 3.1 0.1

0.3 5.8 6.5

Total Fund Benchmark

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund ex Hedge (Gross) 11.20.3 3.6

0.2 3.3 3.1 0.2

-0.7 9.7Client Weighted Index Mar-16 99.3 3.6 3.3

-0.1 4.3

9.0

10.4

7.5

6.9 6.3 0.6 13.3 2.1

2.4 0.5

6.0 4.5

LGPS Global Active Equity Fund FTSE All World Index Feb-19 8.1 6.1 6.2

15.5

5.8

Ashmore Emerging Markets Debt Fund LCC - Ashmore EMM Debt Jan-14 2.7 6.9 6.3

5.9 6.9

0.6

1.63.0 5.9-1.0

4.5 0.1

Total Targeted Return Fund LIBOR 1 Month + 4% Apr-16 12.3 3.5

4.6

-0.2 4.7

3.0 2.4 0.8

3.5 1.2 4.5

0.5

4.7 4.7 0.0

2.6

3.3

-1.4

Client Weighted Index Mar-16 24.4 3.4 1.7 3.4

Apr-16 8.6

0.40.40.0 0.0-1.4 -0.4 0.0 -0.4-0.2 0.0 -0.2 -0.2 0.0 -0.2

9.9 7.5 2.46.1 1.8 4.2 11.7 7.5 4.2

14.5 7.5 7.0

Aberdeen Standard Private Equity Fund Absolute Return +7.5% Dec-17 0.2 6.1 1.8 4.2

-0.2 13.0 7.5 5.5

9.1

Infracapital Infrastructure Fund Absolute Return +7.5% Nov-17 0.4 1.6 1.8 -0.2 1.6 1.8

16.6 7.69.33.3 5.1 1.8 3.3 16.8 7.5

9.4 4.5 4.9

Absolute Return +7.5% Dec-17 1.2 5.1 1.8

4.5 4.21.2 2.3 2.9 4.7 -1.8 8.7

12.1 5.1 7.0

LIBOR 1 Month + 4% Mar-16 1.7 3.4 1.2 2.3 3.4

8.4 6.0 2.4 11.6 5.1 6.54.0 1.5 2.5 4.0 1.5 2.5

4.5 0.04.5 -0.20.0 1.9 4.34.7 -2.9 4.5

3.1 4.5 -1.4

1.2 1.2 0.0 1.2 1.2

2.4 1.2 1.2 4.5 4.7 -0.2

Manager Summary-Total Fund

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Period Ended 30th June 2019

0.0 3.0 -3.1

4.5 1.2

4.5 0.2

5.0

4.7

4.5 0.5

5.6

5.6 5.1 0.6

3.3 4.5

14.5

4.8 4.5 0.3

19.0

-1.2

4.5

4.5 0.2

-14.1 4.5 -18.5

4.5 -0.73.8

8.6

5.1

6.6 2.1

4.5 0.3

-1.6 4.5 -6.1

3.9 4.5 -0.6

-1.9

3.3

-4.9

0.3 4.7 -4.4

-9.9 4.7 -14.61.4 1.2 0.2

4.8 4.7

2.7 4.7

2.3

4.7

1.2 1.1

3.0 1.2 1.9

2.4 1.2

6.6 1.2 5.4

1.7

0.1

-2.0

-2.1

2.4 0.7 -4.1

1.3

1.7 3.5 5.6

9.516.2 6.7

11.8

4.8

12.14.5

4.5 9.7

6.1 1.2 4.9

8.3 -0.31.6 1.9 8.6

4.7

1.6

IFM Global Infrastructure Fund 19.9 4.7 15.2 16.6

-0.1 6.1

Kames Capital Index-Linked Fund 0.40.3

7.7

1.9 -0.2-0.2

9.2

6.4

3.9-0.10.6 3.9

12.26.2

3.9 6.60.0 2.6

9.1

0.6

Client Weighted Index

0.7

4.9

FTSE All Stocks Index Linked Index Dec-13 7.4

2.4 1.2 1.2

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

Sep-15

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

1.8

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

3.1

5.8

3.4

0.0

Apr-15

-29.2 0.2Mar-16 0.2 -29.4-29.2

6.00.3

8.2

2.9

Dec-13

11.5

5.6

7.6

10.0

Since Inception

7.2 6.5 0.7

15.1

13.9

15.8

7.1

-0.815.0

0.7

0.5 -20.9-20.4

8.7

PF BM

13.1

0.0

6.0 -0.16.0

15.2

13.9

10.09.9

8.8

-0.2

8.4 8.1

9.0

0.3

12.9

ER

-0.1

0.1

0.9

-0.1

-3.3

9.49.2

7.1 6.6

5.8

3.9

1.5

-0.8

8.15.5

6.6

3.9

2.1

0.6

1.6

-1.2 0.0 0.0

6.4

10.2

12.8

6.3

8.0 -0.712.95.4 2.6

-0.2

2.45.4 -0.2 15.3

0.5 -25.8

10.1

0.7

-0.4 12.6

3.1 3.3

-1.7

12.2

12.6

6.4

FTSE All Share Index

3.1

6.5

FTSE All World Japan Index 2.6

Dec-13

2.9

3.6

Dec-13

MSCI Emerging Markets Index

3 Year

-0.3

Benchmark
Incep

Date

Weight 

%

Market 

Value 

(£m)

PF BM ER

QTR

BM ERPF

Year To Date

ER

1 Year

-25.3

6.6

14.0 -1.4

3.9 8.0

3.8

7.1

-3.5

-0.1

0.4

0.5

1.5

-0.6

-0.1

11.90.6

0.0

0.3

0.4

-0.6

0.6 -0.2

0.6

-0.6

1.2

0.0-0.6

-0.2

-4.8

-0.9-29.4

6.5

1.3

0.5

-4.8 9.76.21.4

4.6

Client Weighted Index

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

Dec-13

Mar-16

0.7

Jun-16

Dec-13

24.7

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP)

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP) Mar-16

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP)

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP) Mar-16

Mar-18

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

Dec-13

Mar-16

3.7

6.6

2.4

2.3

Mar-16

1.5

6.1

1.2

0.6

0.0 0.6

0.6

0.4

1.2

0.5

3.1

2.2 0.0 0.6

1.4 6.24.6

9.2 0.6

4.1

FTSE All World Index

7.2

1.9

2.7

Dec-13

Client Specific Index

LIBOR 1 Month

Client Specific Index

Dec-13

12.7

Dec-13

0.0

-0.2

3.6

8.0

0.6

BM

3.3

0.0 -1.2

-0.1

0.1

PF

14.40.0

10.2

0.2-0.2

12.1 12.0

3.1

2.9

6.4

MSCI Emerging Markets Index Dec-13

ERBMPF

0.8

3.1

5.5 0.0

-0.3

1.4

1.1

1.2 0.2

FTSE Developed Asia Pacific Ex. Japan Index

0.0

Mar-13 5.8 5.9

2.9

1.3

0.0

Apr-07

1.2 1.9

1.2Mar-16

2.1 1.3

3.0

2.4

5.4

1.7

0.30.6

1.2

1.2

1.2

1.2

0.0

5.2-1.83.1

5.8 5.9 0.0

-0.2

-1.8

2.9

0.0

5.4

6.3

6.9

12.5 12.7

4.7

5.2 5.4 -0.2

6.6 -0.4 12.6

6.6

14.012.6

-0.8

Client Weighted Index Mar-16 45.6 4.4 4.7 4.4

Client Weighted Index Mar-16 0.2

12.9

12.3 0.112.432.6 5.4 5.5

9.09.0 0.0

14.3 0.1

11.9

6.5

-0.1

9.4

6.5

-0.9

1.6

5.6 7.9 8.0 -0.1 7.9

Total Equity Fund

L&G UK Equity Fund

L&G North American Equity Fund

L&G Japanese Equity Fund

L&G Total Passive Equity Fund

L&G European Equity Fund

Total Equity Fund ex Hedge

L&G Pacific Ex Japan Equity Fund

L&G Emerging Markets Equity Fund

Delaware Emerging Markets Equity Fund

6.2

6.3 0.0 0.8

0.5

6.2

Kames Currency Hedge Fund

Total Private Equity Fund

Total Real Income Fund

Colliers Pooled Property

Total Other Opportunities Fund

Stafford Timberland Fund

JPMorgan Infrastructure Fund

Total Alternatives Fund

LIBOR 1 Month + 4%

M&G DOF Fund

Kames Capital II Property Fund

Colliers Direct Property Fund

Aviva Property Fund

Total Property Fund

KKR Global Infrastructure Fund

Aspect Capital Partners Fund

Ruffer Fund

Pictet Fund

EnTrustPermal Fund

LIBOR 1 MonthCash Fund

Partners Group Private Debt Fund

Client Weighted Index

Millennium Currency Fund

Client Weighted Index

JPMorgan Global Credit Fund

Christofferson Robb & Company Fund

Total Credit and EMM Debt Fund

Total Inflation-Linked Fund

Mar-16

LIBOR 1 Month + 4% Mar-16

Apr-18

None

0.7

5.3

3.4

Dec-13 0.0

0.2 0.2 0.0 0.2 0.2 0.0 1.0 0.7 0.3 0.5 0.5 0.0 0.5 0.5 0.0

8.1

15.5 2.1 1.5 0.6 2.1 1.5 0.6 6.4 2.6 7.9 5.4 2.5 11.5 7.7 3.8

IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP) Nov-16 1.1 1.0 0.4 1.0 0.6 0.4 5.6 3.9 1.7 7.4 8.1 -0.7

Kames Capital Property Fund IPD UK Monthly Property Index (GBP) Mar-16 0.6 0.9 0.9 0.6 0.3 5.8 3.9 1.8 7.6 6.6 1.0 7.9 7.9 0.1

1.1 2.5 3.7 1.2 2.5 12.4 7.7 14.2

Mar-16 3.1 0.0 1.2 -1.2 0.0 1.2 -1.2 6.5 4.7 1.8 4.74.5 -1.2

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (Gross) Client Weighted Index Mar-16 100.0 3.3 3.1 5.8 6.4 -0.7 9.6 8.7 0.9 11.1 9.8 1.3

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (Net) Client Weighted Index Mar-16 100.0 3.2 3.1 0.1 5.4 6.4 -1.0 9.2 8.7 10.6 9.8 0.80.5

Client Weighted Index Mar-16 44.8 5.2 5.4 -0.2 6.4 7.2 14.0 14.4 -0.4

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund ex Hedge (Net) Client Weighted Index Mar-16 99.3 3.5 3.3 0.2 3.5 3.3 0.2 5.4 6.5 -1.1 9.2 9.0 0.2 0.610.8 10.1

32.00% Libor 1 Month +4%

10.00% IPD UK Monthly Property Index

2.50% Ashmore Specific Index

7.50% FTSE All Stocks Index Linked

6.00% MSCI EMM 50% GBP Hedged

8.00% FTSE All World 70% GBP Hedged

4.00% FTSE All World

PF = Portfolio Return     BM = Benchmark Return     ER = Excess Return  

16

55



Total Equity Fund

Total Equity Fund ex Hedge

L&G Total Passive Equity Fund

L&G UK Equity Fund

L&G North American Equity Fund

L&G Japanese Equity Fund

L&G European Equity Fund

L&G Pacific Ex Japan Equity Fund

L&G Emerging Markets Equity Fund

LGPS Global Active Equity Fund

Delaware Emerging Markets Equity Fund

Kames Currency Hedge Fund

Total Private Equity Fund

Total Real Income Fund

Total Property Fund

Colliers Pooled Property

Colliers Direct Property Fund

Aviva Property Fund

Kames Capital Property Fund

Kames Capital II Property Fund

Total Inflation-Linked Fund

Kames Capital Index-Linked Fund

IFM Global Infrastructure Fund

KKR Global Infrastructure Fund

JPMorgan Infrastructure Fund

Stafford Timberland Fund

Total Alternatives Fund

Total Targeted Return Fund

Aspect Capital Partners Fund

Ruffer Fund

Pictet Fund

EnTrustPermal Fund

Total Credit and EMM Debt Fund

Ashmore Emerging Markets Debt Fund

JPMorgan Global Credit Fund

Partners Group Private Debt Fund

Total Other Opportunities Fund

M&G DOF Fund

Christofferson Robb & Company Fund

Infracapital Infrastructure Fund

Aberdeen Standard Private Equity Fund

Millennium Currency Fund

Cash Fund

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund ex Hedge

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

0.1

95,208 2.1

3.1137,579

49,942

0.6

1.1

328,858

1.8

360,736 8.1

3.4

5.8

2.2

531,163 12.4

1.1

138,309 3.1

24.424.7

152,148

317,139 7.4

45,876 1.1

92,937 2.2

7.4

205,371

73,944

204,266

397,995 9.3

1.7

0.7

4.6

99,755 2.3

4.8

30,177

9.2

30,177 0.7

0.7

99,755

409,407

1,066,200 24.8

4.2

203,403

45,208

4,293,861 100.0

4.7

1.1

100.04,454,265

1,100,184

184,636

24.7

1.9

181,932

229,201

108,134 2.5

80,730

333,186 7.8

113,030 2.6

Market Val

(£000s)

Exposure

(%)

1,937,446 45.1

532,467

7.2320,803

2,029,566 45.6

32.6

(%)

0.7

2.7

12.7

119,556

83,699

313,559 7.3

1.9

5.3

12.4

Total Fund Reconciliation

Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund

for Quarter Ended 30th June 2019
Market Value: 4.5bn

Market Val Exposure

1,377,120 32.1

(£000s)

1,452,198

4.1

566,851

26,226

206,188

247,417

31,996

36,205 0.8 47,878

27,593 0.6

1,085,505

668,205 15.6 690,777

1,059,296

15.5

138,309 3.2

78,459

364 0.0

129,437 3.0

359 0.0

383,166

549,623 12.3

259,531

147,662 3.4

5.9253,704

8.6

110,684 2.6 118,463 2.7

383,436 8.9

0.627,355 0.6 28,0110.1

8,298 0.2

0.0

32,6060.7

215

27,941 0.7

77,351 1.7

0.7

-426 0.0

3.4

7,842 0.2

144,698 3.4 152,716

245,396 5.7 5.3

74,425 1.7

0.4

48,878 1.1 51,362

13,552 0.3 15,706

1,892,238 44.1

1.1

0.3

1.2

236,692

0.844.8

2.6

-0.1

0.1

0.7

0.6

5.6

4.6

113,872

0.6

0.2

-0.3

0.1

0.6

0.2

-1.8

-0.8

-0.1

-0.4

-0.4

0.1

0.1

-1.0

-0.1

0.3

-0.4

-0.9

-0.7

0.1

-1.1

0.9

-0.3

1.8

-0.6

-0.6

0.0

-0.4

0.2

-0.1

0.0

-1.4

0.2

0.1

0.3

30th June 2019

Net Exp

(%)

1.1

0.1

0.1

1,997,570

Net Exp

(%)

1.6

0.1

-0.1

0.2

-0.2

100.0

-0.3

0.0

0.7

-1.7

-1.7

-0.7

-0.1

-0.4

-0.2

0.0

0.0

-0.9

-0.1

0.2

-0.4

-1.1

0.1

-1.3

-0.8

0.2

-0.8

1.0

-0.4

1.9

0.0

31st Mar 2019

-0.7

-0.4

0.1

-0.2

-0.3

0.0

-0.6

0.0

4,422,269 99.3 100.04,248,653 98.9 -1.1

17

56



 

This note is addressed to the Members and Officers of the Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund (LCCPF) and 
relates to the currency hedging programme operated by Kames Capital.  

Programme’s aim 

The currency programme’s overarching aim is to protect capital and to generate an excess return, whilst being watchful 

for developments that might adversely affect the value of the fund’s underlying assets and the Scheme’s solvency 

position. The neutral position for the currency hedging programme is to maintain a half-hedge over all the currency 

exposure generated by its equity investments.  

As part of our investment approach, some of the factors important in our decision-making for the programme include: 

(i) Cost of hedging - currency hedging is not a cost-free activity. The running cost of a currency hedge is based on the 

difference between the two countries’ interest rates. Riskier currencies tend to have higher domestic interest rates 

and are thus more expensive to hedge. Minimising hedging (or ‘insurance’) costs incurred is an important part in 

our decision-making process  

(ii) Materiality - there are several currencies that have a weight of less than 0.5% in the programme. Typically, we 

would not hedge these as they are deemed as immaterial, unless the threat on the currency is extreme. Currently, 

in the programme there are 17 currencies that have a weight of less than 0.5% which, in total, represent around 

2.7% of the benchmark (as at 31 July 2019). 

(iii) Correlation – the primary remit of the programme is to protect capital. Individual currency exposure can increase or 

reduce risk; a positive correlation (with equity markets) will add risk and vice-versa. It should be remembered that 

while cost of hedging will generally change slowly over time, correlations can alter sharply. For example, for a large 

period of time prior to the Financial Crisis in 2008, sterling-based investors were effectively adding risk to their 

international equity portfolio through maintaining exposure to the Japanese Yen (i.e. the Yen/sterling exchange rate 

was positively correlated with equity market movements). Since then, correlations have reversed and exposure to 

the Japanese Yen has acted to reduce risk from investing in international equities. A client with a static currency 

hedging policy of 100%, for example, would have gone from a position of reducing risk to adding risk without doing 

anything at all. 

Sterling overview 

Prime Minister Boris Johnson has promised that Britain will leave the EU on 31 October, and has filled the government 

with hardline Brexiteers. He is aiming to use the no deal as a credible negotiating strategy. The new government has 

therefore raised uncertainty in the Brexit process, which has been reflected in substantial weakening in GBP against 

both the USD and EUR in recent weeks. 

We continue to view the most likely outcome as an orderly Brexit by year-end, but have raised our probability of a no 

deal outcome. The strategy of a no deal pursued by the new government is a credible threat. Even if this is not 

delivered we expect sterling to weaken further along the escalation path towards the Brexit deadline. 

There are a number of events that will keep sterling weak. The Conservative Party conference is at the end of 

September and the EU summit is planned for 17-18 October. It is difficult to see any resolution before these events. In 

addition, the leader of the opposition party, Jeremy Corbyn, is expected to table a vote of no-confidence in the 

government early in September. If this no-confidence vote is successful, it is PM Johnson who controls when a 

general election would be delivered, and it is widely expected that this would be after 31 October and Brexit.  This 

would be negative for sterling.  

In our view the likelihood of a no deal Brexit continues to rise, as a new cliff-edge has been created for 31 October. 

We would estimate that the probability has now risen to greater than 50%. We do not believe that an election nor a 

hard Brexit is fully priced. If this comes to pass there will be downward pressure on GBP and gilt yields. 

 

 

Note to LCCPF: Currency hedging programme 

13 August 2019 
 

 

 

57

ctuohy_2
Text Box
Appendix C



 

 

page 2 

Below we discuss a number of scenarios. 

Scenarios 

1. Deal reached by 31 October 

This is likely to trigger a sterling bounce from the current soft levels as positioning is squeezed. In terms of an 

exchange rate vs the USD the upside is estimated to be 8-10%. In a deal scenario, subsequent fiscal loosening 

presents additional upside risk to GBP. 

2. No deal 

The UK leaves the EU without a deal on 31 October and sterling falls sharply due to expectations of sharp 

economic contraction and easier monetary policy. Leaving without a deal amid political chaos is probably the 

worst case short term scenario. We estimate the downside to the exchange rate to be nearer 10% against the 

USD, against European currencies it is likely to be less as the European economies will also be adversely 

effected by a chaotic exit. 

The political aspect is only one input into our 

investment decision and there remains other reasons 

to be cautious on sterling. Firstly, in the coming 

months we expect the UK economic data to remain 

weak. The economy has recently posted its first 

quarterly contraction since 2012.  Business surveys 

also confirm a continued decline in activity, 

especially in the manufacturing sector, partly as a 

result of UK related issues but also as a result of a 

global deceleration in growth. Secondly, in the next 

few months we expect the Bank of England to start 

to reconsider the level of interest rates with a view to 

cutting bank rate as the economy stays weak and 

inflation rates fall in to the year end. The combination 

of weaker growth, easier monetary policy and lower inflation are all expected to have a negative influence on the 

currency in the medium term. Thirdly, whilst valuations continue to point to sterling being undervalued we expect this 

to persist until the twin uncertainties of politics and the economy have been removed and that looks increasingly 

unlikely in the medium term. Finally, although positioning has moved sharply it is not at extreme levels. As such 

sterling remains vulnerable to negative news. Chart 1 shows current positioning and this suggests there is potential for 

GBP shorts to build further adding pressure to the currency. 

Current positioning 

Ten currencies are currently hedged – Hong Kong 

dollar, US dollar, the Euro, Swedish krona, Korean 

won, Taiwanese dollar, Thai baht, Chinese 

renminbi, Australian dollar and Canadian dollar at 

neutral hedge. All the remaining currencies in the 

benchmark are unhedged (0%), including the 

Japanese yen. Chart 2 details the current positions 

in the various blocs, and table 1 provides further 

granularity. Earlier in the year the programme was 

underweight sterling by over 20% due to risks 

around sterling. Currently, the programme is 9% 

underweight sterling, as such will add value if 

sterling was to depreciate. 

58



 

 

page 3 

Rationale for current positioning 

US dollar & proxies 

The largest weight in the index is the US dollar (56.9%). Earlier in the year 

we moved the USD from neutral to 25% as we judged the risks to sterling 

were increasing as Brexit and the political outlook deteriorated.  In addition 

we believed the probability of a “no deal” was increasing. On 23 May we 

moved the US dollar from 25% hedged position to neutral (50% hedged), 

as sterling had sold off sharply due to the deteriorating political 

environment, and we expected some short term consolidation. 

Currently we are neutral the US dollar however we will continue to monitor 

the political development and if the probability of a no deal increases we 

would reinitiate this position. 

Euro & proxies 

We are neutral the euro (EUR) and Swedish krona (SEK). Specifically on 

the EUR, activity data continues to be soft in the euro area as indicated by 

the continued disappointing manufacturing data and soft inflation. In 

addition the easing regime shift by the ECB and soft growth momentum will 

weigh on the currency. The EUR would also be impacted, although in our 

view not to the same extent as GBP, in a no deal Brexit. 

We recently unhedged the Swiss franc (CHF) due to ongoing trade 

uncertainty, slowing global growth and we expect the currency to perform 

strongly on a no deal Brexit outcome given its ‘safe haven’ status by 

investors. Whilst the currency is expensive on our valuations measures, and 

there is a small cost of hedging we judge it prudent, balancing risk and 

reward, for the programme’s CHF exposure to be unhedged. 

Asia and emerging market bloc 

The overall weight of these combined bloc is around 10%, and many of the 

currencies within it would not be hedged due to associated costs. In addition 

there are a number of currencies that have a weight of less than 0.5%. 

Typically we would not hedge these as they are deemed as immaterial, 

unless the threat on the currency is extreme. 

Japan 

Earlier in the year we had been unhedged (0%) Japanese yen as sterling 

had rallied sharply on more positive Brexit news. We judged this to be an 

overreaction and added protection by reinitiating an unhedged Japanese 

hedge position. At the end of May we returned the Japanese yen to 

neutral, we believed that much bad news was priced into safe haven 

assets, and the JPY had been one of the safest and best performing 

currencies in G10.  

Recently we have become more concerned on sterling, and as the 

programme is to mitigate risk we reinitiated the an unhedged (0%) 

Japanese yen position. In addition the JPY should perform well if there is any escalation of trade tensions. Having an 

unhedged exposure remains consistent with the programmes aim of adding value and reducing risk to the pension 

fund as a whole. Below we detail how we use our framework to assess our currency decisions.  

Recapping the fundamental view, the primary objective of the programme is to protect capital. The JPY is negatively 

correlated to equities an unhedged position will dampen the risk profile of the programme. From a macro perspective 

Source: Kames Capital 

59



 

 

page 4 

the Japanese economy continues to show signs of improving, with the latest print of 1.8% (year on year) GDP growth, 

was the third straight quarter of expansion. Also, in G10 the Bank of Japan is one of the most constrained central 

banks to ease policy further – all of which should benefit the currency. 

On valuations we examine the aggregate values of Purchasing Power Parities (PPP), Behavioural Equilibrium 

Exchange Rate (Beer) and the Fundamental Equilibrium Exchange Rate (FEER). The analysis concludes that the yen 

is one of the world’s cheapest currency. Valuations do not always correct quickly but the analysis confirms that the yen 

is well supported.  

Within this framework we also evaluate the cost of hedging. As detailed previously hedging is not a cost free activity. 
Japanese interest rates are lower than those in the UK so in this case the ‘cost’ is actually a ‘benefit’ and the investor is 
paid to hedge the yen. The ‘benefit’ foregone by not hedging is not meaningful and is not seen as an impediment to the 
decision to lift the yen hedge. 

On sentiment, positioning is neutral on the JPY after being underweight earlier in the year, but positioning could shift 

long, as it has in the past when bond yields have dropped. 

Finally the technical support is moving favourably for the yen. If equities soften due to trade tensions or fears of global 

growth Japanese investors will repatriate overseas capital that is invested overseas and that will benefit the currency. 

In addition the yen has momentum over sterling when we compare the currencies to various moving averages. 

China 

We are neutral on the Chinese Renminbi (CNY), the currency is expensive, there would be a cost to fully hedge the 

currency and it continues to be at the forefront of any trade war. 

Commodity bloc 

We are neutral on both the Australian dollar (AUD) and New Zealand dollar (NZD), as both these currencies have a 

positive correlation to equity markets. If we were to unhedge these currencies we would be increasing the risk profile 

of the programme. On the remaining currencies we are unhedged, due to small weight or we deem there is a 

unnecessary cost in hedging – as detailed previously we would not hedge these unless the threat on the currency is 

extreme. 

Overall 

Ultimately, we remain aware of the current changing UK political landscape and we will seek to unhedge the 

programme further if our probability of a no deal Brexit increases. 

 

 

 

 

 

Gareth Gettinby   Sandra Holdsworth 
Investment Manager   Investment Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

60



 

 

page 5 

Important information 

This document relates to the AAS provided by Kames Capital plc.  The AAS will be subject to the terms of an investment management agreement between Kames Capital 

plc and a pension fund selecting the AAS (or if the pension fund already has an investment management agreement in place with Kames Capital plc, this may be updated 

in conjunction with the pension fund to provide for the AAS) and subject to such disclaimers, notices, warnings or separate agreements, including those set out below, as 

Kames Capital plc may communicate to you or agree with you in writing. 

THE CONTENT OF THIS DOCUMENT IS DESIGNED FOR THE PROFESSIONAL PENSION FUND MARKET. IF YOU ARE NOT AN INVESTMENT PROFESSIONAL 

OR A PERSON PROFESSIONALLY INVOLVED IN OR HAVING RESPONSIBILITIES RELATING TO PENSION FUND MANAGEMENT YOU SHOULD NOT ACT UPON 

IT. 

This document is directed only at persons having professional experience in matters relating to investments falling within article 19 of the Financial Services and Markets 

Act 2000 (Financial Promotion) Order 2005 and high value entities or trusts falling within article 49 of that Order.  Consequently, Kames Capital plc has not approved the 

content of this document for the purposes of section 21 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000.  No other person should act upon this document or any information 

contained in it.  Kames Capital plc has procedures in place to ensure that no instrument or investment activity referred to in this document is available to any other person.    

The content of this [document] has been prepared solely for information purposes.  Any statements, forecasts, past performance data, estimates or projections included in 

the document are for illustrative purposes only and may be provided by Kames Capital or third parties.  Any view, opinions or statements made in or in relation to this 

document should not be interpreted as recommendations or advice.  Past performance is not a guide to future performance.  The value of investments and the income 

from them may fall as well as rise and there is no guarantee that the AAS will achieve the objectives described in this [document].    

No investment advice or tax advice is being given in this document.   Nothing in this document should be regarded as an offer to provide investment services or products 

or as a comment on the merits of engaging in any investment transaction or activity or an inducement to do so.  The content of this document is subject to change and 

correction without notice. 

Kames Capital does not represent that (i) the content of this document; (ii) any investments or investment services referred to in this document; or (iii) any oral or written 

statements provided by or made by Kames Capital or persons connected with it are suitable for or relevant to you.  

Kames Capital is an AEGON Asset Management company and includes Kames Capital plc (Company Number SC113505) and Kames Capital Management Limited 

(Company Number SC212159). Both are registered in Scotland and have their registered office at 3 Lochside Avenue, Edinburgh Park, Edinburgh, EH12 9SA. Kames 

Capital plc is authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authority (FSA reference no: 144267). Kames Capital plc provides segregated and retail funds and is the 

Authorised Corporate Director of Kames Capital ICVC, an Open Ended Investment Company.  Kames Capital Management Limited provides investment management 

services to AEGON, which provides pooled funds, life and pension contracts. Kames Capital Management Limited is an appointed representative of Scottish Equitable plc 

(Company Number SC144517), an AEGON company, whose registered office is 1 Lochside Crescent, Edinburgh Park, Edinburgh, EH12 9SE (FSA reference no: 165548).  

61



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 
LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE - 6 SEPTEMBER 2019 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 

 
PENSION FUND ADMINISTRATION – CURRENT DEVELOPMENTS  
 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to inform the Committee of relevant issues 
relating to administration of the Leicestershire Pension Fund (the Fund). 

 
 Background 
 
2. The Local Government Pension Scheme is a statutory public-sector pension 

scheme. Any scheme changes require regulator change that require an act of 
Parliament. The most current set of regulations and some earlier versions can 
be located on the website below. 

 
 http://www.lgpsregs.org/ 
 
 When regulations change the Leicestershire Fund must implement the 

changes. Changes can vary from very small amendments to significant 
scheme changes, for example when the final salary scheme changed to 
career average in April 2014.  

 
 There are various areas the Fund administrator considers when regulations 

change including; system changes and potential benefit re-calculations, 
communication to scheme members and changes to the website, annual 
benefit statement redesign, member self-service modeller result changes, 
informing Fund employers, informing the Local Pension Board, liaising with 
the Fund Actuary about potential implications to the Fund liabilities. Changes 
can be costly to implement and can be very time consuming for the 
administrator.   

 
To support Fund administrators there are various groups that assist. These 
include the Pension Officer Groups, Local Government Association, Technical 
Group, Communications Working Group, Local Pension Board, Scheme 
Advisory Board, Local Government Pension Committee. 
 
Whilst all these groups have a role the Scheme Advisory Board have 
significant influence on regulation changes and provide advice in relation to 
the effective and efficient administration and management of the Scheme. 
 

63 Agenda Item 8

http://www.lgpsregs.org/


 

Appendix A - titled The LGPS Community, briefly explains about these groups 
and their role and responsibilities.   
 
Externally the Fund must meet The Pension Regulators requirements under 
its Code of Practise. The Regulator has significant powers to investigate 
administrators and has recently done so at several LGPS Funds. Governance 
around pensions administration has increased over recent years and is 
expected to increase further.  
 
There have been several high profile legal challenges to public and private 
sector pension schemes over recent years. These have resulted in regulation 
changes impacting on scheme changes. Mr McCloud is a new case that will 
inevitably result in scheme changes that is detailed within the report. 
 

 
 Current Developments 
 
3.  McCloud 
 
 Following Lord Hutton’s review in 2011 on the cost effectiveness and fairness 

of public sector pensions, changes were made in 2014 and 2015 to public 
sector pension schemes rules that effectively moved all schemes members 
from final salary pension arrangements to career average revalued earnings 
(CARE) benefits. In some schemes all members moved at once (e.g. the 
LGPS on the 1 April 2014) while in other schemes this was via a taper date 
(e.g. Fire-fighters from 1 April 2015 onwards). Older scheme members, 
generally those within 10 years of retirement, were afforded additional 
protection providing them the greater of either final salary benefits or CARE 
benefits.    

  
The protection afforded to older scheme members was challenged by Mr 
McCloud as being age discriminatory and after various legal stages in the 
process, won his appeal. Government then chose to challenge the outcome of 
the appeal, however in July 2019 Government lost its right of appeal.  
 

 The ruling impacts on all public-sector pension schemes, but how this will be 
resolved and change scheme member’s pension benefits, is currently 
unknown. 

 
The impact of the McCloud case is estimated to be in the region of an 
increased cost to public service pensions of £4 billion per annum. There is 
likely to be a significant administration effort from this ruling, to check 
members are no worse off.  
 
The Leicestershire Fund has been working with the Fund actuary and will 
consider the financial impact of McCloud on employer rates for the 31 March 
2019 valuation.   

 
 Once more is known on the impact to scheme members benefits a further 

report will be presented to the Committee.  

64



 

 
 

 
4. Good Governance Project (previously known as the separation project) 

 
In 2015, the Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) commissioned KPMG to 
undertake a project to examine the issues and challenges of separating the 
pension’s functions of LGPS administering authorities from their host 
authorities. SAB’s concern was to ensure there is no conflict of interest 
between the administering authority and the interest of the pension fund. 
 
Earlier this year the SAB commissioned Hymans Robertson was set up to see 
how the recommendations that emerged from the exercise undertaken in 
2015, could be made to work in practice. This project became known as the 
Good Governance Project. 
 
On the 31 July 2019 the Good Governance report was published, attached as 
Appendix B to this report. The report includes comments from a wide variety 
of interested parties covering, Pension Fund Officers, 151 Officers and Trade 
Unions.  
 
The report covered four possible models to improve governance in the LGPS. 
These were; 
 

Model 1: Improved practice 
Introduce guidance or amendments to LGPS Regulations 2013 to 
enhance the existing arrangements by increasing the 
independence of the management of the fund and clarifying the 
standards expected in key areas. 
 

  Model 2: Greater ring-fencing of the LGPS within existing structures 
Greater separation of pension fund management from the host 
authority, including budgets, resourcing and pay policies. 

 
  Model 3: Form a Joint Committee (JC)  

Responsibility for all LGPS functions delegated to a JC comprising 
the administering authority and non-administering authorities in the 
fund. Inter-authority agreement (IAA) makes JC responsible for 
recommending budget, resourcing and pay policies. 
 

Model 4: New local authority body 
An alternative single purpose legal entity that would retain local 
democratic accountability and be subject to Local Government Act 
provisions. 

 
Some of the key findings from the report include; 
 

 Model 2 was the favoured option, from the engagement activity. This 
aligns with previous views from Leicestershire Fund Officers.  

 

65



 

 A great deal of good practice takes place already. 
 

 Pension administration stays within the host authority. 
 

The next stages are for the SAB to consider the results of the report and to 
specifically look at the detailed proposals included in the report to decide if 
they wish to implement these. 
 
Officers expect these proposals to be considered and possibly consulted on 
before implementation. However, Officers will start considering areas where 
the Fund needs to strengthen its governance arrangements in preparation of 
the proposals. 
 
The Committee will receive an update on the final SAB decision once 
available. 
 
 

5.  Leicestershire Valuation 
 
The Local Pension Committee received a report on the 5 July 2019 detailing 
the valuation process. Since July, the Pension Section has been 
predominately working on checking and loading accurate scheme members 
data. 
 
The Pension Section has completed the year-end data checks for all the 
Fund’s employers and final data changes are being made. 
 
Leicester City Council is the only Fund employer that has a significant number 
of data queries unresolved. However, given the size of the City this does not 
represent a material issue for the Fund valuation but will delay the production 
of approximately 450 annual benefit statements. The City Council are aware 
of this and Officers at the City Council are working to resolve the issues as 
quickly as possible. 
 
The Fund value and initial employer rates will be available in October 2019 
with Officers and the Actuary presenting the results and draft Funding 
Strategy Statement to the Local Pension Committee on the 8 November 2019.   
 
 

6.  Completion and Markets Authority (CMA) – Investment Consultancy 
 

At the end of 2018, the CMA finalised its review of the investment consulting 
and fiduciary management markets. The CMA set out a draft Order, setting 
out requirements for the appointment and governance of fiduciary managers, 
and for pension scheme trustees to set objectives for their investment 
consultants. When the final Order was released in June the scope 
unexpectedly extended to the LGPS. 
 
The Order could have resulted in Funds being required to formally tender for 
services from their pool companies. However, subsequent draft DWP 

66



 

regulations do not include the LGPS. This has left uncertainty around the 
implications of the CMA Order, although the expectation is that pool 
companies will remain out of scope. 
 
One of the provisions of the Order that the Fund is expected to be required to 
act upon is the setting of objectives for Investment Consultancy providers, to 
be reviewed every three years. A proposal will be brought to the November 
Committee on this matter. 
 
 
Recommendation 

 
7.  It is recommended that the Pension Committee note the report. 
 
  Equality and Human Rights Implications 

 
None specific 
 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A – The LGPS Community 
Appendix B – Good Governance Report 
 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Ian Howe – Pensions Manager - telephone (0116) 305 6945 
 
Declan Keegan – Assistant Director of Strategic Finance and Property - 
telephone (0116) 305 6199 
      

67



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
The LGPS Community 

 
The purpose of this document is to explain the relationship between the different 
bodies that make up the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) community. It 
does not explain the governance structure of the LGPS, which is already well 
documented, and is not a comprehensive guide to the roles and responsibilities of 
the bodies that make up the community. 
 
The Pensions Regulator’s (TPR) website provides information on the governance 
structure for public sector pension schemes and the respective roles and 
responsibilities. 
 
Readers should note that the LGPS in England and Wales, Scotland and Northern 
Ireland are three different pension schemes. 
 
The diagram on the next page illustrates the formal relationship between the different 
bodies. In reality, many of the bodies work together informally on a collaborative 
basis and are in regular contact. 
 
LGPS administering authorities 
Each administering authority is responsible for managing and administering the 
LGPS in relation to its members. The administering authority is responsible for 
maintaining and investing its own fund for the LGPS. 
 

Where the administering authority is also the local authority (as is the case for the 
majority of administering authorities) it is not possible for certain decisions about 
pension allowances or the amount of pension to be paid to employees to be an 
executive decision. This means in practice that decisions about pensions are 
delegated in accordance with Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 Act to: 
 

 pension committees or sub committees made up of the administering authorities’ 
councillors (from all political groups). Some of the committees / sub committees 
will also have additional co-opted members such as employer and scheme 
member representatives, or 

 administering authority officers. 
 
Each administering authority must have in place a governance compliance 
statement setting out whether it delegates its functions, or part of its functions 
under the Regulations to a committee, a sub-committee or an officer of the 
authority. 
 
Each administering authority will decide whether the day to day administration of the 
LGPS is performed in-house, by a third party or as part of a shared service 
agreement with another administering authority. 
 
In Northern Ireland, the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' 
Superannuation Committee (NILGOSC) is responsible for managing and 
administering the LGPS in relation to members of the LGPS in Northern Ireland. It is 
also responsible for maintaining and investing the pension fund. 

69

https://www.tpr.gov.uk/en/public-service-pension-schemes/understanding-your-role/roles-and-responsibilities#9912ad01549b4891844be9f9eb683051
ctuohy_3
Typewritten Text
Appendix A



2 
 

70



3 
 

Pension officer groups (POGs) 
POGs provide an opportunity for pension administrators (usually the pension 
manager and/or deputy manager) to meet on a regular basis to discuss current 
issues and share best practice. In Scotland the group is referred to as the Scottish 
Pensions Liaison Group (SPLG) and is also attended by representatives from 
NILGOSC. 
 
In England and Wales there are eight regional POGs: 
 
London East Midlands 

South East Shrewsbury 

Wales Southern area 

South West North of England 

  

Meetings usually take place quarterly. 
 
Where an issue or query cannot be resolved within the POG itself, or a national 
view is required, it is referred to the Technical Group for consideration. 
 
The LGPC Secretariat attends POGs to provide updates on the latest developments 
and provide technical support. Further information about POGs, including meeting 
dates and the contact details for POG chairs can be obtained by emailing the LGPC 
Secretariat – query.lgps@local.gov.uk. 
 
Technical Group 
The Technical Group is made up of nominees from the POGs and SPLG. Each 
POG is able to nominate up to two representatives for membership, whilst SPLG 
and NILGOSC are able nominate one member each. 
 
The group is also attended by representatives of the following organisations: 
 

 LGPC 

 Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) 

 Scottish Public Pensions Agency (SPPA1) 

 Department for Communities (Northern Ireland) 
 
The POG and SPLG nominees are able to raise any issues / areas for discussion 
identified at the regional POGs. 
 
The purpose of the Technical Group is set out in its terms of reference – a summary 
is provided below: 
 

 to provide advice and guidance to POGs and administering authorities, in 
particular in relation to the interpretation of legislation 

 to assist with the development of consistent standards and improve the quality 
of information available to LGPS administering authorities 

                                                           
1 SPPA provides policy advice to Scottish Ministers on public sector pension issues and is responsible for 
developing the regulations for Scotland’s LGPS – and for determining any appeals made by its members 

71

mailto:query.lgps@local.gov.uk
http://lgpslibrary.org/assets/minutes/TG20190308AppB.pdf


4 
 

 to liaise with the responsible authority2 for each LGPS scheme 

 to represent the views of administering authorities in relation to the direction of 
pension policy and the desirability of making changes to Scheme regulations. 

 
The group is facilitated by the LGPC Secretariat who publish the minutes on their 
website for LGPS administering authorities and employers. 
 

Communications Working Group 
The Communications Working Group (CWG) is a collaborative forum made up of 
representatives from 20 administering authorities in England and Wales. The group 
meets on a quarterly basis to develop items of communication for scheme members 
in the LGPS. The group was created and is run by the LGPC. 
 
The CWG provides the opportunity for LGPS funds to share knowledge and 
experience in the field of communications and to assist the LGPC secretariat in the 
development and provision of centrally devised communications resources. 
 
The CWG priorities include the identification of best practice within pension 
communications generally and the LGPS specifically, exploring the areas where 
centrally produced communications would save individual LGPS funds financial 
resources and staff time. 
 
The documents produced by the LGPC in conjunction with the CWG for the LGPS 
can be found on LGPC’s website for administering authorities and employers, along 
with the annual work plan and actions and agreements from each meeting. 
 
Individuals can put themselves forward for membership of the group to the LGPC 
secretariat for consideration. To ensure effective debate and discussion can occur, 
the optimum number which the group aims to retain is approximately 20 members. 
Once at capacity the group will retain requests for membership from other interested 
parties and where members leave or are unable to attend meetings then 
consideration will be given by the Secretariat to incorporate these requests. 
 
Local Government Pension Committee (LGPC) 
The LGPC is a committee of councillors constituted by the: 
 

 Local Government Association (LGA) 

 Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) 

 Convention of Scottish Local Authorities (COSLA) 
 
As such, it covers the LGPS administering authorities in England, Scotland and 
Wales. Councillors are nominated for membership of the LGPC by their respective 
political group at the LGA - each political group has its own appointment process. 
 
Membership numbers mirror the political balance of the LGA. The chair is a 
committee member from the largest political group at the LGA and is nominated for 
the role by the Committee. 
 

                                                           
2 Defined in the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 as the person who may make scheme regulations  

72

http://www.lgpsregs.org/bulletinsetc/tgminutes.php
http://www.lgpsregs.org/
mailto:query.lgps@local.gov.uk
mailto:query.lgps@local.gov.uk
https://www.local.gov.uk/about/our-meetings-and-leadership/political-composition/political-group-appointments


5 
 

The Committee meets four times a year. Meetings are facilitated by the LGPC 
Secretariat and are also attended by representatives from the following 
organisations: 
 

 SAB England and Wales - the nominated practitioner representative 

 the Technical Group 

 Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) 

 Scottish Public Pensions Agency (SPPA) 

 Department for Communities (Northern Ireland) 
 
In addition any elected member of the Scheme Advisory Board (England and 
Wales) is able to attend LGPC meetings as an observer. Meeting minutes are 
published on the LGPC secretariat’s website for LGPS administering authorities 
and employers. 
 
The LGPC represents local authority interests in dealing with government and others 
on local government pension issues. It also provides an advice and information 
network for LGPS administering authorities. The LGA provides the secretariat 
service for the LGPC. The service includes: 
 

 a library of technical guides on the LGPS and related compensation matters 

 a library of guides and leaflets for employees and councillors of the LGPS 
for administering authorities and employers to download and personalise for their 
own use 

 a monthly bulletin highlighting issues affecting the LGPS 

 an online library of LGPS statutory guidance and other related legislation 

 the upkeep of timeline regulations for the LGPS 

 a national website for members of the LGPS in England and Wales 

 attendance at regional pensioner officer group meetings to provide technical 
support 

 representing the interests of LGPS administering authorities at a national level 
with government and other bodies, such as national employer groups, the 
Pensions Regulator and the Pensions Ombudsman. 

The LGPC secretariat also provides a programme of pensions training for LGPS 
pension practitioners, LGPS employers, pension committee and local pension board 
members. 

Local pension boards 
The LGPS Regulations and the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 require that each 
‘scheme manager’ establishes a local pension board. This requirement has been in 
place since 1 April 2015.  For England, Wales and Scotland this means that each 
administering authority must establish a separate local pension board. 
 
The local pension board has responsibility for assisting the scheme manager in the 
effective and efficient governance and administration of the Scheme, as well as 
ensuring compliance with: 
 

 the Scheme regulations 

73

http://www.lgpsregs.org/bulletinsetc/lgpcminutes.php
http://lgpsregs.org/resources/guidesetc.php
http://lgpsregs.org/resources/guidesetc.php
http://lgpsregs.org/bulletinsetc/bulletins.php
http://lgpsregs.org/index.php
http://lgpsregs.org/schemeregs/index.php
https://www.lgpsmember.org/


6 
 

 any other legislation relating to the governance and administration of the 
Scheme and any connected scheme 

 any requirements imposed by the Pensions Regulator in relation to the Scheme 
and any connected scheme. 

 
A local pension board must be made of up of equal numbers of employer and 
member representatives (with a minimum of four representatives) and may also 
include other members. Where an independent chair is appointed he/she will be 
classed as an ‘other’ member.  
 
The method of appointing representatives and other members to a local pension 
board is determined by each administering authority. Information about how a 
particular administering authority’s appointment process works can be obtained by 
contacting the relevant administering authority directly or by accessing their 
website.   
 
Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) 
Each LGPS scheme is required by law to establish a SAB – the role of which is to 
advise the authority responsible for making the regulations of the desirability of 
changes to the Scheme. SABs can also provide advice to administering authorities 
and local pension boards in relation to the effective and efficient administration and 
management of the Scheme. 
 
England and Wales 
The chair and vice-chair of the SAB are appointed by the Secretary of State.  
 
The Board is made up of six employer and six member representatives. Members 
are nominated for membership by the appropriate representative body. 
 
The chair is also able to appoint three non-voting advisory members to the Board. 
The appointments are made following nominations from one or more of the 
organisations representing scheme stakeholders, the wider pensions industry or 
LGPS administering authorities. 
 
The SAB has two sub-committees:  

 Cost management, benefit design and administration committee 

 Investment, governance and engagement committee 
 
The membership profile and terms of reference for each sub-committee is available 
to view on the Board website.   
 
Scotland 
Joint chairs are nominated respectively by local government scheme employers and 
the relevant trade unions from the SAB membership and formally appointed by 
Scottish Ministers.  
 
The Board is made up of seven employer and seven member representatives. 
Members are nominated for membership by the appropriate representative body. 
 
 

74

http://www.lgpsboard.org/index.php/sub-comms/membership-remit


7 
 

Northern Ireland 
The Advisory Board is chaired by a senior departmental official at Grade 5 level. 
 
The Board is made up of four employer and four member representatives. Members 
are nominated for membership by the appropriate representative body. 
 
More information about each of the Boards including the terms of reference is 
available at: 
 
England and Wales: http://www.lgpsboard.org/ 
Scotland: http://lgpsab.scot/ 
Northern Ireland: https://www.nilgosc.org.uk/ 
 

The responsible authority   

The responsible authority is responsible for making the regulations that govern the 
scheme rules. For the LGPS schemes they are: 

 

England and Wales: the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local 
Government (MHCLG) 

Scotland: the Scottish Ministers3  

Northern Ireland: the Department for Communities  

                                                           
3 SPPA provides policy advice to Scottish Ministers on public sector pension issues and is responsible for 
developing the regulations for Scotland’s LGPS – and for determining any appeals made by its members 
 

75

http://www.lgpsboard.org/
http://lgpsab.scot/
https://www.nilgosc.org.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



July 2019

Good governance  
in the LGPS

77



2 Good governance in the LGPS

Addressee
This report is addressed to our client, the Scheme Advisory Board for the Local Government Pension Scheme 
 in England and Wales (SAB).

This Report has been prepared for the benefit of our client, the SAB.  As this Report has not been prepared 
for a third party, no reliance by any third party may be placed on the Report. It follows that there is no duty or 
liability by Hymans Robertson LLP (or its members, partners, officers, employees and agents) to any party other 
than the SAB. If this report is shared with any third party, it must be shared in its entirety.

Thanks to contributors
We are indebted to all those who responded to the survey and engaged in interviews and events that helped 
inform this report.  We are grateful to you for being generous with your time and expertise, for your confidence 
in sharing your experiences openly and for responding so constructively and creatively. 

Your views on current best practice, areas for improvement and creative and practical ideas for further 
strengthening governance in the LGPS are reflected in the proposals we present to SAB here. 

We hope that your contribution will help further strengthen and future-proof governance in the LGPS.

78



July 2019 i

Contents

Authors

Catherine McFadyen
Head of LGPS Actuarial, 

Benefits and Governance
catherine.mcfadyen@hymans.co.uk

John Wright
Head of Public Sector
john.wright@hymans.co.uk

Ian Colvin
Head of Benefits Consulting

ian.colvin@hymans.co.uk

Steven Law
Actuary

steven.law@hymans.co.uk

Executive summary .................................................................................................................................................................................................................1

1.  Introduction ...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................3

2.  Process ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................4

3.  Survey results .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................6

4.  Survey themes .....................................................................................................................................................................................................................9

5.  Examples of best practice .......................................................................................................................................................................................... 13

6.  Proposals ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 14

Appendix A: Scheme Advisory Board Good Governance Survey ............................................................................................................. 22

Appendix B: Abbreviations ............................................................................................................................................................................................. 29

79



1 Good governance in the LGPS

Governance in the LGPS is 
evolving to accommodate 
new developments in the last 
decade, including oversight 
by The Pensions Regulator, 
introduction of Local 
Pension Boards, increasing 
complexity in scheme benefits 
and administration, local 
government funding cuts and 
pooling of LGPS investments 
which has changed the role of 
local pensions committees and 
the way LGPS administering 
authorities work with one 
another.

The SAB commissioned this report to examine 
the effectiveness of current LGPS governance 
models and to consider alternatives or 
enhancements to existing models which can 
strengthen LGPS governance going forward. 

Given the unique nature of the LGPS, 
guaranteed by administering authorities and 
funded to a large degree by tax-payers, a 
criterion specified by SAB is that any models 
considered must maintain strong links to local 
democratic accountability.  

Executive summary

Process
We engaged extensively with all stakeholder 
groups and all fund types via an online survey 
(140 respondents), one-to-one conversations 
through interviews and seminars  
(153 respondents), speaking engagements, 
a workshop with the Association of Local 
Authority Treasurers (ALATS), and discussion 
with the CIPFA Pensions Panel and the 
Society of County Treasurers (SCT). 

We focussed on the following criteria 
for assessing governance arrangements; 
Standards, Consistency, Representation, 
Conflict Management, Clarity of Roles and 
Responsibilities and Cost.  We were asked by 
SAB to consider how existing and alternative 
governance models fared against these 
criteria. 

We considered four governance models:

• Model 1: improved practice

• Model 2: Model 1 plus greater ring-fencing

• Model 3: joint committee;  and 

• Model 4: separate Local Authority body.  

These models were described in qualitative 
terms with the recognition that  some of the 
characteristics attributed to one model could 
also be replicated in another model and that 
the final solution may draw on the features of 
more than one model.

Results and themes from 
survey responses
The online survey responses indicated a 
first preference for governance Model 2 
(greater ring-fencing) followed by support for 
Model 1 (improved practice).  Respondents 
recognised that governance models along 
these lines may need independent monitoring 
to add bite and ensure consistency of 
application.  >>

one-to-one 
conversations

discussions with 
CIFPA and SCT

153 attendees at 
interviews and seminars

140 respondents  
to our online survey

80



July 2019 2

Model 2 was also the clear preference in additional surveys at the 
PLSA conference in May* and other events (*Models 1 and 2 between 
them had more than 70% support). 

Few respondents supported Model 3 (joint committee) citing 
no benefits over existing arrangements and considerable added 
complexity as the main reasons.  Some respondents could see value 
in Model 4 (separate LA body), including one trade union for whom 
a version of this was the favoured model.  However, for most this 
value was outweighed by concern about weakening relationships 
with councils who are key sponsors of the scheme and a belief that 
establishing this model would incur disproportionate cost to any 
benefits that could be delivered.

Through the written responses, interviews and other engagement, 
many stakeholders pointed out that their existing models provided 
many of the features and benefits of Models 1 and 2.  Many had found 
good solutions to some of the challenges faced within the current 
structure and welcomed the opportunity to share these with peers 
and learn from others’ experiences. This process enabled us to identify

i. Some best practice within current governance arrangements that 
is delivering good outcomes and may have potential for wider 
application across the LGPS; and 

ii. Additional ideas for further strengthening governance within the 
current regulatory framework.  

We have included these in the report.

Conclusions
• It is clear from survey responses that governance structure is not 

the only determinant of good governance.  Funds with similar 
governance models deliver different results and good examples 
exist across a range of different set ups. 

• Survey respondents were also clear that establishment of new 
bodies is not required, although this should be facilitated for funds 
who wish to pursue other arrangements voluntarily. Instead, the 
focus should be on greater specification of required governance 
outcomes from within the existing structures, and a process to hold 
funds to account for this.

• Respondents favour developing a set of standards that all funds 
are required to achieve, drawing on current best practice and not 
imposing disproportionate burden on administering authorities or 
disrupting current practices that deliver good outcomes already.

• Respondents emphasised that independent review is needed to 
ensure consistency in application of standards.

Key proposals

‘Outcomes-based’ approach to LGPS 
governance with minimum standards 
rather than a prescribed governance 
model.

Critical features of the ‘outcomes-
based’ model should include:  
(a) robust conflict management 
including clarity on roles and 
responsibilities for decision-making;   
(b) assurance on sufficiency of 
administration and other resources 
(quantity and competency) and 
appropriate budget;  
(c) explanation of policy on employer 
and scheme member engagement and 
representation in governance; and  
(d) regular independent review of 
governance – this should be based on 
an enhanced governance compliance 
statement which should explain how 
the required outcomes are delivered.

Enhanced training requirements for 
s151s and s101 committee members 
(requirements for s101 should be on a 
par with LPB members).

Update relevant guidance and better 
sign-posting. This should include 
2014 CIPFA guidance for s151s on LGPS 
responsibilities and 2008 statutory 
guidance on governance compliance 
statements. This guidance  
pre-dates both TPR involvement in 
LGPS oversight, local pension boards 
and LGPS investment pooling.

We also set out suggested actions for 
implementing these proposals if agreed by 
SAB. 

1

2

3

4

Respondents favour developing a set of standards 
that all funds are required to achieve...

81



3 Good governance in the LGPS

Context, purpose and scope
Governance in the LGPS is evolving to 
accommodate new developments in the last 
decade, including oversight by The Pensions 
Regulator, introduction of Local Pension 
Boards, increasing complexity in the scheme 
benefits and administration, local government 
funding cuts and pooling of LGPS investments 
which has changed the role of local pensions 
committees and the way LGPS administering 
authorities work with one another.

The purpose of the survey, undertaken 
for SAB, was to identify ways of further 
strengthening LGPS governance in the face 
of these new challenges, setting a bar for 
standards that all funds should achieve, 
drawing on current best practice and not 
imposing additional unnecessary burden on 
administering authorities or disrupting current 
practices that deliver good outcomes already.

Given the unique nature of the LGPS, 
guaranteed and funded to a large degree 
by council tax-payers, a critical condition 
specified by the SAB was that any proposals 
must maintain strong links to local democratic 
accountability.  

1.  Introduction

In developing the proposals made in this 
report, we consulted with many LGPS 
stakeholders.  As expected, there were 
many different views and suggestions made 
to improve the governance arrangements in 
the LGPS.  We have reflected many of these 
views in the body of the report, particularly 
where a view or proposal was articulated 
by several parties, and where possible we 
have indicated why some of these views or 
suggestions have not been taken forward in 
the final proposals.  The proposals submitted 
to SAB in this report are those we believe 
would deliver improved governance at 
proportionate cost and reflect a consensus 
across most stakeholders.

We recognise that there are a small number 
of administering authorities (such as London 
Pensions Fund Authority and the Environment 
Agency) with unique arrangements. While 
we engaged with both of these funds 
to understand their perspectives and 
approaches to governance we recognise that  
some of the potential governance models as 
set out in the survey may not be appropriate, 
or even possible, for these bodies.  

Governance in  
the LGPS is 
evolving to 
accommodate 
developments  
in the last 
decade...

82



July 2019 4

The aim of the work we have undertaken was 
to deliver proposals to the Scheme Advisory 
Board that:

• Identify and address any actual or 
perceived issues within current LGPS 
governance arrangements, including 
conflicts for LGPS host authorities;

• Are based on a wide consultation to 
increase the likelihood of stakeholder 
support;

• Are proportionate and can be readily 
implemented; and

• Maintain local democratic accountability.

2.  Process

Process
The process we used is described below:

1. Fact-find phase: We carried out 
interviews based on an open-scripted 
questionnaire with a diverse range of 
experienced officers, elected members 
and other stakeholders in order to identify 
any issues within current LGPS governance 
arrangements.  The outcome and 
conclusions were shared with SAB in order 
to assist in developing the governance 
models which were consulted on in the 
online survey.

2. Online survey: We conducted a wider 
consultation in the form of an online survey 
on the governance models identified by 
SAB.  Input was sought from all relevant 
parties including s151 officers, s151 officers 
of non-administering authorities, pension 
fund officers, elected members, pension 
board members including scheme 
member and employer representatives 
as well as other interested parties and 
organisations.  

3. Other engagement activities: In addition 
to the survey, we engaged stakeholders 
through other activities such as interviews, 
seminars and speaking events to capture 
as wide a view as possible.    

4. Report: This report sets out the outcomes 
of our consultation activities including 
a full analysis of the key issues and 
proposals for addressing these issues, 
including commentary on any required 
legislative or guidance changes were these 
would realise significant benefits.     

83



5 Good governance in the LGPS

Who we consulted
In conducting our wider consultation, we 
engaged directly with all stakeholder groups 
and all fund types via:

• Online surveys which were sent to all 
relevant contacts on SAB’s and Hymans 
Robertson’s databases.  These were also 
sent to any individual or organisation that 
requested them out with the initial mailing 
lists.  In total, 140 responses were received 
to our online surveys by the closing date.  

• One-to-one interviews were carried 
out with individuals or organisations by 
request or where further clarification 
of online responses were sought.  
Organisations included PSAA, NAO, 
CIPFA, SLT, Unite and Unison.

• Some organisations, such as CIPFA 
and PIRC, provided their own written 
submissions.

2.  Process (continued)

• Three seminars were held with open 
invitations to collate feedback from larger 
group.    

There are 87 1 funds within the LGPS in 
England and Wales.  We had direct feedback 
from representatives at 76 of these split 
across the various designations used by SAB 
in their annual report (see Table 1).

We engaged with a wide variety of 
stakeholders as set out in Chart 1 below.

In addition, we have presented and collected 
feedback at key events over the period 
including the PLSA conference, CIPFA 
Pensions Panel, meetings of the Society 
of County Treasurers, Society of Welsh 
Treasurers and ALATS. Our findings and 
proposals reflect feedback from all of these. 

Table 1: Respondents from LGPS funds in England and Wales, as designated by SAB annual report

Interaction through
Universe Responses Survey Interview

Unitary Authorities 12 11 24 17
London Boroughs 31 22 20 25
County Councils 27 26 64 55
Welsh Funds 8 8 15 14
Metropolitan Boroughs 6 6 8 17
Other 3 3 2 3
Independent responses   7 22
TOTAL 87 76 140 153

Chart 1: Stakeholders we engaged

1  Excluding admission body funds, passenger transport funds and the environment agency closed fund. 

2  Including trade union representatives.

0

Other interested parties 2

Pensions Board members

Committee Chairs

Employers (non-administering authority)

Pension Fund Officers

s151 Officers

30 60 90 120 150

31

50

139

47

15

11

84



July 2019 6

The online survey issued as part of the 
consultation is set out in Appendix A.   
We sought views on four potential 
governance models SAB chose to consult on.  
All were assessed by respondents against 
criteria agreed with SAB.  This was done 
through a combination of numerical scoring 
and free form commentary.

A summary of the numerical scores are set 
out below for each of the four structures:

• Model 1 (Improved practice) 
Introduce guidance or amendments to 
the LGPS Regulations to enhance the 
existing arrangements by increasing the 
independence of the management of 
the fund and clarifying the standards 
expected in key areas.

• Model 2 (Greater ringfencing) 
Clearer ringfencing of pension fund 
management from the host authority, 
including budgets, resourcing and pay 
policies.

• Model 3 (Joint committee) Responsibility 
for all LGPS functions delegated to a joint 
committee comprising the administering 
authority and non-administering 
authorities in the fund.  Inter-authority 
agreement (IAA) makes joint committee 
responsible for recommending budget, 
resourcing and pay policies.

• Model 4 (New Local Authority Body) 
An alternative single purpose legal entity 
that would retain local democratic 
accountability and be subject to Local 
Government Act 1972 provisions.

3.  Survey results

In carrying out the survey, respondents were asked whether each of 
the models shown would have a positive or negative impact on each of 
the following criteria: 

1 Standards

The model enables funds to meet good 
standards of governance across all areas 
of statutory responsibility including TPR 
requirements.

2 Clarity
The model delivers clarity of 
accountability and responsibility for each 
relevant role.

3 Conflict

The model minimises conflicts between 
the pension function and the host local 
authority, including but not limited to s151 
officer conflicts (in operational areas such 
as budgets, resourcing, recruitment and 
pay policies and in strategic areas such as 
funding and investment policy).

4 Consistency

The model minimises dependence on 
the professionalism of individuals and 
existing relationships to deliver statutory 
responsibilities.

5 Representation

The model allows for appropriate 
involvement in decision-making for key 
stakeholders (including administering 
authority, non-administering authorities, 
other employer and member 
representatives).

6 Cost
The cost of implementing and running the 
model is likely to be worthwhile versus 
benefits delivered.

85



7 Good governance in the LGPS

2.  Survey results (continued)

Model 1

Model 2

Model 3

Model 4

The model allows for appropriate involvement in
decision-making for key stakeholder

DisagreeStrongly disagree Neutral Agree Strongly agree

Model 1

Model 2

Model 3

Model 4

The model enables funds to meet the required standards 

DisagreeStrongly disagree Neutral Agree Strongly agree

Model 1

Model 2

Model 3

Model 4

The model delivers clarity of accountability 
and responsibility for each relevant role

DisagreeStrongly disagree Neutral Agree Strongly agree

Model 1

Model 2

Model 3

Model 4

The model minimises conflicts between the
pension function and the host local authority

DisagreeStrongly disagree Neutral Agree Strongly agree

The following charts summarise the extent to which respondents agreed that each model delivered against the six 
criteria.  The further to the right the line appears, the more strongly respondents favoured the model against the criteria.

Comments on survey responses
• Across all questions and criteria, 

respondents gave the highest scores to 
Model 2, followed closely by Model 1.

• Model 4 scored reasonably well on 
questions relating to criteria 1 to 4.  
A minority of respondents supported this 
model or some variation on it. For example, 
one of the trade unions favoured a variant 
of Model 4 with a changed role for local 
councillors because they believe that it 
could reduce potential governance conflicts 
they see in the role of local councillors 
who must act in the best interests of 
scheme members and at the same 
time in the interests of local tax-payers. 
However, the majority of respondents 
raised concerns over the question of 
appropriate involvement in decision making. 
These respondents felt that democratic 
accountability may be weakened in this 
model or the influence of the lead local 
authority, who is the guarantor of last resort 
for the fund, would be diluted. The model 
also scored very poorly on cost or value 
for money with a majority of respondents 
feeling that the model would be very 
expensive and disruptive  
to implement.

• Model 3 received weakest support overall.  
Respondents felt that the model would be 
complex to set up and manage and would 
deliver no perceived improvements in 
governance outcomes.

• The sentiment reflected within the 
commentary in the responses was also 
strongly in favour of Models 1 and 2, with 
many respondents identifying features of 
Models 1 and 2 that are already delivered in 
their current structure.

• However, responses also recognised 
that in order to achieve governance 
improvements through Models 1 and 2, 
the governance regime needs to include 
independent monitoring or review of local 
fund arrangements to ensure that everyone 
attains a minimum standard and that 
those beyond that level seek continuous 
improvement.

86



July 2019 8

2.  Survey results (continued)

Additional survey data
In addition to the online survey, we 
asked attendees at our PLSA session and 
other events a set of questions on their 
preferences.

Around 70% of respondents favoured 
Models 1 or 2.  

Very similar results (from a smaller sample 
size) were recorded at our webinar.

Model 1

Model 2

Model 3

Model 4

The model minimises dependence on professionalism and
relationships to deliver statutory responsibilities

DisagreeStrongly disagree Neutral Agree Strongly agree

Model 1

Model 2

Model 3

Model 4

Which structural governance model do you prefer 
from the four models discussed?

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50%

24%

47%

12%

17%

Model 1

Model 2

Model 3

Model 4

Which structural governance model do you prefer 
from the four models discussed?

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50%

20%

50%

10%

20%

Model 1

Model 2

Model 3

Model 4

The cost of implementing and running the model is 
likely to be worthwhile versus benefits delivered

DisagreeStrongly disagree Neutral Agree Strongly agree

PLSA

Webinar

Across all questions and 
criteria, respondents gave 
the highest scores to Model 2, 
followed closely by Model 1.

87



9 Good governance in the LGPS

 ô Standards

1. There was an almost unanimous view that there should not be a 
single model of LGPS governance imposed on all funds.

2. The view ‘one size does not fit all’ was frequently stated by 
respondents from all categories of respondent. 

3. There was a strong view from respondents that members of 
pension committees should be mandated to have the same level of 
training as local pension board members. 

4. A small minority expressed the view that this would lead to 
problems getting elected members to sit on pension committees. 

5. The fact that pension committee members can change due 
to elections or being moved around can cause problems with 
consistency and maintaining knowledge and skills.

“It is a perversion that LPB members require a higher 
degree of training than elected members.” 
Officer, LB

“[The] biggest issue is stability at elected member level.   
Too much turnover.” 
Officer, LB

6. Several respondents said that guidance from several sources 
caused confusion as to which was current, which was relevant 
and what are ‘musts’ (mandatory) and ‘shoulds’ (guidance or best 
practice): 

“Funds are currently pulled in too many directions by lots 
of guidance – CIPFA, SAB, TPA etc.”
Officer, CC

“[Guidance from numerous sources] muddies the waters 
between what is statutory guidance and what isn’t.”
Independent Advisor

7. The idea of extending the existing concept of peer challenge 
to include pensions was mentioned by some respondents. 
(Committee Chair CC, s151 CC and officers Met)

The following section reflects some 
of the views raised during various 
conversations.  Direct quotations reflect 
a specific point made by an individual 
which we judged to be representative 
of views of a number of respondents.  
Comments not in quotations are our 
expression of views expressed by a 
significant number of respondents. 

Key:

CC County Council 
Met Metropolitan
LB London Borough
TU Trade Union

4.  Survey themes

88



July 2019 10

 ô Clarity of decision-making

1. Some respondents felt that there was already a 
clear framework around decision making within their 
authority but other reported that there was very little 
clarity around where key decisions were made.

2. Two funds suggested that it was unclear who was 
responsible for decisions around outsourcing the 
administration function; was it the pension committee, 
s151 officer, full council?

3. One fund reported it very difficult for the council’s 
constitution to be updated - the updates required for 
pooling have still not been made.

4. Greater clarity around decision-making is a good idea: 
“Some decision-making conventions are lost  
in the mists of time.” 
Officer, CC

 ô Consistency

1. Commentary on Models 1 and 2 recognised that some 
sort of monitoring, enforcement or independent review 
would be needed to ensure that the required standards 
and governance outcomes are delivered. 

2. There was strong support for the professionalism of 
s151 officers and the role they play.  

3. A few respondents noted that the work pressures on 
s151 officers is greater than ever before and worried 
about their scope to devote the necessary time to the 
fund.

“My s151 is incredibly supportive and helpful but 
I accept s151s at other funds are not as engaged or 
are engaged in the ‘wrong way’”. 
Officer, CC

“Separation would actually push s151s away 
from the fund, leading to less responsibility and 
engagement with the fund, leading in turn to 
less expertise and worse decisions.  Better to get 
s151s more closely involved so they understand 
the requirements of the LGPS and make better 
decisions.” 
Officer, CC

4. A number of respondents stated that “Statutory/
fiduciary duty clarity would be useful.” 

89



11 Good governance in the LGPS

4.  Survey themes (continued)

 ô Budgets and resourcing

1. There was a range of approaches when it came to 
budget setting.  In some instances, the budget available 
to the pension fund was determined as part of the 
wider council budget setting process with little or 
no input from pension officers and no role for the 
pension committee.  Other funds reported that budget 
setting and in-year management of the budget was the 
responsibility of pension officers and that the local 
authority’s s151 was ‘kept informed’.  

“It hadn’t occurred to me that the [pension] 
committee could get involved with budget 
setting.  Guidance on that would be good.”
Officer, LB

“Potential problems include transparency in 
the AA of its costs.  Recharges of time.  Costs 
recovered by the AA via the PF.” 
LPB Chair

2. There was also a split in terms of whether funds had the 
ability to set their own staffing or whether they were 
subject to recruitment freezes or downsizing exercises 
that apply to the main council. 

 
“[There should be] resourcing such that there 
is the quality and competence to deliver their 
statutory duties” 
s151, CC

One s151 expressed “disbelief that blanket hiring 
bans and pay policies affected the pensions 
section.  s151’s should be flexible enough to 
understand how to ‘spend’ resources.  If they 
need to pay differently for pensions to get the 
right experience/quality.” 
s151, CC

When it comes to budgeting and workplans  
“...the s101 committee decides including requests 
for extra resource if required.” 
Chair of Committee. CC

 ô Conflicts

1. Most respondents felt that there was 
acknowledgement of the potential conflict faced by 
elected members and officers and that those potential 
conflicts were managed well. 

2. However, it was not unusual for respondents to suggest 
that there needed to be better distinction between the 
employer and administering authority role.

“No one in the council understands the difference 
between the ‘council’ function and the ‘pension’ 
function.”
 Officer, LB

“The make-up of panel/committees is not 
working – too much political interference.” 
LPB Chair

On conflicts:  
“I don’t see abuses.  The ability is  
there for there to be abuse but it doesn’t happen.” 
Officer, CC

“LGPS is full of conflict, s101 committees are 
beholden to the council who are mainly focused 
on council tax-payers.” 
TU

3. Some pointed out that concentrating on conflicts 
missed some of the advantages of LGPS funds being 
part of local authorities.

“[This review] should address the many 
advantages and benefits of working for a large, 
well-run and modern council. 
s151 CC

“[s151] role involves tensions, not conflicts.  
Tension can’t always be seen as a bad thing.” 
Officers, Met

90



July 2019 12

4.  Survey themes (continued)

 ô Representation

1. Most respondents felt that there was a role for 
some sort of scheme member presence on pension 
committees. although there was a difference of 
opinion about whether this should be a voting role 
or an observer role.  A number of funds suggested 
that the scheme member role should not be limited 
to trade union representative.  All agreed that the 
majority representation must lie with the administering 
authority. 

“Less than 50% of our members are in a union.” 
s151, CC

“Representation is key – members must  
have a say” 
TU

“Other employers reps and member reps should 
have voting rights [on the committee]. That’s 
right and should happen.” 
Chair of Committee, CC

“We are warm towards the idea of an 
independent advisor/trustee who sits on 
committees.” 
s151, CC

“We want to improve things for our members 
in terms of governance, transparency and 
representation.” 
TU

2. There were strong views on both sides about the value 
that local pension boards bring.  Some feeling that they 
increased bureaucracy without adding value while for 
others they had become a useful part of the fund’s 
governance arrangements.

“I welcome the involvement of the Pension Board 
it adds value, second opinion.” 
Chair Committee, CC

One respondent believed that joint committee and 
local pension boards “give scheme members and 
other employers a voice and avoids duplication.” 
s151, CC

“Many administering authorities see boards as 
threats rather than opportunities. There are still 
boards who are dictated to. Need administering 
authorities to release tight control.” 
Chair of LPB

3. There were a range of practices in how funds engaged 
with employers:

“As s151 of a non-admin authority, I didn’t feel 
engaged in the pension fund, it was something 
that was dictated to me every few years.” 
s151 speaking of their time in a non administering authority

“Employer liaison is tricky as your participating 
employers often don’t see it as a priority.” 
s151, CC

91



13 Good governance in the LGPS

Regular governance reviews
A number of funds confirmed that they 
use internal audit to provide assurance on 
administration and governance matters.  
Some reported an annual programme of 
work with different aspects of delivery being 
assessed each time.

Other funds had commissioned external 
governance reviews in order to receive an 
independent assessment of their current 
arrangements. 

Committee membership  
and effectiveness  
A large number of funds stated that they 
required pension committee members to 
attain the same level of knowledge and 
expertise as local pension board members.  
This was achieved through training policies 
which set out clearly how the fund will deliver 
training and assess its effectiveness. 

One fund reported how members of the 
pension committee are required to sign a 
declaration stating that they will act in the 
interests of the fund and not be influenced 
by party political matters. One view is that 
councils should waive the requirement for 
political representation on committees to 
allow the most appropriate members to 
sit, rather than allocate places according to 
political party.

Most funds have some sort of scheme 
member representation on pension 
committees and a small number allow 
scheme member representatives to vote.

It was apparent during our conversations that many funds exhibited excellent 
examples of good governance but that practices across funds were not consistent.  
This section captures some of the examples of best practice that we identified.

5.  Examples of current best practice

Independence
A number of funds reported that there was a clear understanding of, 
and separation between, the functions of the pension fund and the 
local authority which recognised the specialist nature of the LGPS.  
This was typically achieved through one or more of the following 
features:

• A dedicated Head of Pensions role which was at an appropriately 
senior level within the authority’s structure.

• A recognition by elected members serving on the pension 
committee that, when carrying fund specific business, they were 
acting on behalf of scheme members and all of the employers in 
the fund, not simply their own local authority.

• Independent business planning and resourcing decisions made by 
pension fund officers and signed off by the pension committee 
and s151.  This allows the pension fund to plan and resource 
appropriately to deliver its strategic objectives.

• Pension fund not subject to same recruitment freezes or 
restructuring exercises applied at a council level.  Some funds 
reported using market supplements to attract appropriately skilled 
staff, where a strong business case could be made.

Focus on quality of service to scheme members
Some funds were prepared to ‘go the extra mile’ in terms of the 
quality of service delivered to scheme members.  This might involve 
encouraging face-to-face interaction between pensions staff and 
scheme members (particularly when considering complex or emotive 
matters), producing a range of communications aimed at active, 
deferred and pensioner members or holding annual member meetings 
to raise awareness of current issues. 

92



July 2019 14

The proposals we set out for consideration by SAB are informed by feedback from stakeholders. Many are things which 
well-run funds already do. 

• Table 1 shows the proposals in summary. 

• Table 2 sets out the rationale for each proposal and, if SAB agrees with proposals, suggested actions to implement.

6.  Proposals

Table 1: Summary of proposals

1 ‘Outcomes-based’ approach to LGPS governance with minimum standards rather than a prescribed 
governance structure.

2 Critical features of the ‘outcomes-based’ model to include:

a. Robust conflict management including clarity on roles and responsibilities for decision making.

b. Assurance on sufficiency of administration and other resources (quantity and competency) and appropriate budget.

c. Explanation of policy on employer and scheme member engagement and representation in governance. 

d. Regular independent review of governance - this should be based on an enhanced governance compliance 
statement which should explain how the required outcomes are delivered.

3 Enhanced training requirements for s151s and s101 committee members (requirements for s101 should be  
on a par with LPB members).

4 Update relevant guidance and better sign-posting.

Table 2: Rationale for proposals and suggested actions

Proposal Why Suggested actions

1 ‘Outcomes-based’ approach 
to LGPS governance rather than a 
prescribed governance structure.

We observe (and the survey 
evidences) that different 
administering authorities with 
the same governance structure 
can have different outcomes in 
terms of quality and standards of 
governance. All the governance 
models in the SAB survey can 
deliver good or bad governance 
outcomes. Focussing on the 
desirable traits and outcomes 
expected of LGPS governance 
will enhance governance in a 
more reliable and cost-effective 
manner than prescribed changes in 
structure.

Further, we do not believe it is 
appropriate to impose a ‘one size 
fits all’ approach.

i. SAB should consult on: 

• Desirable features and 
attributes of LGPS governance 
arrangements; 

• The outcomes governance 
arrangements should be 
expected to deliver; and 

• How each administering 
authority might evidence that its 
own governance model displays 
the required attributes. 

ii. Once identified and agreed 
through consultation, the 
desirable features and expected 
outcomes should be set out 
in statutory MHCLG guidance 
(replacing the 2008 CLG 
guidance).

93



15 Good governance in the LGPS

Proposal Why Suggested actions

2 Critical features of the 
‘outcomes-based’ model  
to include:

a. Robust conflict management.

b. Assurance on sufficiency 
of administration resources 
(quantity and competency) and 
appropriate budget.

c. Explanation of policy on 
employer and scheme member 
engagement and representation 
in governance. 

d. Regular independent review of 
governance.

The detailed specification of the 
desirable features and expected 
outcomes of an ‘outcomes-based’ 
model are beyond the scope of this 
project and should be determined 
in a second stage of work and 
through consultation. 

However, based on responses to 
the survey we propose a small 
number of critical elements to 
ensure this approach is effective. 
These proposals are shown below 
under 2(a) – (d).

SAB to consider making these 
features mandatory but determining 
other aspects of the detailed 
specification of features and 
expected outcomes in a further 
phase of work (as per Proposal 1).

2a Robust conflict management.

Administering authorities should be 
able to decide locally how they will 
evidence this requirement including 
for example: 
• Published conflicts policy.

• Protocols for setting and 
managing budgets.

• Schemes of delegation.

• Documented roles and 
responsibilities of elected 
members on s101 committees, 
s151 officers and pension fund 
officers.

Elected councillors and s151 officers 
have multiple competing statutory 
responsibilities, within their roles 
in the LGPS and in wider council 
responsibilities. High professional 
standards and experience help 
them to navigate. Additional 
measures specific to their LGPS 
duties can help reduce conflicts 
and perception of conflicts.

Many administering authorities 
already have a conflicts policy 
or alternative arrangements to 
help reduce the risk of conflicts 
including, for example, schemes 
of delegation or well defined 
and documented roles and 
responsibilities.

SAB should consider making 
this a mandatory feature of any 
‘outcomes-based’ governance 
model. 

Table 2: Rationale for proposals and suggested actions (continued)

6.  Proposals (continued)
94



July 2019 16

Proposal Why Suggested actions

2b Assurance administration and 
other resource (quantity and 
competency) sufficient to meet 
regulatory requirements and 
budget appropriate.

This will require a transparent 
approach to setting and managing 
budgets. 

Administering authorities should be 
able to decide locally how they will 
evidence this requirement including 
for example:

• Benchmarking.

• External expert advice.

• Internal or external audit.

• Review by LPB with appropriate 
expert advice. 

Administering authorities may 
need freedom to use market 
supplements to attract and retain 
staff and should not be tied to 
council staffing policies such as 
recruitment freezes.

The administrative burden on the 
LGPS has increased significantly 
due to increasing complexity  
(pre- and post-Hutton benefits)  
and the massive growth in  
employer numbers. 

At the same time, there is increased 
scrutiny from TPR and risk of fines 
and other regulator interventions. 

It is critical that pension 
administration teams are sufficiently 
well resourced with competent 
personnel and appropriate 
administration systems.

This aim must be supported by 
transparent processes for setting 
appropriate budgets. 

Pensions administration is a 
specialist role and, at the current 
time, it is difficult to attract and 
retain staff. 

Many administering authorities 
already have pay and recruitment 
policies relevant to the needs of 
their pension functions rather than 
being tied to the general policies of 
the council.

SAB should consider making 
this a mandatory feature of any 
‘outcomes-based’ governance 
model.

2c Explain policy on employer 
and member engagement and 
representation in governance.

At the current time, employer and 
member representation (with or 
without voting rights) should be 
encouraged but not compelled. 
Decisions on the approach 
to member representation 
should remain a local matter but 
administering authorities should 
explain their approach.

Most administering authorities 
have non-administering authority 
employer and scheme member 
representatives. 

Non-administering authority 
employers are often chosen 
to represent certain employer 
constituencies (e.g. academies, FE, 
charities and housing associations). 

In some cases, scheme member 
representatives have voting rights. 
>>

SAB to consider making these 
features mandatory but determining 
other aspects of the detailed 
specification of features and 
expected outcomes in a further 
phase of work (as per Proposal 1).

6.  Proposals (continued)

Table 2: Rationale for proposals and suggested actions (continued)

95



17 Good governance in the LGPS

Proposal Why Suggested actions

Many survey respondents support 
greater encouragement to include 
scheme member reps on s101 
committees.

However, administering authorities 
prefer some local flexibility on 
this, including how representatives 
are selected and whether they 
have voting rights. Importantly, 
administering authorities 
should retain majority voting 
representation because of the 
statutory responsibilities they bear. 

2d Regular independent review 
of governance to assess 
effectiveness of administering 
authority’s governance 
arrangements in the context of the 
desirable features and expected 
outcomes set out in guidance on 
an ‘outcomes-based’ model. This 
should be based on an enhanced 
governance compliance statement 
which should explain how the 
required outcomes are delivered.

Guidance should not prescribe 
the approach but could set out 
acceptable methods which may 
include: 

i. Internal or external audit 
assessment; 

ii.  Scrutiny by LPBs; 

iii. A peer review process.

It is important that any ‘outcomes-
based’ approach is policed. 

Self-assessment is insufficient. 
Independent review is required for 
a more objective assessment. 

We discovered that some funds do 
this on a regular basis already using 
a variety of approaches including 
internal and external audit and other 
external experts and advisors.

SAB should consider making 
this a mandatory feature of any 
‘outcomes-based’ governance 
model. 

6.  Proposals (continued)

Table 2: Rationale for proposals and suggested actions (continued)

96



July 2019 18

6.  Proposals (continued)

Proposal Why Suggested actions

3 Enhanced training requirements 
for s151s and s101 committee 
members.  This is to include all s151 
officers, not just those currently 
with administering authority 
responsibilities.

s151s: Current CIPFA training 
does not have specific pensions 
modules. CPD for those at or 
close to s151 level would be more 
effective and have impact sooner 
than changes to exam syllabus, 
although the latter would also 
have longer term benefit. Greater 
understanding of the LGPS amongst 
the wider s151 community may also 
reduce perception of conflicts.

s101 committees: Currently the 
training requirements for Local 
Pension Board members (which are 
statutory) are more onerous than 
those tor s101 committee members. 
Survey respondents felt this 
inconsistency was unacceptable 
and that s101 training should be on  
a par with LPB requirements.

i. CIPFA to develop a CPD module 
for s151 practitioners in the 
LGPS.

ii. SAB / MHCLG statutory 
guidance to require training 
for s101s to be on a par with 
members of Local Pension 
Boards.

4 Update relevant guidance and 
provide better sign-posting.

It would also be helpful to provide 
greater clarity to officers and 
elected members on their statutory 
and fiduciary obligations.  

As well as sign-posting, there 
should be clarity on the status of 
current and future guidance (e.g. 
statutory and therefore compulsory 
or best practice)

The main guidance relevant to 
governance includes: 

i. CIPFA guidance for s151s in 
respect of LGPS responsibilities 
(2014); and 

ii. CLG’s statutory guidance on 
governance of governance 
compliance statements (2008).

Both pre-date PSPA 2013, 
involvement of TPR in LGPS 
governance and investment 
pooling. 

Both must be updated.

i. CIPFA to review and update 
guidance for s151s in respect of 
LGPS governance.

ii. MHCLG to review and 
update statutory guidance on 
governance. In particular, this 
should put greater emphasis 
on non-investment aspects 
of governance such as 
administration.

iii. SAB should consider 
commissioning legal input to 
give greater clarity on statutory 
and fiduciary responsibilities of 
s151 officers and s101 elected 
members.

iv. SAB or MHCLG should provide 
greater clarity on the status of 
current and future guidance 
(e.g. statutory and therefore 
compulsory or best practice.)

Table 2: Rationale for proposals and suggested actions (continued)

97



19 Good governance in the LGPS

6.  Proposals (continued)

Table 3: Other ideas considered but rejected or out of scope

Proposal Reason for non-recommendation

1 Separate s151 for  
pension fund.

• A benefit would be specific focus on LGPS matters and therefore greater depth 
of understanding. 

• However, this is unlikely to help reduce conflicts (the pension fund s151 still has 
fiduciary responsibility to local tax-payers and may report to council s151) and 
may not be practical for smaller funds with greater resource constraints. 

2 Compulsory 
benchmarking.

• Concerns because benchmark data not like for like (e.g. same cost per member 
but different service); and (ii) risk this drives lowest common denominator 
results instead of innovation in service delivery

• We recognise that benchmarking has a place and would welcome the 
development of more sophisticated forms of benchmarking that focus on the 
quality of the service delivered.

3 Legal separation of 
pension fund accounts.

• Requires change in primary legislation.

• Pension fund accounts already separated, audited and shown in Pension Fund 
Annual Report (annual report is a statutory requirement). 

• It is unclear what additional benefit there is in legal separation of PF accounts 
form administering authority/council.

4 Mandating extension 
of audit to include an 
opinion on suitability 
of LGPS governance 
arrangements.

• Some funds commission an external (or internal) audit view voluntarily.

• NAO has confirmed that this could only be mandated through legal separation 
of pension fund accounts (see above).

• Concerns on some external auditors’ lack of LGPS knowledge and lack of 
continuity due to changing personnel.

• Preference to allow flexibility in approach to independent assessment of 
governance arrangements and their efficacy.

5 Removing s151 from 
decisions around 
admin budgeting due to 
conflicts.

• s151 has statutory responsibility.

6 Merger of funds to 
facilitate different 
governance models.

• Weakened link to local democratic accountability.

• Outside of the scope of the project.

98



July 2019 20

Table 4: Suggested follow up work beyond the scope of this report

Suggested follow up work Why

1 SAB to consult on 
detailed specification of 
desirable features and 
expected outcomes from 
an ‘outcomes-based’ 
model.

• Important to get buy-in and support for the practical details of an ‘outcomes-
based’ governance model.

2 CIPFA and MHCLG to 
update existing guidance.

• Existing guidance is out of date.

3 Commission legal work to 
provide greater clarity on 
statutory versus fiduciary 
obligations (s151 and s101 
committee members).

• Statutory responsibilities take precedence.

• Currently unclear.

4 SAB to consider a  
‘Good Administration’ 
review.

• Survey respondents expressed interest in some work to set out what good 
administration looks like, examples of current best practice, good approaches 
to meeting the needs of scheme members and employers, and greater clarity 
on what standards will be required to satisfy TPR.

• This will help administering authorities to be clear what standards they must 
achieve in order to provide ‘assurance’ that administration resources are 
sufficient in quantity and competency, identify any gaps and determine what 
practical steps they might take to address those gaps. 

5 SAB to consider a review 
of the role of Pension 
Boards in LGPS.

• Very mixed reports on the role and success in working with Pension Boards in 
the LGPS.   

6.  Proposals (continued)
99



21 Good governance in the LGPS

6.  Proposals (continued)

Table 5: ‘Outcomes-based’ model - concept illustration

Outcome: examples How to demonstrate that your governance model complies: examples

1 Robust conflict management. • Conflicts policy.

• Scheme of delegation or decision matrix setting out who makes what 
decisions.

• Transparent process for approving budgets.

• Documented roles and responsibilities of elected members on s101 
committees, s151 officers and pension fund officers.

2 Assurance administration and 
other resource (quantity and 
competency) sufficient to meet 
regulatory requirements and 
budget appropriate.

• Benchmarking.

• External expert advice.

• Internal or external audit.

• Review by LPB with appropriate expert advice.

• Process for setting administration budget.

• Policies in respect of recruitment and market supplements to attract 
and retain staff.

3 Explain policy on employer 
and member engagement and 
representation in governance.

• Set out approach to employer and member engagement e.g. 
communication plan, AGM, employer liaison and support.

• Set out approach to participation of non-administering authority 
employers in governance of fund e.g. representatives of academies, 
admitted bodies, FE, charity sector, etc.

• Set out approach participation of scheme members in governance 
(e.g. observers, voting members, how selected, etc.) and rationale for 
approach.

4 Regular independent 
assessment  
of governance arrangements.

State method e.g.

• Internal or external audit assessment; or

• Scrutiny by Local Pension Board; or

• External expert / consultant; or

• Peer review process.

Describe scope and approach e.g. 

• Reviewing policies, meeting minutes.

• Reviewing committee efficacy in decision-making, etc.

100



July 2019 22

Scheme Advisory Board: 
Good Governance Survey

Appendix A

101



23 Good governance in the LGPS

The following pages replicate the online Good Governance survey on governance  
models for the LGPS. The survey closed on 31 May 2019.

Comment box provided.

Introduction 
The Scheme Advisory Board has commissioned Hymans Robertson to review LGPS governance 
structures and practices.  This survey is part of a key part of the project and we are keen to 
collect views from as wide a range of stakeholders as possible. Further details on the scope and 
background to the project can be found on the SAB website.

To help inform this survey and the options for governance change presented for feedback, 
views were sought from a representative range of LGPS stakeholders (including pension fund 
officers, section 151 officers, trade unions and other advisors) in order to understand the issues 
and challenges that the current LGPS governance arrangements present.  

Examples of issues cited by respondents included:

• Clarity: There is sometimes lack of clarity over roles and responsibilities.

• Conflicts: A number of stakeholders raised the issue of perceived conflicts of interest 
between the fund and the council, in particular for the section 151 of the administering 
authority given his or her responsibilities for the financial management of other council 
functions.  It was suggested these could manifest themselves in terms of the strategic 
decisions taken by the fund in respect of funding (contribution rate decisions) and 
investment or in respect of allocating resource to the pension fund.

• Consistency: It is widely recognised that there are many examples of good practice within 
the LGPS and that section 151s and pension funds manage these conflicts well.  However, 
it was noted that this good practice largely relies on the professionalism and good will of 
individuals and the ethos of the authority. There is very little regulation or guidance that 
would safeguard the situation if such high standards were absent.   

• Representation: The issue of appropriate representation was raised, in particular for non-
administering authorities. Some respondents suggested that there could be improvements 
in the way administering authorities engage with the other employers in the fund on 
administration resourcing as well as funding, contributions and investment matters. 

• Standards: It was also noted that LGPS funds evidence varying levels of compliance with 
the standards for administration, funding and investment set out in statutory legislation, 
relevant guidance and the TPR Code of Practice 14. 

• Miscellaneous: Other issues raised included lack of continuity in committee members; 
shortage of in-house skills, expertise and subject matter knowledge in investment and 
funding; and restrictions on recruitment and pay policy for the pensions function.

Please use the box below to provide details of any additional issues which you believe the 
Board should address as part of this exercise.

Appendix A:  Scheme Advisory Board Good Governance Survey
102



July 2019 24

Appendix A:  Scheme Advisory Board Good Governance Survey

Comment box provided.

The criteria
Based on the issues raised by stakeholders, the Board has agreed 6 criteria which will be used 
to assess any proposed changes to LGPS governance arrangements. 

Standards
The model enables funds to meet good standards of governance across 
all areas of statutory responsibility including TPR requirements.

Conflict

The model minimises conflicts between the pension function and the 
host local authority, including but not limited to s151 officer conflicts (in 
operational areas such budgets, resourcing, recruitment and pay policies 
and in strategic areas such as funding and investment policy).

Representation
The model allows for appropriate involvement in decision making for 
key stakeholders (including administering authority, non-administering 
authorities, other employer and member representatives).

Clarity 
The model delivers clarity of accountability and responsibility for each 
relevant role.

Consistency
The model minimises dependence on the professionalism of individuals 
and existing relationships to deliver statutory responsibilities.

Cost
The cost of implementing and running the model is likely to be worthwhile 
versus benefits delivered.

Please use the box below to provide details of any additional criteria which you believe the 
Board should consider as part of this exercise.

103



25 Good governance in the LGPS

Appendix A:  Scheme Advisory Board Good Governance Survey

Governance models in this survey
The Scheme Advisory Board would like to hear your views on four governance models set out 
below.   

Option 1 – Improved practice: Introduce guidance or amendments to LGPS Regulations 2013 
to enhance the existing arrangements by increasing the independence of the management of 
the fund and clarifying the standards expected in key areas. 

Option 2 – Greater ring fencing of the LGPS within existing structures: Clearer ring-fencing 
of pension fund management from the host authority, including budgets, resourcing and pay 
policies. 

Option 3 – Joint Committee (JC): Responsibility for all LGPS functions delegated to a JC 
comprising the administering authority and non-administering authorities in the fund. Inter-
authority agreement (IAA) makes JC responsible for recommending budget, resourcing and pay 
policies.

Option 4 -  New local authority body – an alternative single purpose legal entity that would 
retain local democratic accountability and be subject to Local Government Act provisions.

It is recognised that a one size fits all approach may not be appropriate. 

Final recommendations by SAB could be variations on the models described here, taking 
account of your feedback. Any regulation changes needed will be fully assessed before SAB 
makes final recommendations.   We have not provided detailed costing of each of the models 
presented in the survey. The cost of implementation would in any case vary across different 
funds, but, generally, the effort and cost to implement increases as we move from Option 1 
to Option 4. Detailed costing of any recommendations emerging from this exercise would be 
undertaken prior to implementation.

In the next section we set out a brief description of each of the options along with the 
opportunity for you to provide your views on how well each option compares against the 
agreed criteria. 

For brevity the option descriptions have been included on the next two pages, followed 
by the response form (which was identical for all four options).

104



July 2019 26

Appendix A:  Scheme Advisory Board Good Governance Survey

Option 1 - Improved practice
Features
• SAB guidance on minimum expected 

levels of staffing and resourcing;

• SAB guidance on representation on 
pension committees and expected 
levels of training for those on pension 
committees and officers with an LGPS 
role. Additional guidance could also 
be considered on the best practice for 
pension boards.

• Legal clarification on the fiduciary and 
statutory duties of key individuals within 
LGPS funds.

• LGPS regulations set out enhanced 
process for consulting on FSS and ISS to 
ensure greater voice for the full range of 
employers in the fund.

Option 2 - Greater ring fencing of the LGPS 
within existing structures
Features
• The pension fund budget is set at the start of the financial year with 

reference to its own business plan and service needs.

• Any charges to the fund in respect of support services provided by 
the host authority, for example legal support, HR and procurement 
is included in the budget up front.

• Pension fund related expenditure then comes directly from the 
fund. This removes the common practice whereby pension fund 
expenditure is paid though the host authority’s revenue account to 
be recharged at a later date.  

• The section 151 of the administering authority would retain 
responsibility for the pensions function but recommendations 
on budget (including administration resources required to meet 
TPR standards) would be made by a pension fund officer to the 
pensions committee which would be responsible for agreeing the 
budget. (Alternatively, the pension fund could have a separate s151 
officer to reduce conflicts currently faced by s151s.*)

• The pension committee would be responsible for agreeing the 
budget as well as approving any changes to that budget during the 
financial year.

• The cost of staffing would be met through the fund including any 
additional costs such as market supplements or redundancy strain. 

• Changes to the Audit and Accounting Regulations 2015 could be 
considered to make the fund accounts legally separate and subject 
to a separate audit.  

In addition to the budget related aspects outlined above further 
steps could be taken which would give funds greater autonomy over 
employment policies.  The model is analogous to the fund being 
treated as an internal business unit of the council.

• Staff will continue to be employed by the host council but polices 
over certain HR matters such as recruitment and the payment of 
market supplements will be delegated to the pension committee.

• Decisions over other matters pertinent to the fund, for example 
investment in new administration technology, would also lie with 
the pension committee. 

• Decisions around the structure of the pension function would be 
for the fund’s management team to make with the approval of the 
pension committee.*

* Further consideration is required as to whether these practices could simply be 
encouraged by regulatory bodies or whether it is possible and/or desirable to find a 
mechanism by which these could be mandated.

105



27 Good governance in the LGPS

Appendix A:  Scheme Advisory Board Good Governance Survey

Option 4 - New local  
authority body
Features
An alternative single purpose legal entity that 
would retain local democratic accountability 
and be subject to Local Government Act 
provisions.

This might be through a combined authority 
route or through a public body established by 
statute.

• The new body must retain a strong link to 
democratic accountability. 

• Employment of staff and contractual 
issues dealt with by the new body. 

• Assets and liabilities transferred to the 
new body.

• Separate accounts based on CIPFA 
guidance.

• Funded by an element of the contribution 
rate and by a levy on constituent 
authorities.

• Officers in the new body are responsible 
only for the delivery of the LGPS function. 

Option 3 - Use of new structures:  
Joint Committees (JC)
Features
• The scheme manager function and all LGPS decision making, which 

currently sits with the administering authority, would be delegated 
to a section 102 JC.  The committee would comprise all the local 
authorities who currently participate in the fund as employers.  

• Consideration could be given to the representation of other 
employers and scheme members on the JC. 

• Assets and liabilities still sit with the existing administering authority. 

• Employment of staff and contractual issues dealt with through a 
lead authority or a wholly owned company. This could be codified 
within an Inter Authority Agreement (IAA).

• The IAA would stipulate that the budget will be agreed by the JC. 
s151s of the constituent local authority employers retain a fiduciary 
duty to the local taxpayer but the IAA would distance them legally 
from budget setting responsibilities in respect of the pensions 
function.

106



July 2019 28

Appendix A:  Scheme Advisory Board Good Governance Survey

Please use the voting buttons to indicate to what extent moving from existing arrangements to Option (1, 2, 3 or 4)
would achieve each of the criteria.

Standards
The model enables funds to meet good standards 
of governance across all areas of statutory 
responsibility including TPR requirements.

1 2 3 4 5

Conflict

The model minimises conflicts between the 
pension function and the host local authority, 
including but not limited to s151 officer conflicts 
(in operational areas such budgets, resourcing, 
recruitment and pay policies and in strategic areas 
such as funding and investment policy).

1 2 3 4 5

Representation

The model allows for appropriate involvement in 
decision making for key stakeholders (including 
administering authority, non-administering 
authorities, other employer and member 
representatives).

1 2 3 4 5

Clarity
The model delivers clarity of accountability and 
responsibility for each relevant role.

1 2 3 4 5

Consistency
The model minimises dependence on 
professionalism and relationships to deliver 
statutory responsibilities.

1 2 3 4 5

Cost
The cost of implementing and running the model is 
likely to be worthwhile versus benefits delivered.

1 2 3 4 5

Please provide any comments you may have regarding Option 1/2/3/4 in the box below.

Comment box provided.

Comment box provided.

Are there any alternative governance structures not covered between Option 1 – Option 4 which you believe 
the Board should consider?

Finally, respondents were asked:

107



29 Good governance in the LGPS

Abbreviations
Appendix B

108



July 2019 30

Appendix B:  Abbreviations

ALATS The Association of Local Authorities’ Treasurers Societies 

CIPFA The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 

CLG Communities and Local Government (former name of MHCLG)

CPD Continuous Professional Development 

FE Further Education

JC Joint Committee formed under s102 of the Local Government Act 1972

LA Local Authority 

LGPS Local Government Pension Scheme

LPB Local Pension Board 

MHCLG Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government  

NAO National Audit Office

PF Pension Fund

PIRC Pensions and Investment Research Consultants Ltd

PLSA Pension and Lifetime Savings Association 

PSPA 2013 Public Service Pensions Act 2013

PSAA Public Sector Audit Appointments 

s101 A committee established under s101 of the Local Government Act 1972

s151 An officer with responsibilities under s151 of the Local Government Act 1972

SAB Scheme Advisory Board for the Local Government Pension Scheme in England and Wales 

SCT Society of County Treasurers 

SLT Society of London Treasurers 

SWT Society of Welsh Treasurers

TPR The Pensions Regulator 

Abbreviations

109



London  |  Birmingham  |  Glasgow  |  Edinburgh    T 020 7082 6000  |   www.hymans.co.uk   |   www.clubvita.co.uk

Hymans Robertson LLP (registered in England and Wales - One London Wall, London EC2Y 5EA - OC310282) is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. A member of Abelica Global.  

© Hymans Robertson LLP. Hymans Robertson uses FSC approved paper. 

110



 
 
 

LOCAL PENSION COMMITTEE – 6 SEPTEMBER 2019   
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE RESOURCES 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS 
 
 
Purpose 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to inform the Committee of any changes relating to the 
risk management and internal controls of the Pension Fund, as stipulated in the 
Pension Regulator’s Code of Practice. 

 
 

Background 
 

2. The Pension Regulator’s (TPR) code of practice on governance and administration 
of public service pension schemes requires that administrators need to record and 
members be kept aware of ‘risk management and internal controls’. The code 
states this should be a standing item on each Pension Board and Pension 
Committee agenda. 

 
3. In order to comply with the code the risk register and an update on supporting 

activity is included on each agenda. 
 
 

Risk Register 
 

4. The updated Risk Register is attached as Appendix A to this report. Progress 
updates have been made to risks 1, 2, 4, 11, 12 and 14. The rating of risks 1 and 2 
has reduced to reflect the progress made in the Guaranteed Minimum Pension and 
system implementation projects.  
 

5. A new risk (5) has been added relating to the McCloud age discrimination case. The 
remedy for the case is likely to have a significant financial and administrative 
impact. 

  
 

Identified Risks of Concern 
 

6. There are currently no identified risks of concern. 
 

 
Training 

 

111 Agenda Item 9



7. At its meeting on 5 July 2019, the Committee received a draft Training Policy and 
each Member was asked to complete a Training Needs Assessment questionnaire. 
10 of the 13 committee members completed the questionnaire, officers will 
endeavour to collect the remaining assessments. The summarised results of the 
questionnaire are attached as Appendix B to this report. 
 

8. The Training Policy will be taken to the Local Pension Board in September, for 
comment before returning to the Committee in November for approval. The Board 
will also be asked to complete the Training Needs Assessment questionnaire. 

 
9. From the 10 responses received there are varying levels of training required 

between each of the members.  There are several training topics that the majority of 
members expressed either “no knowledge” or “limited knowledge”. These topics are 
listed in the table below:   
 
 

Code Training need 

G1 

General pensions legislative framework in the UK, for example defined 
benefit, defined contribution, tax treatment and auto-enrolment 

G2 
The roles and powers of the UK Government in relation to the LGPS 

G9 

Awareness of the Pensions Regulator’s Code of Practice for public sector 
pension schemes 

G13 

Accounting and Audit Regulations and legislative requirements relating to 
internal controls and proper accounting practice 

G18 
An understanding of how breaches in law are reported 

F7 

Where an employer leaves the Fund, how the promised pensions 
liabilities are paid for 

F8 
How employer outsourcings and bulk transfers are dealt with 

A1-10 
Overview of key administration topics  

 
10. The eight topics listed above will be picked up initially by group training, most likely 

to be held straight after a committee meeting.  Where appropriate  this will be 
delivered by a combination of officers, Fund providers (e.g the actuary, investment 
advisers, investment managers) and external bodies (e.g. Local Government 
Association, Pensions and Lifetime Savings Association.) 

 
11. Where individual members have expressed a training requirement that is not 

represented within the whole committee it will be picked up on a one to one basis.  
 

12. The Pension Regulator provides a series of e-learning modules that will be used to 
supplement face to face delivery, particularly for new Committee members. Some of 
the topics will arise naturally as committee agenda items, for example the triennial 
valuation. Presentations and reports for the committee meeting will also form part of 
member training. 
 

112



13. To make relevant material more accessible, officers are  building an ‘information 
pack’ that will be provided to each member and contain information key to their role 
on the Committee.  A draft contents page is attached as Appendix C to this report.  

 
 
Recommendation 
 

14. The Local Pension Committee is asked to: - 
 

a. approve the revised risk register of the Pension Fund 
b. note the work being done to develop the training for members of the 

Committee and Board. 
c. Comment on the draft information pack contents 

 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A - Risk Register 
Appendix B - Training Needs Assessment questionnaire 
Appendix C - Draft information pack contents 

 
 

Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 
None 
 
 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mr C Tambini, Director of Corporate Resources 
Tel: 0116 305 6199 Email: Chris.Tambini@leics.gov.uk  
 
Mr D Keegan, Assistant Director Strategic Finance and Property 
Tel: 0116 305 7668 Email: Declan.Keegan@leics.gov.uk  

113



This page is intentionally left blank



Leicestershire Pension Fund Risk Register September 2019           Appendix A 

Risk 
no 

Service Risk Causes (s) Consequences 
Risk 

Owner 
List of current 

controls 
I L 

 
Current 

Risk 
Score 

Risk 

Response; 

Tolerate 

Treat 

Terminate 

Transfer 

Further Actions / 
Additional Controls 

I L 
Residual 

Risk 
Score 

 
 
Action 
owner 

1 Pens 

 If the Pension Fund  

fails to reconcile HRMC 

Guaranteed Minimum 

Pension (GMP) data 

with the Pension 

Section data there is a 

risk of overpayment of 

Pensions Increase 

 

From 2018 the pensions 

section has had 

responsibility for GMPs 

creating the need to ensure 

that this is accounted for in 

the pensions increases  

 

Overpaying 

pensions (i.e. for 

GMP cases pension 

increases are lower) 

Reputation 

Ian 

Howe 

 

Checking of HMRC 

GMP data to identify 

any discrepancies  

 

Full time person 

recruited to work on 

the project 

3 3 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Treat 

Working through cases 

Developed reporting 

tools to assist 

HMRC have closed their 

window for new 

submissions 

 

2 1 2 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Ian 

Howe 

 
 
 

 

2 Pens 

 

 If the Pension Fund 

fails to implement a 

pension administration 

system, pensioner 

payroll and immediate 

payments system the 

Pension Section will fail 

to deliver its statutory 

duties for both LGPS 

and the 3 Fire 

Authorities. It will also 

be unable to pay 

pensioners and other 

single payments (e.g. 

lump sums) 

 

A new system has been 
implemented, with several 
features subject to a gradual 
roll-out. 
 

 
Unable to pay 
pensioners 
 
Unable to pay single 
payments 
 
Unable to meet 
statutory 
requirements 
 
Manual calculations 
 
Huge increase in 
administration time 
causing delays 
 
Increased appeals 
 
 

Ian 

Howe 

 

Gradual 

implementation of 

member self-service 

functionality  

Working in 

partnership with 

another Fund 

Phased approach to 

implementation, with 

single payment the 

most significant piece 

of functionality 

remaining. 

4 2 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

 

Detailed project 

planning for final phase, 

accounting for other 

pressures in the section 

Pensioner payroll and 

MSS completed.  

Immediate payments to 

be completed by the 

end of 2019 

 

2 1 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ian 

Howe 

 

115



3 Pens 

 If the Pensions section 

fail to meet the  service 

requirements of the 

three Fire Authorities 

we may lose their 

business 

 

 

Changes in legislation on the 

Firefighters pension scheme 

has significantly increased 

the scheme’s complexity. 

Only limited knowledge in 

the Section in this area.  

Outstanding legal challenges 

could significantly impact on 

the Fire scheme rules and 

administration time 

 

 

 

 

 

Reputation 

 

Potential loss of 

business  

Increased 

administration  

 

Ian 

Howe 

 

Quarterly meetings 

take place with the 

Fire Authorities to 

resolve issues  

 

Membership of the 

Midlands Fire Officer 

Group enables us to 

identify and resolve 

issues early  

Resource on the team 

increased 

SLA and contracts 

produced 

2 3 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

Continue to monitor and 

develop improvements 

to work processes, 

guiding all three Fire 

Authorities to similar 

processes and decisions 

(where possible). 

Set up a joint pension 

board for the 3 Fire 

Authorities 

Refresh of contracts in 

progress 

Press the LGA and all 

relevant parties 

nationally  on regulatory 

changes 

2 2 4 

 
 

 

 

 

Ian 

Howe 

 
 
 
 

 

4 Pens 

If the pensions fund fail 

to receive accurate and 

timely data from 

employers scheme 

members pension 

benefits could be 

incorrect or late  

 

 

A continuing increase in 

Fund employers is causing 

administrative pressure in 

the Pension Section. This is 

in terms of receiving 

accurate and timely data 

from these new employers 

who have little or no pension 

knowledge 

 

Late or inaccurate 

pension benefits to 

scheme members 

Reputation 

Increased appeals 

Greater 

administrative time 

being spent on 

individual 

calculations 

Ian 

Howe 

Training provided for 

new employers 

Guidance notes 

provided for 

employers 

Amended  SLA and 

communication and 

administration guide 

distributed to 

employers making   

IConnect  a statutory 

requirement by 

31/3/2020) 

 

 

3 3 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

Implement IConnect 

with employers so they 

provide monthly data in 

a secure and timely 

manner 

Inform the Local Pension 

Board each quarter on 

progress made 

 

3 2 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ian 
Howe 

5 
Pens/ 
Invs 

The resolution  of the 

McCloud case could 

increase administration 

significantly resulting in 

difficulties providing 

the ongoing pensions 

Mr McCloud winning his 

appeal on age discrimination 

on public sector pension 

schemes and the protection 

afforded to older members 

during the move to career 

average benefits, followed 

Ultimate outcome 

currently unknown 

but likelihood is; 

Increasing 

administration 

Ian 

Howe 

Guidance from LGA, 

Hymans, Treasury  3 3 9 

 
 
 
 
Treat once 
details are 
confirmed 

 

Working with Hymans to 

include an estimated 

cost in the valuation 

Employer bulletin to 

2 3 6 

 
 
 
Ian 
Howe  

116



administration service  

The liabilities of the 

Fund are expected to 

increase for all 

employers 

by Government losing their 

right of appeal. 

Revision of previous 

benefits 

Additional 

communications 

Complaints/appeals 

Increased costs 

 

employers making them 

aware of the current 

situation 

Await proposed 

resolution from the 

employment tribunal 

6 

 
 
 
 
Invs 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Employer and employee 

contributions are not 

paid accurately and on 

time 

 

Error on the part of the 

scheme employer 

 

Potentially 

reportable to The 

Pensions Regulator 

as late payment is a 

breach of The 

Pensions Act 

 

Declan 

Keegan 

 

Receipt of 

contributions is 

monitored and late 

payments are chased 

quickly 

 

 

2 4 8 

 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

Late payers will be 

reminded of their legal 

responsibilities. 
2 3 6 

 
 

 
Declan 

Keegan 

 

7 Invs 

Assets held by the Fund 

are ultimately 

insufficient to pay 

benefits due to 

individual members 

Ineffective setting of 

employer contribution rates 

over many consecutive 

actuarial valuations 

 

Significant financial 

impact on scheme 

employers due to 

the need for large 

increases in 

employer 

contribution rates.  

 

Chris 

Tambini 

 

 

Input into actuarial 

valuation, including 

ensuring that actuarial 

assumptions are 

reasonable and the 

manner in which 

employer contribution 

rates are set does not 

bring imprudent 

future financial risk 

 

 

5 2 10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

Actuarial assumptions 

need to include an 

element of prudence, 

and Officers need to 

understand the long-

term impact and risks 

involved with taking 

short-term views to 

artificially manage 

employer contribution 

rates.  The 2019 

valuation will assess the 

contribution rates. 

4 2 8 

 
 

 
 
 
Chris 

Tambini 

 

8 
Pens/ 
Invs 

Sub-funds of individual 

employers are not 

monitored to ensure 

that there is the correct 

balance between risks 

to the Fund and fair 

treatment of the 

employer 

Changing financial position 

of both sub-fund and the 

employer 

 

 

Significant financial 

impact on 

employing bodies 

due to need for 

large increases in 

employer 

Ian 

Howe/ 

Declan 

Keegan 

 

Ensuring, as far as 

possible, that the 

financial position of 

each employer is 

understood. On-going 

dialogue with them to 

ensure that the 

correct balance 

between risks and fair 

5 2 10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

Dialogue with the 

employers, particularly 

in the lead up to the 

setting of new employer 

contribution rates. 

Include employer risk 

profiling as part of the 

Funding Strategy 

4 2 8 

 
 

 
 
 
Ian 

Howe/ 

Declan 

117



contribution rates. 

Risk to the Fund of 

insolvency of an 

individual employer. 

This will ultimately 

increase the deficit 

of all other 

employers.  

 

treatment continues. 

 

Statement update. To 

allow better targeting of 

default risks 

Investigate 

arrangements to de-risk 

funding arrangements 

for individual employers. 

Ensure that the 

implications of the 

independent, non-public 

sector status, of further 

education, sixth form 

colleges, and the 

autonomous, non-public 

sector status of higher 

education corporations 

is fully accounted for in 

the Funding Strategy 

 

Keegan 

 

9 Invs 

 Market investment 

returns are consistently 

poor and this causes 

significant upward 

pressure onto employer 

contribution rates 

Poor market returns, most 

probably caused by poor 

economic conditions 

Significant financial 

impact on 

employing bodies 

due to the need for 

large increases in 

employer 

contribution rates 

Chris 

Tambini 

Ensuring that strategic 

asset allocation is 

considered at least 

annually, and that the 

medium-term outlook 

for different asset 

classes is included as 

part of the 

consideration 

5 2 10 

 
 
 
Treat 

Making sure that the 

investment strategy is 

sufficiently flexible to 

take account of 

opportunities and risks 

that arise, but is still 

based on a reasonable 

medium-term 

assessment of future 

returns 

4 2 8 

 
Chris 

Tambini 

 

10 Invs 

Market returns are 

acceptable but the 

performance achieved 

by the Fund is below 

reasonable 

expectations 

Poor performance of 

individual managers, or poor 

asset allocation policy 

Opportunity cost in 

terms of lost 

investment returns, 

which is possible 

even if actual 

returns are higher 

than those allowed 

for within the 

actuarial valuation 

Chris 

Tambini 

Ensuring that the 

causes of 

underperformance 

are understood and 

acted on where 

appropriate 

3 3 9 

 
 
 
Treat 

After careful 

consideration, take 

decisive action where 

this is deemed 

appropriate. It should be 

recognised that some 

managers have a style-

bias and that poor 

performance will 

happen on occasions. 

2 2 4 

 
Chris 

Tambini 

118



11 Invs 

Failure to take account 

of ALL risks to future 

investment returns 

within the setting of 

asset allocation policy 

and/or the 

appointment of 

investment managers 

Some assets classes or 

individual investments 

perform poorly as a result of 

incorrect assessment of all 

risks inherent within the 

investment. 

Opportunity cost 

within investment 

returns, and 

potential for actual 

returns to be low. 

This will lead to 

higher employer 

contribution rates 

than would 

otherwise have 

been necessary. 

Chris 

Tambini 

Ensuring that all 

factors that may 

impact onto 

investment returns 

are taken into account 

when setting the asset 

allocation.  

Only appointing 

investment managers 

that integrate 

responsible 

investment into their 

processes. 

Utilisation of 

dedicated Responsible 

Investment team at 

LGPS Central 

3 3 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

Responsible investment 
aims to incorporate 

environmental, social 

and governance (ESG) 

factors into investment 

decisions, to better 

manage risk and 

generate sustainable, 

long-term returns. 

Annual refresh of the 

Fund’s asset allocation 

allows an up to date 

view of risks to be 

incorporated and avoids 

significant sort term 

changes to the 

allocation. 

2 2 4 

 

 

 

 

Chris 

Tambini 

12 Invs 

Investment pooling 

within the LGPS fails to 

deliver a higher long 

term net investment 

return 

LGPS Central fails to deliver 

better net investment 

returns than the Fund would 

have expected to achieve it 

investment pooling did not 

occur 

Lower returns will 

ultimately lead to 

higher employer 

contribution rates 

than would 

otherwise have 

been the case 

Chris 

Tambini 

Shareholders’ Forum, 

Joint Committee and 

Practitioners’ Advisory 

Forum will give   

significant influence in 

the event of issues 

arising. 

Appraisal of each 

investment products 

before a commitment 

to transition is made 

 

3 3 9 

 
 
 
 
 
Treat 

The set-up of LGPS 

Central is likely to be the 

most difficult phase. The 

Fund will continue to 

monitor closely how the 

company evolves 

Programme of LGPS 

Central internal audit 

activity, which has been 

designed in 

collaboration with the 

audit functions of the 

partner funds. 

2 2 4 

 

 

Chris 

Tambini 

13 Invs 

Investment decisions 

are made without 

having sufficient 

expertise to properly 

assess the risks and 

potential returns  

The combination of 

knowledge at Committee, 

Officer and Consultant level 

is not sufficiently high 

Poor decisions likely 

to lead to low 

returns, which will 

require higher 

employer 

contribution rates 

Chris 

Tambini 

Continuing focus on 

ensuring that there is 

sufficient expertise to 

be able to make 

thoughtfully 

considered 

investment decisions  

3 3 9 

 
 
 
 
Treat 

On-going process of 

updating and improving 

the knowledge of 

everybody involved in 

the decision-making 

process 

2 2 4 

 

 

Chris 

Tambini 

14 Invs 

The transition of 

investment assets to 

LGPS Central is not 

Pooling does not reduce the 

on-going management costs 

of assets 

Savings available do 

not justify the 

transition costs and 

on-going cost of 

Chris 

Tambini 

Central maintains the 

flexibility to run funds 

internally. 
2 3 6 Treat 

Approach for each 

transition assessed 

independently. 
2 2 4 

Chris 

Tambini 

119



 

 

Risk Impact Measurement Criteria 
 

Scale Description 
Departmental Service 

Plan Internal                   Operations  People Reputation 
Financial                          

per annum / per loss 

1 Negligible 
Little impact to objectives 
in service plan 

Limited disruption to operations and 
service quality satisfactory 

Minor injuries 
Public concern 
restricted to local 
complaints 

Pension Section 
  <£50k 
Investments 

Losses expected to be 
recovered in the short 
term 

 

 

2 Minor 
Minor impact to service as 
objectives in service plan 
are not met 

Short term disruption to operations 
resulting in a minor adverse impact 
on partnerships and minimal 
reduction in service quality. 

Minor Injury to  those 
in the Council’s care 

Minor adverse local / 
public / media 
attention and 
complaints 

Pension Section 
£50k-£250k Minimal 
effect on budget/cost 

Investments 
Some 
underperformance, but 
within the bounds of 
normal market volatility 

successful Transition costs are 

significantly higher, for 

example the cost of selling 

the existing investments and 

buying new ones.  

running LGPS 

Central 

Specialist transition 

manager being 

appointed, with 

independent specialist 

oversight. 

Formal review follows 

each transition. 

Implementation being 

phased, allowing 

capacity to be 

managed and lessons 

learned. 

Views from 8 partners 

sought throughout the 

transition process.  

 

LGPS Central’s Internal 

Audit plan includes an 

assessment of the 

governance surrounding 

the transition 

120



Scale Description 
Departmental Service 

Plan Internal                   Operations  People Reputation 
Financial                          

per annum / per loss 

3 Moderate 
Considerable fall in 
service as objectives in 
service plan are not met 

Sustained moderate level disruption 
to operations / Relevant partnership 
relationships strained / Service 
quality not satisfactory 

Potential  for minor 
physical injuries / 
Stressful experience 

Adverse local media 
public attention 

Pension Section 
£250k - £500k Small 
increase on 
budget/cost: Handled 
within the team/service 

 
Investment 

Underperformance by a 
manager requiring 
review by the 
Investment Sub-
committee 

4 Major 
Major impact to services 
as objectives in service 
plan are not met.  

Serious disruption to operations with 
relationships in major partnerships 
affected / Service quality not 
acceptable with adverse impact on 
front line services. Significant 
disruption of core activities. Key 
targets missed. 

Exposure to 
dangerous conditions 
creating potential for 
serious physical or 
mental harm 

Serious negative 
regional criticism, with 
some national 
coverage 

Pension Section 
£500-£750k. Significant 
increase in budget/cost. 
Service budgets 
exceeded 

 
Investment 

Underperformance of 
significant proportion of 
assets leading to a 
review of the 
Investment or Funding 
strategy 

5 
Very 
High/Critical 

Significant fall/failure in 
service as objectives in 
service plan are not met 

Long term serious interruption to 
operations / Major partnerships under 
threat / Service quality not acceptable 
with impact on front line services 

Exposure to 
dangerous conditions 
leading to potential 
loss of life or 
permanent 
physical/mental 
damage. Life 
threatening or multiple 
serious injuries 

Prolonged regional 
and national 
condemnation, with 
serious damage to the 
reputation of the 
organisation i.e. front-
page headlines, TV. 
Possible criminal, or 
high profile, civil 
action against the 
Council/Fund, 
members or officers 

Pension Section 
>£750k Large increase 
on budget/cost. 

 
Investment 

Employer contributions 
expect to increase  
significantly above 
Funding Strategy 
requirement 

 

121



Risk Likelihood Measurement Criteria 
 

Rating Scale Likelihood Example of Loss/Event Frequency Probability % 

1 Very rare/unlikely EXCEPTIONAL event. This will probably 
never happen/recur. 

<20% 

2 Unlikely Event NOT EXPECTED. Do not expect it 
to happen/recur, but it is possible it may do 

so. 

20-40% 

3 Possible LITTLE LIKELIHOOD of event occurring. It 
might happen or recur occasionally. 

40-60% 

4 Probable  /Likely Event is MORE THAN LIKELY to occur. 
Will probably happen/recur, but it is not a 

persisting issue. 

60-80% 

5 Almost Certain Reasonable to expect that the event WILL 
undoubtedly happen/recur, possibly 

frequently. 

>80% 

 

 

Risk Scoring Matrix 
     

       

 
Impact 

     

 
5  Very High/Critical 5 10 15 20 25 

 
4  Major 4 8 12 16 20 

 
3  Moderate 3 6 9 12 15 

 
2  Minor 2 4 6 8 10 

 
1  Negligible 1 2 3 4 5 

  
1 2 3 4 5 

  
Very Rare/Unlikely Unlikely     Possible/Likely 

        Probable/ 
Likely    Almost certain 

  

Likelihood of risk occurring over lifetime of objective (i.e. 12 mths) 

 

122



Pension committee training
Key

I have no knowledge 1 =

I have some, but limited, knowledge 2 =

I am reasonably familiar but additional training would be helpful 3 =

I am fully conversant 4 =

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

C
o

u
n

t 
1

s

C
o

u
n

t 
2

s

G
ro

u
p

 t
ra

in
in

g?

General Understanding – for both Committee and Board

General pensions legislative framework in the UK, for example defined benefit, defined contribution, tax treatment and auto-

enrolment
3 2 3 2 4 1 3 2 2 2 1 5 Y

The roles and powers of the UK Government in relation to the LGPS 3 2 3 2 3 1 4 2 2 2 1 5 Y

The main features of the LGPS legislation relating to benefits, administration and investment 3 2 3 3 4 2 3 2 2 2 0 5

The role of the Council as administering authority in relation to the LGPS in relation to the fund 3 3 4 4 4 1 4 3 3 1 0

The stakeholders of the pension fund (including members and employers) and the nature of their interests 3 3 4 4 4 2 4 2 3 2 0 3

Investment pooling and the role of LGPS Central 3 3 4 4 3 2 4 3 3 3 0 1

The role of the LGPS Scheme Advisory Board and how it interacts with other bodies in the governance structure 3 2 4 2 3 1 4 2 3 3 1 3

The roles and powers of the Pensions Regulator 3 3 3 4 2 1 3 3 3 2 1 2

Awareness of the Pensions Regulator’s Code of Practice for public sector pension schemes 1 3 3 4 1 1 1 2 3 2 4 2 Y

The role of the Pension Board 3 3 4 4 4 1 3 2 4 3 1 1

The roles of the Pensions Advisory Service and the Pensions Ombudsman relate to the workings of LGPS 3 3 4 2 3 1 3 4 2 1 2

The role and statutory responsibilities of the Administering Authority’s treasurer and monitoring officer 3 2 4 3 1 3 2 4 2 1 3

Accounting and Audit Regulations and legislative requirements relating to internal controls and proper accounting practice 3 2 2 2 1 2 3 4 2 1 5 Y

How the Fund communicates with stakeholders and consults with them on changes 2 3 4 4 2 4 3 4 2 0 3

Key risks facing the Fund 3 3 3 3 4 1 3 2 4 3 1 1

How pension fund management risks are monitored and managed 3 3 3 4 2 2 2 3 4 3 0 3

Potential conflicts of interest, how they are identified and managed 3 3 4 4 3 2 4 2 4 3 0 2

An understanding of how breaches in law are reported 2 2 3 2 2 1 1 1 4 2 3 5 Y

Funding – most relevant for Committee

The role of the fund actuary. 3 3 4 4 4 2 2 3 3 3 0 2

The actuarial valuation process, including developing the funding strategy in conjunction with the fund actuary 3 3 3 4 3 2 4 3 3 2 0 2

The key assumptions in the actuarial valuation 3 3 3 4 4 1 4 2 3 3 1 1

The types of employer eligible to join the Fund 3 2 4 4 2 4 3 3 0 2

The importance of the employer covenant and the relative strengths of the covenant across the Fund’s employers 3 3 4 3 1 2 2 3 2 1 3

How employers’ contribution rates are set 3 2 3 3 4 2 3 2 3 2 0 4

Where an employer leaves the Fund, how the promised pensions liabilities are paid for 2 2 3 2 3 1 2 2 3 2 1 6 Y

How employer outsourcings and bulk transfers are dealt with 1 2 3 2 3 1 2 2 3 2 2 5 Y

An understanding of the Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement 3 2 4 3 4 1 2 3 3 3 1 2

Investment – most relevant for Committee

The role of the Fund’s investment in paying future pension payments 3 3 4 2 4 2 4 3 4 3 0 2

The risk and return characteristics of the main asset classes (equities, bonds, property etc) the role of these asset classes in long-

term pension fund investing.
3 3 4 2 4 1 3 3 4 3 1 1

Awareness of the Fund’s Statement of Investment Principles 3 3 4 3 4 2 2 2 4 3 0 3

Awareness of the Fund’s current investment strategy 3 3 4 3 4 2 3 3 4 3 0 1

Key aspects of investment strategy and investment manager monitoring 3 3 4 3 4 2 3 2 4 3 0 2

The Fund’s approach to responsible investment 3 3 4 4 3 2 4 3 4 3 0 1

The Fund’s membership and role of the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum 3 2 4 2 2 1 3 3 4 3 1 3

Pensions Administration – most relevant for Board

The Fund’s pensions administration strategy and how the service is delivered to the Fund’s members and employers 3 3 4 2 2 2 1 2 4 3 1 4 Y

The Fund’s strategy of communicating with key stakeholders including members and employers 3 3 2 4 2 2 2 4 3 0 4

Understanding of the required and adopted scheme policies and procedures relating to: 1 5 Y

•         member data maintenance and record-keeping processes 

•         internal dispute resolution 

•         contributions collection 

•         scheme communication and materials. 

LGPS discretions and how employers’ discretionary policies impact on the pension fund 3 3 4 2 3 1 1 2 4 2 2 3 Y

The tax treatment of pensions including pensions, retirement lump sums, annual allowance and lifetime allowance 3 3 3 2 4 2 2 2 4 2 0 5

The Fund’s Additional Voluntary Contribution (AVC) arrangements, the choice of investments offered to members and the 

oversight of the provider’s performance
3 3 3 2 2 2 1 3 4 2 1 4 Y

How many 1s and 2s 5 13 0 17 9 40 16 23 3 20 0 0 0 0

11

1 2 4 23 3 3 2 2 2

123

ctuohy_4
Typewritten Text
Appendix B



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Draft Members Information Pack        Appendix C 

Contents page 

 Title Purpose Last update 

1 AGM Presentation General Background Jan 2019 

2 Investment Strategy Statement Provides the structure in relation to how the Fund’s 

investments are managed 

Jan 2017 

3a Asset Strategy and Structure Details the allocation of assets to specific classes, the 

rational and expected return 

Jan 2019 

3b Investment Mapping to LGPS Central 

Pool 

Comparison of current investments to LGPS Central’s 

expected offering 

Jan 2019 

4 Responsible Investment and 

Engagement Framework 

Explains how Environmental, Social and Corporate 

Governance (ESG) factors are accounted for in the 

investment process 

May 2018 

5 Actuarial Valuation Report High level outcomes from the 2016 actuarial valuation March 2017 

6 Funding Strategy Statement Governs how employers pay their liabilities Feb 2019 

7 Active Equities Newsletter Explain use of Style Analytics in manager monitoring June 2019 

8 Investment Performance Overview 

2018/19 

Demonstration and Explanation of Portfolio 

Evaluation’s manager performance reports 

July 2019 

9 Summary of member benefits  Sep 19 

10 Local fund governance Terms of Reference for Local Pension Committee and 

Pension Board 

Membership of both bodies 

Key officer contracts and roles 

Sep 19 

11 Web links  Links to useful information covering: 

 National Governance 

 Board & Committee meetings 

 Training/Information sites 

 LGPS Central annual reports 

TBC 

12 Training Training Policy 

Latest Needs Assessment 

Nov 19 

13 LGPS Central Governance Overview of governance, structure and responsibility Sep 19 

 

125



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

127 Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

139 Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

143 Agenda Item 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

149 Agenda Item 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

181 Agenda Item 18
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

187 Agenda Item 19
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

221 Agenda Item 20
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

239 Agenda Item 21
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

245 Agenda Item 22
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

267 Agenda Item 23
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

293 Agenda Item 24
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

299 Agenda Item 25
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

333 Agenda Item 26
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

345 Agenda Item 27
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

377 Agenda Item 28
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

479 Agenda Item 29
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 5 July 2019.
	6 Club Vita
	7 Summary Valuation of Pension Fund Investments and Performance of Individual Managers
	App A - LGPSC Strategic Asset Allocation Q2 19 Issue 6
	App B - PE report sept
	App C - Kames note to LCCPF currency hedging programme - August 2019

	8 Pension Fund Administration - Current Developments
	Appendix A - The LGPS Community Sept 2019
	Appendix B - Hymans_Robertson_Good_governance_in_the_LGPS_July_2019_final

	9 Risk Management and Internal Controls.
	Appendix A - Risk Register Sep 19 Final
	Appendix B - Training Needs Assessment
	Appendix C - Contents v3

	14 LGPS Central - Leicestershire Property Portfolio
	15 LGPS Central - Targeted Return Portfolio
	16 LGPS Central - Emerging Market Debt
	17 Ashmore Quarterly Report
	18 Aspect Capital Quarterly Report
	19 IFM Investors Quarterly Report
	20 Kames Capital Quarterly Report
	21 JP Morgan Quarterly Report
	22 KKR Quarterly Report
	23 LaSalle Quarterly Report
	24 Macquarie Quarterly Report
	25 Millennium Global Quarterly Report
	26 Pictet Quarterly Report
	27 Legal and General Investment Manager Quarterly Report
	28 Stafford Timberland Quarterly Report
	29 Ruffer Quarterly Report



